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THE YEAR’'S HIGHLIGHTS NEEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars except number
of shares issued, shareholders and personnel)

(BRE&1ThE - BERBA RE T AR
SMILAERETIR)

2014 2013
—E—mF —T——F
Turnover ($'000) R (TT) 728,640 687,093
Profit for the year ($'000) EERF (Fx) 36,994 25,824
Profit per share - Basic (cents) BRAF — 2 (L) 9 7
Taxes paid, including beer tax ($'000) FRIBEEE (Fx) 20,670 19,614
Taxes paid per share (cents) HREFEE (L) 6 S
Fixed assets ($'000) EE&E (F7T) 621,309 635,893
Net worth ($'000) F#E (T7T) 571,949 543,678
Salaries, wages and other benefits ($'000) e TEREMER (FT) 116,888 106,631
Number of shares issued BITHRER 373,570,560 373,570,560
Number of shareholders AR g B 2,106 2,094
Number of personnel BT A% 566 587
[ ]
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FfE %

Ramon S. Ang £
Chairman xJ&

To our shareholders,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For 2014, the principal elements of San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)’'s growth strategy, which we rolled out
during the year, were: improvements in our distribution network, particularly
in South China; restructuring across our markets to create an operational
base that delivers scale and competitive advantage through lower costs and
greater efficiencies; and redesigned packaging, new advertising, and the
introduction of new products and product extensions.

The Group registered a consolidated profit of HK$37.0 million in 2014, a 43.3%
increase over the same period in 2013. As a result, net profit attributable to
equity shareholders for 2014 rose to HK$35.3 million from HK$26.0 million in
the previous year.

The Group's consolidated turnover was at HK$728.6 million, 6.0% higher over
the same period in 2013. Gross profit reached HK$311.8 million, with a gross
profit margin of 42.8%.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE &

FINANCIAL RESULTS (Continued)

As of 31 December 2014, cash and cash equivalents and, bank deposits,
excluding bank loans, amounted to HK$135.6 million (HK$132.9 million as
of 31 December 2013). Meanwhile, total debt as of 31 December 2014 was
at HK$190.9 million, 6.2% lower than the HK$203.6 million debt reported for
the same period the previous year. Total net assets stood at HK$571.9 million
(HK$543.7 million as of 31 December 2013), with a debt-to-equity ratio of 0.33
(31 December 2013: 0.37).

DIVIDENDS

On 17 February 2015, the Board of Directors approved the declaration of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014, of HK$0.01 per share to
shareholders on record as of 27 April 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW
HONG KONG OPERATIONS

Weaker consumer and tourist spending resulted in a slowdown of the Hong
Kong economy. In turn, local beer industry volumes dropped 6% over 2013
levels; the single largest decline since excise duties on beer were abolished
in 2008. San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) performed
slightly better with sales volume in the territory declining only by 2%. Even
with this decline, the brewery managed to post a 1% growth in sales revenue.

Your Company remains Hong Kong's No. 1 beer company — its strengths
being the San Miguel brand itself and a wide portfolio of beer brands. Total
sales volume rose 4% over the previous year as the brewery’s sales to both
Macau and to other export markets grew by double-digits.

The Company managed to sustain the strong profit recovery achieved in
2013. Operating profit remained largely at par during the last 12 months
despite having ended distribution agreements with partners for specific
premium brands during the last quarter of 2014. To make up for lost
revenue and to further round out its portfolio, the Company introduced a
new selection of premium brands, kicked-off by a highly successful trade
conference in December. Initial indications are positive and we are confident
this move has updated and strengthened our portfolio.

Helped by programs aimed at enhancing San Miguel's brand equity and
reinforcing its bond with consumers, flagship San Miguel Pale Pilsen
continues to resonate with core drinkers. As part of a larger initiative, a new
design for its can variant was launched in April to update and reinvigorate
brand image. Highlighting the brand’s “Friendship” campaign, San Miguel
continued to air its thematic TVC “Real Friends” alongside promotional draws
like “Dream Comes True” in April and “Dine with Friends” in August.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
HONG KONG OPERATIONS (Continued)

In December, the brand worked with local illustrators to celebrate the beauty
of Hong Kong's cityscape, creating the “Cheers 2015" seasonal can. The
Company continues to support some of the most iconic events in Hong Kong.
Through the Company’s alliance with the Lan Kwai Fong Association, the San
Miguel X Lan Kwai Fong Rugby Fest remains one of the biggest and most
popular post-rugby events in the city. San Miguel Pale Pilsen has been the
exclusive sponsor of the Hong Kong Dragon Boat Carnival organized by the
Hong Kong Tourism Board for five years running.

San Mig Light is one of our portfolio’s best performers, having registered a
28% volume growth over 2013. We are seeing gains across the different sales
channels with on-premise outlets generating the strongest demand. The
brand’s popularity has been supported by the launch of two major marketing
activation programs. We launched the “Summer Splash” campaign in May
2014 partnering with some of Hong Kong's most promising artists to design
the brand'’s premium merchandise. In October, we launched the Walk On
Water (WOW) campaign highlighting direct engagement with its target market,
through WOW summer parties.

To further create excitement in the beer market, we launched a variety of
new products and initiatives. The second half of 2014 saw the introduction of
San Miguel Cerveza Negra in draught. The launch in July provided the market
an exceptional product that we believe can ably compete in the premium
segment, at the same time enhancing San Miguel’s overall brand image. The
success of Kirin Ichiban Frozen Beer paved the way for the introduction of
Kirin Ichiban Stout Frozen Beer and Kirin Ichiban 2-Tone Beer. These premium
segment variants were met with great interest by consumers.

The Company also saw double-digit sales and revenue growth in Macau, on
the back of a revamped distribution resulting in an improved penetration of
on-premise outlets.

SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS

Our consolidated South China operations continued to improve significantly
with operating losses reduced by 40% over the prior year. Sales volumes
and revenue grew by double-digits. Much of this improvement owes to
calibrations in our going-to-market and distribution strategy in Guangzhou
San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB") and gains made in the export
business of San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited (“SMGB").

The new going-to-market and distribution strategy implemented at GSMB
resulted in a stronger dealer network that expanded both the breadth and
depth of sales coverage. Sales in our retail chain channel, Shenzhen, East
Guangdong and West Guangdong have clearly benefited in terms of the focus
and efficiency. As a result, sales volumes grew by double-digits in 2014.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS (Continued)

To improve visibility and shelf impact, new carton designs were introduced
for San Miguel Pale Pilsen and San Mig Light. To highlight this change, point-
of-sales materials promoting product intrinsics such as quality and taste
were rolled out. A market-wide consumer promotion for both San Miguel Pale
Pilsen and San Mig Light was launched during the peak summer months. The
Company also developed a TVC in support of the market-wide promotion and
to further publicize the new packaging design.

To strengthen the brand equity of the local Dragon beer, the Company
initiated a new communication platform for the Dragon brand with the slogan,
"Dragon Beer, the Beer for Shunde People”. Consumer promotions were also
implemented to revolve around this campaign messaging.

The two brands on both ends of GSMB's price spectrum did extremely well in
2014. The higher alcohol Red Horse beer in the premium segment registered
a 45% sales volume improvement, while the lower-priced Guang'’s Pineapple
beer posted a 62% sales volume growth versus the previous year.

Meanwhile, SMGB, which serves as a production source of San Miguel
Brewing International’s export business, delivered a 19% growth in total
exports volume compared to last year.

The restructuring of our South China operations has started to show positive
results. Over the long term, we will build on this momentum for more
profitable volume growth.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Company continues to take part in the broader societal response
relevant to issues that impact our local communities and various stakeholder
groups.

We actively promote responsible drinking and continue to sponsor and
participate in various local events, contributing to charitable and non-profit
organizations.

The Company is also committed to protecting the environment where it

operates and ensuring that it complies with environmental standards set by
government.

10
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HUMAN RESOURCES

In a people-intensive industry, the Company continues to invest in our
people by ensuring that they are equipped with the knowledge, skills and
experiences that keep them challenged and allow them to reach their fullest
potential. We believe in investing resources in training, seminars, mentorship,
partnership and team-building workshops to develop our employees growth
and foster harmony in the organization.

The Company continues to offer competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry standards and to provide attractive fringe
benefits, including medical and insurance coverage and retirement packages
to all employees.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company continued to apply the principles of the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year, with the exception of Code Provision A.4.1,
which states that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. At present, all of the non-executive directors
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and re-election at the
Annual General Meeting under the Company'’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS

There was no change in directors since we published our interim report on
5 August 2014.

FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES

The following are the objectives of the Company for the year 2015:

J In Hong Kong, we will sustain profitability and work to increase
our share of the market by expanding the Wholesaler channel and
making this an integral part of the Company's going-to-market
strategy in order to achieve effective distribution, higher volumes,
and to generate distribution cost savings. We will also further invest
in the San Miguel brand, at the same time building the new premium
brands in our portfolio to replace the old portfolio. Cost containment
discipline will continue to be a priority.

o In South China, we intend to turnaround the business through
increasing the yield and coverage of the jobber and dealer network
in all our markets. We will also further strengthen the brand equity of
San Miguel and Dragon brands. We will actively promote our export
business and work towards better margin improvement and cost
rationalization.
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FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES (Continued)

Moving forward, the Company is confident that we have put in place sound
strategies and plans that will continue to support our growth. We reiterate our
full commitment to maximize shareholder value and will strive to ensure that
our beer brands are ever more relevant to our consumers. Apart from the
sales and marketing growth strategies, we also have various new guidelines,
systems and procedures to facilitate efficient and effective cost management,
sustainable environmental management and responsible social engagement.

In closing, we convey our gratitude to our Board of Directors for their
guidance and support. We also wish to thank our shareholders, customers

and consumers for their continued loyalty; and our employees for their
dedication and hard work.

/.

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

17 February 2015
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE= &

To be presented at the Fifty-second Annual General Meeting of shareholders
to be held at Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hong Kong, Two
Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong on 17 April 2015 at 3:00
p.m.

The directors have pleasure in submitting their Annual Report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the "Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu
Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and distribution
of bottled, canned and draught beers. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

The segment analysis of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the financial year is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable to
the major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the year is as follows:

HHREBNR -_ZT-AFOA T LR TF=RKER
EEABRRERBALES _HESERELX
BELBESRBTZERL T _ERREAFKE

FRER -

EZgL AMARNERRRZHE_T—HF
ToA=T—BLEFEZFHEREEZMBERE -

FEERME

ERENEERAR AR ([ARF) 2—HRE
BEMRZNRR - M ERENEBEEMNE
RBEEHDBNERRIRE —+ ) \SREHSES
Nig -

FERY

ARBZEBEB AR E R DB - B2 R
I - EHBARZ EBEKREMMEAEHN
B HREMIEE 14 -

BERAMBEREARRNEMEAR ([RNEHE])
ZEERIAHT - BN IRARMIFES o

FEERRUER
U FEAAT R BE P REER S Bl A%
B 5Kt KRR 2 AR

Percentage of the Group’s total

hAEEE
The largest customer BAEF 22.62%
Five largest customers in aggregate BRREFAE 45.17%
The largest supplier AW IER 6.52%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate BRARMHEEER 25.68%

One of the five largest suppliers and one of the five largest customers was
San Miguel Corporation (“SMC”) and its associates (collectively the “San
Miguel Group”) in which Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr.
Ramon G. Torralba, Mr. Teruyuki Daino, Mr. Takashi Hayashi, Mr. Roberto N.
Huang, Mr. Takeshi Wada, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago
have beneficial interests to the extent that they have equity interests in and/
or are/were directors and/or officers of the San Miguel Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates, or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers or suppliers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out on pages
62 10 134 of the financial statements.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders before dividends, of HK$35,323,000 (2013:
HK$26,010,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DIVIDENDS

On 8 September 2014, an interim dividend of HK$0.01 per share was paid to
shareholders of record on 28 August 2014.

On 17 February 2015, the directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.01 per share to shareholders on record on 27 April 2015.

CHARITABLE AND OTHER DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$52,000 (2013: HK$Nil).

FIXED ASSETS

The Group acquired fixed assets in the amount of HK$11,291,000 (2013:
HK$4,940,000) during the year. Details of these acquisitions and other
movements in fixed assets are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 24(c) to the
financial statements. These movements include the automatic inclusion of
the amount standing to the share premium account in share capital as from
3 March 2014 in accordance with section 37 of schedule 11 to the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), as part of the transition to the no-par
value regime.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report are set out
on page 2 of the Annual Report.

With the exception of Mr. Takashi Hayashi who was appointed as director on
25 April 2014, all of the directors served as such for the full year.

Mr. Shobu Nishitani resigned as director on 25 April 2014.

Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Ms. Chan Wen Mee, May
(Michelle) and Mr. Teruyuki Daino retire by rotation in accordance with Article
105 of the Company's Articles of Association at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors were appointed as directors after the last Annual
General Meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

The directors of the Company as of 31 December 2014 had the following
personal interests in the shares of the Company, its holding companies,
subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) at that date as recorded in the
register of directors’ interests required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO:

(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES

EE
RAFHR BREEFT 2 REHNE2H -

BMEREEN T -NOFOA-_+HAEZE
RESI 2HMEFON2FETEFR

AARRREER —T—NOFNA-_+HBREE
ERA -

BREXELE JBRELE  REXLTEERK
BRELEDRBEARRABEIZE105GRTE
REERITZBEREFRE LtRRERIREEE
(52

WEEEN E-RBERAFRERRRZIRES -

BREERRAFAS LBEET ESTENR
AR B REAE B R BRI AR RS E MK
BRBAAER —FARLEMMELEEE (R
TERRERIN) ZIRIEEHX -

ERECER

R(EBELRBEGRN) E32 G EEBTF2ESHE
mEMREME R —NF+ A =1+—
HZARREEZRERAEFEEAQR - HIEBRA
A MBARREMBENR (&R (EHLY
EIEG)) BEITRAZ ERERIT

(1) EBRTRAzZER

Number of ordinary shares
in the Company
EARZEBRZROEE

David K. P Li
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (Continued)
(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued)

BBzl w)
(1) EBRITRARZEDS (3)

Number of common shares of
1 Philippine peso each in
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.

EREBE1FEERER
ZERZROHE

Number of % of total
shares held issued shares
HERTRG
EREHE BYCHDLE
Ramon S. Ang B 86,734,238* 25.907003%
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SRR 364 0.000109%
Roberto N. Huang #F2ER 3,039 0.000908%
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno 500 0.000149%
Carmelo L. Santiago ki) 500 0.000149%
Ramon G. Torralba THEEE 260 0.000078%

* No. of shares in Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. (“Top Frontier”) held as direct ownership: 75,887 shares

# Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. ([ Top Frontier]) #4548 2 HEE : 75,887 %

No. of shares in Top Frontier held as indirect ownership: 86,658,351 shares

M Top Frontier M#EFHB 2 IRINDELE : 86,658,351 %

Ramon S. Ang E2325°¢
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SR
Roberto N. Huang =2EE
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno
Carmelo L. Santiago FEHE=
Ramon G. Torralba HEE

xx No. of shares in SMC held as direct ownership: 757,873 shares
RENBARIEERFB 2ZRHEE : 757,873 K%
No. of shares in SMC held as indirect ownership: 373,623,796 shares
RENBARIEERFE 2RO EE « 373,623,796 %

Number of common shares of
5 Philippine pesos each in
San Miguel Corporation

EHBEATEREESFERERE
ZEBRZRAEE
Number of % of total
shares held issued shares
HERITRAG
EREA BECEDL
374,381,669** 10.866935%
3,645 0.000106%
42,397 0.001231%
5,000 0.000145%
5,000 0.000145%
2,600 0.000075%
[ ]
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (Continued) EucHiEz (@)

(1)  INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued) (1) EBRTREAZER (B)

Number of common shares of
1 Philippine peso each in
San Miguel Brewery Inc.
EQEERARSREE1FEEERE

ZEBRZRBEE
Number of % of total
shares held*** issued shares
HERITRG
BFREE *** B oA DLE
Ramon S. Ang 2325 5,000 0.000033%
Carlos Antonio M. Berba FEER 5,000 0.000033%
Teruyuki Daino RERBE 5,000 0.000033%
Takashi Hayashi WE = 5,000 0.000033%
Roberto N. Huang =ER 5,000 0.000033%
Carmelo L. Santiago M= 5,000 0.000033%

e includes corporate interest
BEN AR
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (Continued) ERZziEg @
(2) INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (2) REBERDZES
Certain directors of the Company have been granted stock options KRBHETFESIRIEENRAR 2B
to subscribe for common shares in SMC under SMC's stock option STEERBERENZEA he A Rz Em
scheme. Particulars of stock options in SMC held by directors during R - RERER-_ZE—NE+_A
the year and as at 31 December 2014 are as follows: T+ —RASESHRENBRRZEBRE
BT -

Stock options in San Miguel Corporation
EHERTIZBRE
Number Number
of options of options Number Number
outstanding granted/ of options of options
Exercise atthe (exercised) lapsed outstanding
Date Exercise price per heginning during during at the end
granted period up to option of the year the year the year of the year
(Philippine pesos)

ERRY,/
EARHEAGE (Bf) FREAN  FERHANHE
REEH  BLOERA SROEE  cRREHE  CRREEE  <RBREER  ZBREEA
(FREEZ)

Common (par value LE

of 5 Philippine (BHEES
pesos each): FEERZ)
Ramon S.Ang BEY 01/03/2007 01/03/2015 6350 993,386 - - 993,386
01/03/2007 01/03/2015 7550 662,258 - - 662,258
26/06/2008 26/06/2016 4050 765,603 - - 765,603
25/06/2009 25/06/2017 58,05 587,556 — - 587,556
Carlos Antonio SR 16/12/2010 16/12/2018 120.33 41,556 - - 41,556
M. Berba
Raberto N. Huang EER 16/12/2010 16/12/2018 120.33 50793 - (50,793) -
Ramon G. Torralba HER 16/12/2010 16/12/2018 120.33 8,991 - - 8,991
——
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (Continued)

(2)

20

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All interests in the share and underlying shares of the Company, its
holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors of the Company or any
of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as adopted by the Company.

EREzHR (8
(2) REERDzERS (&)

ARA - BERLOR - MEBA R N HE
ERR ARG KA DD B LT

A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES TERRNEGEIABKBGZIES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES
The Company has been notified of the following interests in the Company's RZ-Z—ME+=-A=+—0 - XA TEE 5

issued shares at 31 December 2014 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary {5 A RIE 3T EEALZ 5% s A _EHARA 7B 3
shares in issue: TRRIDRERS -

Ordinary shares

EERR S
Number of

ordinary % of total
Substantial shareholders shares held issued shares
HEBRTRG
FERR FrsEERER B zEDLE
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. 245,720,800 65.78%
San Miguel Corporation (note 1) EHE AR (FEE1) 245,720,800 65.78%
Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (note 1) BB R g (FIFE1) 245,720,800 65.78%
San Miguel Brewery Inc. (note 1) &R AR (FIEET) 245,720,800 65.78%

San Miguel Brewing International Limited ENEEERBR AT (HEE1)

(note 1) 245,720,800 65.78%
Neptunia Corporation Limited (note 1) S FER AR (HRE1) 245,720,800 65.78%
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (note 2) RIEH (58) BRAR (ME2) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company

(note 2) (as trustee of Limited (FizE2) (1E &

The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust) The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust

PAEEIN) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited

(note 2) (as trustee of another (M 2) ERS—2RET

discretionary trust) ZAEFEAN) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited  Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation

(note 2) (as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Limited (FIE2) (1E&

Unity Discretionary Trust) The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary

Trust Z155EA) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing (note 2) =g (HEE2) 23,703,000 6.34%
[
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

M

Top Frontier, the ultimate holding company, SMC, Kirin Holdings Company,
Limited (“Kirin") (a principal shareholder of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (“SMB")),
SMB, and San Miguel Brewing International Limited ("SMBIL") are all deemed
to hold the above disclosed interest indirectly through Neptunia Corporation
Limited (“Neptunia”) in the Company because each of Top Frontier, SMC
and Kirin holds more than one third of the voting power of SMB. SMB has a
controlling interest in SMBIL and SMBIL has a controlling interest in Neptunia.

Mr. Li Ka-Shing is the settlor of each of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary
Trust (“DT1") and another discretionary trust (“DT2"). Each of Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT1”, which is the trustee of DT1) and Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2", which is the trustee of DT2) holds units
in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust (“UT1") but is not entitled to any interest or share
in any particular property comprising the trust assets of the said unit trusts.
The discretionary beneficiaries of each of DT1 and DT2 are, inter alia, Mr. Li Tzar
Kuoi, Victor, his wife and children, and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard. Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Company Limited (“TUT1") as trustee of UT1, together with certain
companies which TUT1 as trustee of UT1 is entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at their general meetings,
hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of Cheung Kong (Holdings)
Limited (“CKH"). CKH is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third
or more of the voting power at the general meetings of Conroy Assets Limited
and Hamstar Profits Limited.

The entire issued share capital of each of TUT1, TDT1 and TDT2 are owned by
Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“Unity Holdco"). Mr. Li Ka-Shing and Mr. Li
Tzar Kuoi, Victor are respectively interested in one-third and two-third of the
entire issued share capital of Unity Holdco. TUT1 is interested in the shares
of CKH by reason only of its obligation and power to hold interests in those
shares in its ordinary course of business as trustee and, when performing
its function as trustee, exercises its power to hold interests in the shares of
CKH independently without any reference to Unity Holdco or any of Mr. Li Ka-
Shing and Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor as a holder of the shares of Unity Holdco as
aforesaid.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Li Ka-Shing (being the settlor and may being
regarded as a founder of each of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the SFO),
TUT1, TDT1, TDT2, and CKH is deemed to be interested in the 23,703,000 shares
of the Company of which 13,624,600 shares are held by Conroy Assets Limited
and 10,078,400 shares are held by Hamstar Profits Limited.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company.

FERRREMNREMBRGZER (5

i
M

(4)

By

EE}?ATOD Frontier - B&KIER AT £ H 4
NaEl R IERER g4 (TEE&S&J) (BEHE
ERAE ([EAEER) 2EEBRE) &8
BEENEER=22— A EZEZE £
EEBS A E N SERERERAR (£ 08
BB ) 2R AE RS K A B BIRR 45 A s
FIARAR ([3mF]) 2 =Rz - #utt Top
Frontier - £ 048QR) ~ B - £ BB RE
ﬂﬂi‘ﬂ}ﬁlfi’ HEE ARE BB mAEE R A
PNRIZHESTA Ll AT R 2 s o

Z= 52355 4 & The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary
Trust ([DT1]) k5 —2#{Est ([DT2]) 2 BT E
# F A ° Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation
Limited ([TDT1]) + A&DT12 5 58 A) KLiKa-
Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited ([TDT2] > A&DT2
2155 A) & B#E & T The Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trust (TUT1)) B4z - Bt E 2T ERZ
BAERZEMETEENERAEB AT ZE
iR fn o DT1 & DT2 2 Al e i A BLIEZ IR
A HEBFETFL  RBPEREAE - L Ka-Shing
Unity Trustee Company Limited ([TUT1]) BAUTY
FEEAF D EE TR ATUTLAUT F%)\Z%
ﬁ}?ﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁikAifﬂ%‘m BT =

—AEREREAFTHRAFERIEE (%I)
BRAR (TRED E?’*ﬁﬂx$_’\2 A
#Exm o KEH Conroy Assets Limited & Hamstar
Profits lelted BETERRKE EITE T

TE=pz— A LIS -
TUT1~TDT1 ~ RTDT2Z 2 #f B # 17 A M

Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited ([ Unity
Holdcol) #%5 - FTm Mk ERTRIEFLERE
%EUmty Holdco=om 2z — k=92 =2E

BITRAR - TUMHARE RN ER R RETT
HIEAERAZEARENMRE—RIEFE
% WAILMERASNELTFERBRER
ez 2 #E 77 i HZA R Unity Holdco sk 32 Fritt
2 Unity Holdco B A58 A5l e 4 R 24E
SERRTMER -

RIBCEFRBEGRN)  FTrHkitE (A
DT1 &DTzzﬂﬁF‘%%)\&% B 5 K ERE G5
WA BZMIBEFEZKIA) C TUTT
TDT1 TN EREEHUSEHERAREBEARA]
23,703,000 % 2 f% 15 #E 2% - H A B2 3% F Conroy
Assets Limited ¥ & 2 13,624,600 % f% 19 & &
Hamstar Profits Limited #5 7 2~ 10,078,400 % fi%

{/\ °

B FREARRR 2 BN ST R R ©

B Lt sh -

W\ H g s AR (R MHTE D)

E R IEREBFZELMBALRT -

23



ANy e i b A el i i o SR Cadl
Bl YT el g k
_ﬁi ¥ in"‘ ..':! "’rﬂ 3

_—
-
— —
—
e —
— —_—
e —
B e L TR —

—
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its bond with 1
consumers, flagship

San Miguel Pale Pilsen
continues to resonate
with core drinkers.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 June 1963, Neptunia provides technical
and advisory services to the Company and may be paid a General Managers'
commission. Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr. Ramon G.
Torralba, Mr. Teruyuki Daino, Mr. Takashi Hayashi, Mr. Roberto N. Huang, Mr.
Takeshi Wada, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago are interested
parties to this contract to the extent that they have equity interests in and/
or are/were directors and/or officers of SMB, SMBIL, SMC and Top Frontier,
the ultimate holding company of Neptunia. General Managers’ commission
has not been paid by the Company or charged by Neptunia since the 1995
financial year.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated corporations
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1) TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group

In order to comply with the Listing Rules, the Company entered into an
agreement with SMC on 7 March 2013 (the “Agreement”) with a view
to renewing the agreement to carry out the trade-related continuing
connected transactions from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016
under the same terms and conditions as those under the agreements
entered into by SMC and the Company dated 6 December 2007,
11 May 2009 and 15 October 2010 in respect of such trade-related
continuing connected transactions.

The Agreement, including the trade-related continuing connected
transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was approved by
independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company held on 19 April 2013.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BAEZR S (&)
(1) TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED (1) EBEEHEEESEBENSERERS
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP (#&)
(Continued)
Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group entered into the following RARFERN  NEBBRIBEHRZELETUT
trade-related continuing connected transactions during the year. HESEBENHERERS o
2014 2014
—E—F T
Actual Cap
BE LR
Continuing connected transactions BEREXS HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Purchase of packaging materials by AEERAEHEE
the Group from the San Miguel Group BEaEME 24,223 82,000
Purchase of packaged beer by the Group AREBERAENEEEE
from the San Miguel Group Rk 4,671 6,300
Sales of packaged beer and non-alcoholic AEBERENEBHEE
beverage products by the Group RPN it ==Y/
to the San Miguel Group, provided Em - ZEMTERIFREHES
that such sales or distribution of (484 7B R A RISE EBRIM)
packaged beer shall not be carried
out in the Philippines, unless through
SMB 164,792 218,000

26



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE= &

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Q)]

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
(Continued)

Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused them
to believe that the foregoing trade-related continuing connected
transactions as set out in the Agreement during the 2014 financial year
(i) had not been approved by the Board of the Company, (i) were not
entered into in all material respects in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transactions, (iii) had exceeded the cap
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 March 2013
and in the circular to shareholders dated 28 March 2013, and (iv) were
not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

28

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB”) is an
equity joint venture formed between San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited
("SMG") and Guangzhou Brewery (“GB") and is held as to 70% by
SMG and as to 30% by GB. SMG is a 92.989%-owned subsidiary of the
Company and GB is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of its substantial shareholding in GSMB. To facilitate the business
operations of GSMB, San Miguel International Limited (“SMIL") (a
member of the San Miguel Group) and GB have each granted GSMB
a licence to use their respective trademarks upon establishment
of GSMB (the “SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement” and the “GB
Trademark Licensing Agreement”, respectively).

Apart from the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Group
has also entered into other licence agreements with certain other
members of the San Miguel Group: (i) the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement entered into between the Company and Neptunia (an
indirect subsidiary of SMC) and (ii) the SMBIL Sub-licence Agreement
entered into between SMGB and SMBIL (an indirect subsidiary of
SMC).

The directors (including the non-executive directors) consider that the
terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Neptunia Sub-
license Agreement, the SMBIL Sub-license Agreement (collectively,
the “San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements”) and the GB Trademark
Licensing Agreement, including their respective tenures which are
for more than three years, are on normal commercial terms, fair
and reasonable, and that the transactions contemplated under such
agreements are in the interests of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The transactions under the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements
(which have been aggregated as a single transaction for purposes
of the Listing Rules) and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34(1)
of the Listing Rules. The annual royalties payable by the Group under
each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement shall be less than HK$10 million
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and each of the financial
years during the remaining term of the relevant licence/sub-licence
agreements. Based on this proposed cap, the transactions under
each of the (i) San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the GB
Trademark Licensing Agreement are only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement.

An announcement was made by the Company on 19 September 2007
in this respect.

In relation to the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the
Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement, as per the payment instructions of
SMC dated 18 December 2000, all royalties receivable from GSMB and
the Company have been assigned and transferred to SMBIL effective
1 January 2000 until further notice.

On 1 April 2010, a Deed of Assignment was entered into between
SMIL, SMBIL and GSMB pursuant to which SMIL agreed to assign,
transfer and convey in favour of SMBIL all of SMIL's rights, title and
interest over the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. Both SMBIL
and GSMB consented to such assignment pursuant to the Deed of
Assignment.

After the assignment, SMBIL became the licensor of the trademarks
licensed to GSMB under the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. All
other terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned
to SMBIL remain unchanged. The transaction contemplated under the
SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned to SMBIL continues
to constitute a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules.

An announcement was made by the Company on 1 April 2010 in this
respect.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The amount of royalties paid to GB and the San Miguel Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014 were HK$2,146,000 and HK$151,000
respectively (2013: HK$2,129,000 and HK$129,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders and as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused them
to believe that the continuing connected transactions in respect of
the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and the GB Trademark
Licensing Agreement during the 2014 financial year (i) had not been
approved by the Board of the Company, (ii) were not entered into
in all material respects in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing such transactions, (iii) had exceeded the cap disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 19 September 2007, and
(iv) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group.

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement on 1 January 2015, an Extension Letter was signed by
Neptunia and by the Company on 24 October 2014 to extend the
term of the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement for one year from 1
January 2015 to 31 December 2015 at nil consideration. Save for such
extension, all other terms of the Neptunia Sub-license Agreement
remain unchanged. An announcement was made by the Company on
24 October 2014 in this respect.
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OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE
SAN MIGUEL GROUP

The Group purchased brewing materials from the San Miguel Group
during the year, which amounted to HK$241,000 (2013: HK$184,000).
The Group also sold raw materials to fellow subsidiary during the year,
which amounted to HK$Nil (2013: HK$289,000). These transactions
are exempt from all the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements according to Chapter 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules (De minimis transactions).
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong have sponsored a
non-contributory defined benefit scheme, The San Miguel Brewery Hong
Kong Limited Retirement Fund (the “Fund”), which covers local permanent
employees, and was registered in September 1995 under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The Fund'’s assets are held in trust and
administered by a trustee. The members’ benefits are determined based on
the employees’ final remuneration and length of service. Contributions to the
Fund are made in accordance with the recommendations of independent
actuaries who value the retirement scheme at regular intervals, usually
triennially.

The Fund was granted exemption from the Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") regulations by the MPF Scheme Authority on 24 July 2000, following
modifications to the Fund benefits which comply with MPF regulations.

The latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was carried out as at 1 January
2014 and the results were as follows:

(1 The actuary of the Fund is Mr. J. Yip, Fellow of the Society of Actuaries.
In the actuarial valuation, the attained age method was used. Other
major assumptions used in the valuation were: investment return of 4%
per annum; long-term salary escalation of 5% per annum; mortality
rates under the 2011 Hong Kong Life Tables, normal retirement age of
60 years; and early retirement rates allowed between the ages 55 to
60 years.

2) The unaudited market value of the Fund assets was HK$71,953,000 as
at 1 January 2014.

(3) The minimum level of funding as recommended by the actuary of the
Fund was 17.8% of salaries for 2014, 2015 and 2016.

(4) The solvency surplus was HK$552,000, i.e. the obligation under the
Fund was 101% covered by the Fund’s assets, at 1 January 2014.

Particulars of the employee retirement plans of the Company and the Group
are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's working capital at 31 December 2014 was net current assets of
HK$108,049,000 compared with HK$114,032,000 as at 31 December 2013.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits (excluding pledged deposits) as at
31 December 2014 were HK$135,628,000 (2013: HK$132,914,000) and are
sufficient to fund working capital requirements and capital expenditure in
2015.

LOANS

The Group has a loan from an intermediate holding company. Total
borrowings at 31 December 2014 for the Company and for the Group
were HK$190,889,000 (2013: HK$203,560,000) and HK$190,889,000 (2013:
HK$203,560,000), respectively.

Particulars of the loan from an intermediate holding company of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2014 are set out in note 20 to
the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 140 of the Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance section on pages 38 to 50 of the Annual
Report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE 1 E R RYA

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive  1B#& FM AR BIE 313 ETEAIIES| - FRIEIE
directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of #ITEFEZAARARTERNRNAEE 2B I - &K
the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors  AEIRAMEE I IERNITEERBELAL ©

to be independent.

AUDITORS 574 {0

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A’ EEF @SB RS ETESEET -5
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company isto  BEZEREE R et EEATIEER R TR EM 2

be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. REREEREERRAFAE LIERE -
By order of the board HEEEMH

Ramon S. Ang FE

Chairman BB

Hong Kong, 17 February 2015 55 —E-AF-A++tAR

[
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COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE B HMISOREBARKE

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “"Company”) is committed
to maintaining compliance with statutory and regulatory standards
and adherence to the principles of corporate governance emphasizing
transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and fairness. The
board and the senior management of the Company ensure that effective self-
regulatory practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. These include a board comprised of high calibre members, board
committees and effective internal systems and controls.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 (the
"year under review") as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), save for the deviation discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term
(Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code) but are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

The following sections set out the principles in the CG Code as they have
been applied by the Company, including any deviation therefrom, for the year
under review.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprised twelve Directors (one
executive director, who is the managing director, seven non-executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors) who possess the
skills, experience and expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the
management of the business of the Group. The biographies of the directors
are set out from pages 52 to 57 of this report under the “Directors and
Management Executives” section. There is no financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship among the members of the board.

The management and control of the business of the Company is vested in its
board. It is the duty of the board to create value for the shareholders of the
Company, establish the Company’s strategic direction, set the Company’s
objectives and plan in accordance therewith, and provide leadership and
ensure availability of resources in the attainment of such objectives. The
board is bound to manage the Company in a responsible and effective
manner, and therefore every director ensures that he carries out his duty
in good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and acts in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The board and the executive management have clearly defined
responsibilities under various internal control and checks-and-balance
mechanisms. The board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive management of the Company. These responsibilities include:
implementation of the decisions of the board and organisation and direction
of the day-to-day operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the board;
preparation and monitoring of annual production plans and operating budget;
and control, supervision and monitoring of capital, technical and human
resources.

The board held four meetings during the year under review. The chief finance
officer and company secretary attended all the scheduled board meetings
to report matters arising from corporate governance, risk management,
statutory compliance, accounting and finance, and kept detailed minutes
of each meeting, which are available for all directors. At the meetings, the
directors discussed and formulated overall strategies for the Company,
monitored financial performance and discussed the annual and interim
results, as well as other significant matters. Daily operational matters are
delegated to management.

At least 14 days of notice of all board meetings was given to all directors, and
all directors were given the opportunity to include matters for discussion in
the agenda. An agenda and accompanying board papers are sent in full to all
directors at least three days before every board meeting.

The number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each
director during the year under review is set out in the following table. Figure
in brackets indicates the maximum number of meetings in the period in
which the individual was a board member or board committee member (as
the case may be).
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Scheduled Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual
board committee committee committee General
meetings meetings meetings meetings Meeting
BEEE® EVEEE Hzee REZEE (&3
=f =L = =6 BEAE
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive directors
David K.P.Li ZEE 1/(4) 2/(2) 0/2) 0/(1) 0/(1)
Ng Wai Sun R 3/(4) 2/2) 1/(2) 0/(1) 0/(1)
Carmelo L. Santiago k3= 3/(4) 2/2) 1/2) 1/(1) 1/(1)
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno 3/(4) N/A N/A 1/(1) 1/(1)
Adrian MK Li R
(Alternate to David K.P. Li) (PEEZETEE) 3/(4) 0/2) 2/2) 1/(1) 1/01)
Executive director HITES
Ramon G. Torralba HEE
(Managing Director) (BiTEE) 4/4) N/A N/A N/A /(1)
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang (Chairman) BEY(EE) 3/4) N/A N/A N/A /1)
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SRS
(Deputy Chairman) =ES:9) 4/(4) N/A 2/2) N/A /(1)
Chan Wen Mee, May Michelle) — [RE% 3/4) N/A N/A N/A 1/(1)
Teruyuki Daino REBFE 4/4) N/A N/A 1/(1) 1/(1)
Takashi Hayashi mEE 4 3/03) N/A N/A N/A 1/01)
Roberto N. Huang =5} 4/(4) N/A 2/(2) N/A 1/(1)
Shobu Nishitani FARE 2 1/2) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Takeshi Wada AR 4/(4) N/A N/A N/A /(1)
Notes: FisE
©) Appointed as non-executive director on 25 April 2014. (1) RN FMNAZ+RBEZERIENITE
$ °
) Resigned as non-executive director on 25 April 2014. ) R-E—NFNA -+ RAGEFERTERR
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THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The chairman of the board is Mr. Ramon S. Ang. The chief executive officer (or
managing director, in the case of the Company) is Mr. Ramon G. Torralba. The
chairman’s and the managing director’s roles are clearly defined to ensure
their independence, accountability and responsibility.

The chairman takes the lead in formulating overall strategies and policies
of the Company; ensures the effective performance by the board of its
functions, including compliance with good corporate governance practices;
and encourages and facilitates active contribution of directors in board
activities and constructive relations between executive and non-executive
directors. The chairman also ensures effective communication with
shareholders of the Company and receipt by the directors of adequate and
complete information. The role of deputy chairman is carried out by Mr.
Carlos Antonio M. Berba.

The managing director, supported by other board members and the senior
management, is responsible for managing the day-to-day business of the
Company. He is also accountable to the board for the implementation of the
Company'’s overall strategies, and coordination of overall business operations.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this report, the board consists of eleven non-executive
directors and one executive director. Four of the non-executive directors are
independent. Further details of the composition of the board can be found in
the section entitled “The Board” of this report.

All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term, but
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings. Under the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the
directors, including the non-executive directors, are subject to retirement,
rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors are expected to participate in the activities of the
board, particularly in the establishment of a selection process to ensure a
mix of competent directors and officers; adoption of a system of internal
checks and balances; scrutiny of the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of
board authority is within the powers conferred to the board under its Articles
of Association, by-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' INDEPENDENCE (Continued)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the fields of
accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and number in the
board ensure that strong independent views and judgment are brought in
the board’s deliberations and that such views and judgment carry weight in
the board’s decision-making process. Their presence and participation also
enable the board to maintain high standards of compliance in financial and
other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company and the
Company.

Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an annual
confirmation of his independence. The Company considers such directors to
be independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each director, upon reasonable request, is given access to independent
professional advice in circumstances he may deem appropriate and
necessary for the discharge of his duties to the Company, at the expense of
the Company.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company
for the year under review. The directors consider that the financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong, and reflect amounts that are based on the best
estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the board
and management with an appropriate consideration to materiality. As at 31
December 2014, the directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of
the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial reporting
are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 135 to
136.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness of these
systems.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued) PIERES I ()

The board has conducted a review of the Company’s internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2014, including financial, operational and
compliance control and risk management functions and assessed the
effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews performed by the
audit committee, executive management, external advisor and internal
auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES

The board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance
functions set out below:

Q) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the board;

2 reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

To assist the directors in the discharge of their duties, the Company provides
every newly appointed director with a comprehensive induction program on
the first occasion of his appointment, where such directors are provided with
information on the Company’s organization and business; the membership,
duties and responsibilities of the board, board committees and senior
management; corporate governance practices and procedures; and latest
financial information on the operations of the Company. Such information
shall be supplemented with visits to the Company’s key plant sites and
meetings with key senior executives.

Throughout their tenure, the directors shall be provided with updates on the
business of the Company, latest developments of the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, corporate social responsibility
matters and other changes affecting the Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the CG Code A.6.5, all directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.
The Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of the directors.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (Continued)

The directors confirm that they have complied with the CG Code on directors’
training. The Company had received from each of the directors their
confirmations on taking continuous professional training.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the audit committee comprised three independent
non-executive directors: Mr. Ng Wai Sun, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago and Dr.
the Hon. Sir David K. P Li, who acts as chairman of the committee. The audit
committee met two times in 2014 with full minutes kept by the company
secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member at these
meetings is shown in the table presented above.

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee shall assist the board in
fulfilling its corporate governance and oversight responsibilities in relation
to financial reporting, internal control structure, risk management systems
and internal and external audit functions. The audit committee is further
authorised by the board to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference, and is tasked with recommending to the board appropriate actions
emanating from such investigations. The audit committee has unrestricted
access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk assessment
and assurance and senior management, as may be appropriate in the
discharge of its functions.

In 2014, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by:

(1) making recommendations to the board on the reappointment of
the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

2 monitoring the external auditor's independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards, and discussing with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

(3) implementing the Company's policy on the engagement of an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

(4) reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual and interim reports and the
auditors’ report to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Company’s financial position;

(5) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems to ensure that management has discharged its
duty to have an effective internal control system;

(6) ensuring the coordination between the internal and external auditors
and that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewing and
monitoring the effectiveness of the audit function;
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

(7) reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(8) reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material queries
raised by the external auditor to the management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and the
management’s response to such queries; and

9) reporting to the board on the matters set out in the CG Code on the
audit committee.

The audit committee is authorised by the board to obtain external legal or
other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers necessary
in the performance of its functions. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The audit
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the total fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services (mainly tax review and corporate governance review) provided to the
Company and its subsidiaries by external auditors amounted to HK$3,299,000
(2013: HK$3,493,000) and HK$NIl (2013: HKS$NIl), respectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun and Mr.
Carmelo L. Santiago and two non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Carlos
Antonio M. Berba and Mr. Roberto N. Huang. The remuneration committee
is chaired by an independent non-executive director, Mr. Ng Wai Sun. The
remuneration committee met twice in 2014 with full minutes kept by the
company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member at
these meetings is shown in the table presented above.

The primary role of the remuneration committee under its terms of reference
is to support and advise the board in fulfilling the board’s responsibility to the
shareholders of the Company to:

(1 establish coherent remuneration policies and practices that will be
observed and enable the Company to attract and retain top caliber
executives and directors,

2 fairly and responsibly reward executives based on their performance
and the performance of the Company, and the general pay
environment; and

EFERRE (B
EREEE (B)
7 RARRENEE  SFBEREER

@  mBEINEZEENG TEIEER KM - SN
TSR L8 - MSRE HEIE RS
FERERINEMEARREREEEE
HEVEE - &

©  BEFREATHMHEAEZZEENE
HRAZEESER -

ERLEQRETERE  FHRRERITHR
RERETE  AIEGANNDERNEMBIEER
R REBFEAEBLSHRREEMBEHINIAL
HE - BREEGRARARGER R ERAEIT
HEE - ARAEMKRRE A EREHNEZEZE
EHEEEE - M EEE D SRR R AR
£+ #8%kinfo.sanmiguel.com.hk °

REBEFER  BMNERBEEARBNMER
AIATIR A RS IR (EERBEEMD
XEReE) MR ERBA - 2 5143,299,000
BT (ZZ—=% : 3,493,000%7T) REHT (=
T—=F THET) -

¥YMWEES
FNEEeNERE=(IBIIFNITES - (B :
FHEERLT  REFLEREHESKE) R
FRTEE (A BB RERERREL)
FHEZEeR ([UB U IFNTESTREN LR
FEFE -R-_ZT-—F FHEZESEHEM
R BESHLEHARNNMERT - @EHZEE
KB HREZEERNFRIN LXK -

FNZEeRBEEBESETIEATENERE
FERTTHARRBREMW AL :

() BIEEARFERS MIEEEFTRAE
RES—HHFHMBER N ER

2  REBTBRABHRBEARFNES - A
REBXFHRE R FREBEEHMETH
AB R

45



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2014

ANt

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT b E A&

THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZEE (&)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued) FMEEE (&)

(3)  comply with the CG Code Provisions on remuneration of directors, (3) A EHEESMEEEEFABEXHE
mainly by: £ ARAT
. determining executive and director remuneration policy; . EFTHRABRESHEHIECE
. determining the remuneration of executive directors upon . EERFEINITESHHRSEBEM

consultation with the chairman or managing director regarding
their proposals for such remuneration;,

o reviewing and approving the remuneration of the executives
who directly report to the managing director, and as
appropriate, other senior management; and

o reviewing and approving all equity based plans.

The remuneration committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The remuneration
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the committee reviewed the remuneration
package of Managing Director and key senior executives. As recommended,
no directors’ fees will be paid for the year 2014.

Details of the remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December
2014 are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises one non-executive director, namely
Mr. Teruyuki Daino and four independent non-executive directors: Dr. the
Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo
L. Santiago. The nomination committee is chaired by Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago.
The nomination committee met once in 2014 with full minutes kept by the
company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member at the
meeting is shown in the table presented above.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Under its terms of reference, proceedings and meetings of the committee
will be governed by the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association
for regulating the proceedings and meetings of the board of the Company
in so far as they are applicable and not inconsistent with the nomination
committee’s terms of reference. The primary purpose of the committee is to
support and advise the board in fulfilling their responsibilities to shareholders
in ensuring that the board comprises individuals who are best able to
discharge the responsibilities of directors having regard to the law and the
highest standards of governance by:

(

—

)

assessing the skills required on the board;
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2 from time to time assessing the extent to which the required skills are  (2) T EESeMERERRZIEE
represented on the board;

©) establishing the process for the review of the performance of  (3) HeH AN EE R EEeRERIRHTIE
individual directors and the board as a whole; 528

) establishing the process for the identification of suitable candidates  (4) RYEEAREREANETAEES/KAM

(5)

for appointment to the board; and

having oversight of matters relating to corporate governance by
bringing any issues to the attention of the board.

The nomination committee has the following responsibilities:

M

review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the board regarding any proposed changes;
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(2) identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members and  (2) EEEABEERAIKEBEEEREZ A
select or make recommendations to the board on the selection of T WHEREBEBATEREESIFI
individuals nominated for directorships; MEESRHEER

(3)  assess the independence of independent non-executive directors; Q) FHMEBUIERITESR 2B

@) make recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating  (4) MEELZERENZEESURES (L
to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession HERFFRITBER) CEEFEMES
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief SIRHEEES
executive officer;

(5) have oversight of all matters relating to corporate governance; and (5) EBBEECEERIIBER &

©) being entitled to employ, at the Company’s expense, the services of  (6) BERTCERARBITEXB L ERIEE

such advisers as it deems necessary to fulfil its responsibilities.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued) BEEES (B)

The nomination committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The nomination
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

CODE OF CONDUCT ON DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities transactions and
dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) based on the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. The terms of the Code of Conduct are no less exacting than
the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct applies to all
the relevant persons as defined in the Code, including the directors of the
Company, any employee of the Company, or a director or employee of a
subsidiary or holding company of the Company who, because of such office
or employment, are likely to be in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors of the Company who have
confirmed in writing their compliance with the required standards set out in
the Code of Conduct during the year under review.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective communications
with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance such
communications, the Company provides information relating to the Company
and its business in its annual report and also disseminates such information
electronically through its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event
as it provides an opportunity for direct communications between the board
and its shareholders. All directors and senior management make an effort to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address shareholders'
queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of twenty
business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual general meeting of
the Company. The Company supports the CG Code’s principle to encourage
shareholders’ participation.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
CALLING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings may also be convened on requisition as
provided by Sections 566, 567 and 568 of the new Companies Ordinance. The
directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has received
requests to do so from shareholders of the Company representing at least
5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings. The request must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting; and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. The request may
be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form; and must
be authenticated by the person or persons making it. The directors must,
within twenty-one days after the date on which they become subject to
the requirement, call a general meeting which must be held on a date not
more than twenty-eight days after the date on which the notice convening
the meeting is given. If the directors fail to convene the general meeting,
the shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
call a general meeting. The meeting must be called for a date not more than
three months after the date on which the directors become subject to the
requirement to call a meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Shareholders holding not less than one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all
members having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting
to which the requisition relates; or not less than fifty members holding shares
in the Company on which there has been paid up an average sum, per
member, of not less than HK$2,000 may:

— put forward a proposal at a general meeting.

— circulate to other shareholders a written statement with respect to
the matter to be dealt with at a general meeting.

For further details on the shareholder qualifications, and the procedures and
timeline, in connection with the above, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 580 and 615 of the new Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS(Continued)

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING (Continued)

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring director
of the Company for election as a director at a general meeting at which
elections to the office of directors are to be considered. The following
documents must be submitted, no later than seven days before the date of
the general meeting, to the Company at its principal office at 9/F, Citimark
Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary: (a) the Director Nomination
Form with the required supporting documents, (b) the candidate’s resume;
(c) a written statement signed by the candidate of his/her willingness to
be elected together with (i) that candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; (i) the candidate’s written
consent to the publication of his/her personal data; and (iii) confirmation
that there are no grounds for his/her ineligibility and incompatibility to
act as a director and that he/she satisfies the integrity and, if applicable,
independence requirements under the applicable Listing Rules.

SENDING ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company'’s Registrar. Shareholders and the Investment community may at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Shareholders may also make enquiries
to the board by writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS

Ramon S. ANG Chairman

Carlos Antonio M. BERBA Deputy Chairman
Ramon G. TORRALBA Managing Director

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN Wen Mee, May (Michelle)
Teruyuki DAINO

Takashi HAYASHI

Roberto N. HUANG

Takeshi WADA

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po

NG Wai Sun

Reynato S. PUNO

Carmelo L. SANTIAGO

Adrian David LI Man-kiu, Alternate to Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po

Mr. Ramon S. ANG, 8sSME, aged 61, is the Chairman and a non-executive
Director of the Company. He has been appointed as the Chairman since 10
June 2005 and a non-executive Director of the Company since 27 November
1998. He is the Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Top Frontier
Investment Holdings, Inc., the ultimate parent company of the Company
(the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), Vice
Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer of San Miguel Corporation
("SMC") (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and
the Chairman of San Miguel Brewery Inc. Mr. Ang also holds the following
positions: the Vice Chairman of Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. (the shares of which
are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Vice Chairman of San Miguel
Pure Foods Company Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange), the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Petron
Corporation (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange),
the Chairman of Liberty Telecoms Holdings, Inc. (the shares of which are
listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and the Chairman of Petron Malaysia
Refining & Marketing Berhad (the shares of which are listed on the Kuala
Lumpur Stock Exchange). Mr. Ang is also the Chairman, President and/
or Director of various subsidiaries of SMC. He holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Mechanical Engineering from Far Eastern University.
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Mr. Carlos Antonio M. BERBA, MBA, Msc, BSc, aged 50, was appointed as
Deputy Chairman and Remuneration Committee member of the Company
on 27 August 2010. Mr. Berba has been a Director of the Company since 16
April 2007. He is the Managing Director of San Miguel Brewing International
Limited, a Director of Neptunia Corporation Limited (a controlling shareholder
of the Company), and a Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. He is also a
Commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Tbk (the shares of which are listed on
the Jakarta and Surabaya Stock Exchanges), a Director of San Miguel Beer
(Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Ltd., San Miguel Marketing
(Thailand) Limited, and various other subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Berba
has 29 years of experience in general management, finance, strategic
planning, and corporate structuring initiatives. Mr. Berba graduated from the
University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering. He later obtained a Master's degree in Business Administration
(with distinction) from the Wharton School of Business, University of
Pennsylvania and a Master's degree in Japanese Business Studies from
Japan America Institute of Management Science & Chaminade University of
Honolulu.

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, cra, 8sc, aged 58, was appointed as executive
Director and Managing Director of the Company with effect from 15
January 2013. Mr. Torralba was the Vice President and Manager for Export
Development of San Miguel Brewing International Limited (a subsidiary
of San Miguel Brewery Inc.) since 2007. He was also a Director of San
Miguel (Thailand) Company, Ltd. from 2006 to 2007 and Vice President and
Commercial Director of San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Ltd. from 2004
to 2007. He was also Assistant Vice President-Consultant for Guangzhou
San Miguel Brewery Co. Ltd., San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Co. Ltd. and
San Miguel (Baoding) Brewery Co. Ltd. of the Beer Division of San Miguel
Corporation from 2002-2004. Mr. Torralba graduated from Zamboanga
A.E. Colleges with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Commerce, major in
Accounting. He also attended the Management Development Program at
the Asian Institute of Management (International School of Business and
Management) in the Philippines in 1991. Mr. Torralba is a Certified Public
Accountant and a member of the Philippine Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

CHAN Wen Mee, May (Michelle), aged 50, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 11 March 2011. Ms. Chan serves as Managing Director
of A.S. Watson Industries Limited. She served as Managing Director of
Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited from 1 February 2006 to 31 October 2010
and served as Executive Deputy Managing Director of Hutchison Harbour
Ring Limited from 18 May 2005 to 31 January 2006. Ms. Chan has extensive
experience in managing property development and investment businesses in
mainland China. She also holds directorships in certain companies controlled
by Hutchison Whampoa Limited. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration.
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Mr. Teruyuki DAINO, vBA, BS, aged 54, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 20 May 2011. Mr. Daino is a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is the Executive Vice President
and Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. He is a Director of San Miguel
Brewing International Limited, San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited and San
Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Ltd. He was the Executive Financial Advisor of
San Miguel Brewery Inc. (April — October 2011) and served in the Kirin group
of companies in various capacities. Mr. Daino graduated from Hitotsubashi
University in 1983 with a Bachelor's degree in Economics and later obtained a
Master's degree in Business Administration from the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology in 1998.

Mr. Takashi HAYASHI, 8econ, aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 25 April 2014. Mr. Hayashi is the Executive
Financial Advisor of San Miguel Brewery Inc. He is also a Director of San
Miguel Brewing International Limited and San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited.
Mr. Hayashi served in the Kirin group of companies in various capacities.
Mr. Hayashi graduated from Keio University with a bachelor's degree in
Economics in 1989. He is a Chartered Member of the Securities Analysts
Association of Japan.

Mr. Roberto N. HUANG, V84, BSME, aged 66, has been appointed as non-
executive Director and a member of Remuneration Committee of the
Company with effect from 8 November 2012. Mr. Huang is a Director and
President of San Miguel Brewery Inc. He is also a Director of San Miguel
Brewing International Limited, and the Chairman and President of Iconic
Beverages, Inc., Brewery Properties Inc., and Brewery Landholdings, Inc. He
also served as the General Manager of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (2007-2009).
Mr. Huang graduated from Mapua Institute of Technology with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering and completed academic
requirements for a Master's degree in Business Administration from De La
Salle University. He also attended the Nagoya International Training Center,
Japan International Cooperation Agency Grant for Metal Works Engineering
and Numerical Control Machines course.

Mr. Takeshi WADA, aged 54, has been appointed as non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 19 April 2013. Mr. Wada is a Director and the
Executive Vice President of San Miguel Brewing International Ltd. He is also a
Director of San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Holdings (Thailand)
Ltd. and San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Ltd. He also served in the Kirin group
of companies in various capacities. Mr. Wada graduated from University of
Tokyo (Faculty of Law) in 1984.
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Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, GBM, GBS, OBE, JP, MA Cantab. (Economics &
Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier),
Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie),
Hon. DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITR, FCIArb, Officier de I'Ordre
de la Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising
Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d'Honneur,
aged 75, was appointed on 22 March 1991, is an independent non-executive
Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Sir David is
the Chairman and Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (listed in
Hong Kong). He is the Chairman of The Chinese Banks' Association, Limited
and the Honorary Chairman of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies.
He is also a member of the Council of the Treasury Markets Association. Sir
David is an independent non-executive Director of Guangdong Investment
Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, The Hongkong and
Shanghai Hotels, Limited, PCCW Limited, SCMP Group Limited and Vitasoy
International Holdings Limited (all listed in Hong Kong). Sir David was a
Director of CaixaBank, S.A. (listed in Spain), an independent non-executive
Director of China Overseas Land & Investment Limited and COSCO Pacific
Limited (both listed in Hong Kong), a non-independent non-executive Director
of AFFIN Holdings Berhad (listed in Malaysia) and a member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong from 1985 to 2012.

Mr. NG Wai Sun, aged 71, was appointed on 1 April 2001, is an independent
non-executive Director, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member
of the Audit committee and the Nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Ng is Chairman of Jibsen Capital (Holdings) Limited, a director of the Tung
Wah Group of Hospitals (2004-2006 and 2011-2013), Member of the Standing
Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference of
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, Ambassador of Friendship of Shandong
Province in China and an Executive Director of the Fujian Normal University.
In 2013, Mr. Ng was awarded "Bronze Bauhinia Star" by the Government of
the HKSAR and "Honorary Citizen of Shandong Province" by the Governor of
Shandong Province, China respectively.
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Mr. Reynato S. PUNO, vci, LLM, LLB, aged 74, has been appointed as
independent non-executive Director and Nomination Committee member of
the Company from 8 November 2012. Mr. Puno is an Independent Director
of San Miguel Corporation (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange) since 2011. Mr. Puno served as the Chief Justice of the
Philippine Supreme Court from 6 December 2006 until his retirement on 17
May 2010. He also served previously as an Associate Justice of the Supreme
Court, Associate Justice of the Court of Appeals and Appellate Justice of
the Intermediate Appellate Court. Mr. Puno completed his Bachelor of Laws
from the University of the Philippines in 1962, and has a Master of Laws
degree from the University of California in Berkeley (1968) and a Master in
Comparative Law degree from the Southern Methodist University, Dallas,
Texas (1967).

Mr. Carmelo L. SANTIAGO, 884, aged 72, is an independent non-executive
Director, Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is an
independent Director of the following companies: San Miguel Brewery Inc.,
San Miguel Pure Foods Company, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the
Philippine Stock Exchange), and Liberty Telecoms Holdings Inc. (the shares
of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). Mr. Santiago is the
founder and owner of several branches of Melo's restaurant in the Philippines
and a Director of Terbo Concept, Inc., a Philippine company engaged in retail
and food business. He was a Director of the Company from 27 February 2003
to 23 February 2005. Having over 39 years of directorate positions in various
companies in the Philippines and Hong Kong, Mr. Santiago has extensive
experience in foods, beverages, publication, properties, power and banking
industries.
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Mr. Adrian David LI Man-Kiu, mA(Cantab), MBA, LPC, JP, aged 41, was appointed
Alternate Director to Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po on 1 August 2002. Mr.
Li is Executive Director & Deputy Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia,
Limited. He is a member of the Guangdong Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference, a member of the All-China
Youth Federation, Deputy Chairman of the Beijing Youth Federation and a
Counsellor of the Hong Kong United Youth Association. He is a board member
of The Community Chest of Hong Kong and a member of the MPF Industry
Schemes Committee of the MPFA. Mr. Li is also an Advisory Committee
member of the Hong Kong Baptist University's School of Business, and a Vice
President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers' Council. Furthermore, Mr. Li
serves as a member of the Election Committees responsible for electing the
Chief Executive of the HKSAR and deputies of the HKSAR to the 12th National
People's Congress. He also sits on the Judging Panel of the 2015 BAI-Infosys
Finacle Global Banking Innovation Awards. Mr. Li is an independent non-
executive Director of Sino Land Company Limited, Tsim Sha Tsui Properties
Limited, Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited, China State Construction International
Holdings Limited, and COSCO Pacific Limited, all listed in Hong Kong. He is
an independent non-executive Director of Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical
(Group) Co., Ltd. (dual listed in Hong Kong and Shanghai) and a non-executive
Director of The Berkeley Group Holdings plc (listed in London). He also serves
as a member of the International Advisory Board of Abertis Infraestructuras,
S.A. (listed in Spain). He was previously an Alternate Director of AFFIN
Holdings Berhad (listed in Malaysia). Mr. Li holds a Master of Management
degree from the Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern University in
the US, and a Master of Arts degree and Bachelor of Arts degree in Law from
the University of Cambridge in Britain. He is @ member of The Law Society of
England and Wales, and The Law Society of Hong Kong. He is the elder son of
Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po.
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MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Ramon G. Torralba
Managing Director

John K.L. Cheung
Chief Finance Officer & Company Secretary

Raymond N.L. Cheng
General Sales Manager

Eric PK. Lam
Marketing Manager

Ric W.T. Yeung
Senior Manager — Logistics

C.K.Ho
Senior Manager — Operations

Steven Co
Senior Manager — Corporate Development

Edith Y.M. Ng

Senior Manager — Human Resources & Administration

Eric W.M. Cheung

Senior Manager — Information Technology (appointed on 1 January 2015)

Vincent K.M. Kwok

Managing Director, Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited

William B. Montalbo

Plant Manager/Brewmaster, San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company

Limited

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, Managing Director. Please refer to the Directors

section on page 53 for details.

Mr. John K.L. CHEUNG, mBA, B84, aged 51, Chief Finance Officer & Company
Secretary, joined the Company in 1997. Mr. Cheung is a member of the
Institute of Management Accountants. He has over 29-year solid experience
in finance and accounting in various industries. Mr. Cheung received a
Master's degree and a Bachelor's degree, both in Business Administration,

from Georgia State University, USA.
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ERENEEHARAT —E—NEFR

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES EERTHEEAE

Mr. Raymond N.L. CHENG, reDBA, 8Sc, aged 51, General Sales Manager,
joined the Company in 2013. Mr. Cheng has 29 years of working experience,
with more than 16 years of solid experience in leading sales department or
holding full P&L responsibilities.

Mr. Eric P.K. LAM, MBA, BA, aged 50, Marketing Manager, joined the Company
in 2008. Mr. Lam has over 21 years of solid experience in marketing in various
industries.

Mr. Ric W.T. YEUNG, 884, aged 51, Senior Manager — Logistics, joined the
Company in 1983. Mr. Yeung has more than 31 years of extensive experience
in supply planning, procurement and physical distribution.

Mr. C.K. HO, msc, DiP, aged 56, Senior Manager — Operations, joined the
Company in 1988. Mr. Ho has over 26 years of service with the Company. He
has extensive experience in the operations of beer production.

Mr. Steven CO, 84, aged 45, Senior Manager — Corporate Development,
joined San Miguel Brewing Group of San Miguel Corporation in 1994. Mr.
Co has more than 20 years of experience in business planning, business
research, corporate affairs and quality management in the Company.

Ms. Edith Y.M. NG, vBA, Dip, aged 52, Senior Manager — Human Resources
& Administration, joined the Company in 1989. Ms. Ng has gained over 28
years of experience in the fields of marketing, sales and human resources.

Mr. Eric W.M. CHEUNG, DBA, MBA, Msc, BSc, aged 52, Senior Manager —
Information Technology, joined the Company in 1993. Mr. Cheung has over
28 years of solid experience in the operations and management of the
Information Technology functions.

Mr. Vincent K.M. KWOK, MBA, BBA, aged 46, was appointed as the Managing
Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited on 1 January
2011. Mr. Kwok joined the Company in 2003. He has more than 23 years of
solid experience in marketing in various industries.

Mr. William B. MONTALBO, Bsche, aged 51, Plant Manager/Brewmaster of
San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited. Mr. Montalbo joined San
Miguel Brewery Inc. in 1988. He has extensive working experience in both
Domestic and International Operations. Mr. Montalbo graduated from De La
Salle University with a Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical Engineering.
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS #

R EX J~J~

nr = n\}l.c I:I

ki

Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except

per share data and number of personnel

BET-A=+—HIFE KSR

Win 8iB & 8 T ABIMGIABEE TILatE

Ten Year Review +E B8
2014 2013 2012
—F-mF —T=F —TCF
(restated)
(B&E5)
Turnover (1) R (1) 728,640 687,093 686,362
Profit/(loss) from operations (5) BH, (E18) (5) 41,635 28,674 243,428
Profit/(loss) for the year before RerEARYT Z
restructuring costs (5) &H|/ (E518) (5) 36,994 25,824 226,976
Restructuring costs (2) BHEAZ (2 — — —
Profit/(loss) for the year (5) &F, (F58) (5) 36,994 25,824 226,976
Taxes paid, including beer tax IR S BT 20,670 19,614 26,683
Cash dividends attributable to the year FEBERERKRE 7,472 3,736 —
Cash dividends per share (cents) FRIBERE () 2 1 —
Fixed assets and projects under development — EEBENZEEFIAR 621,309 635,893 654,678
Net worth (3), (4) F1E (3), 4) 571,949 543,678 511,836
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMER 116,888 106,631 104,724
Number of personnel (6) BT A& (6) 566 587 606
Q)] Turnover has been adjusted where discounts, beer duty and consumption tax have been set-off with the gross turnover.
2 Restructuring costs in 2007 represented restructuring activities of the Company, while restructuring costs in 2005 and 2006 represented restructuring
activities of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited.
(3) Net worth for the 2005 has been adjusted for a change in accounting policy for defined benefit retirement plans.
(4) Net worth for the 2005 to 2008 have been restated for a change in accounting policy for intangible assets.
(5) Profit from operations, profit before restructuring costs and profit for 2012 have been restated for the change in accounting policy for employee
benefits.
(6) Number of personnel represents actual headcount as of the last working day of the year.
|
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS £&& &35t #r

Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except HE+-_A=1+—HLLFE  BESK
per share data and number of personnel AP EIE & B TABIMNILABEE T ILat &
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—E—% —E-TF —ETNF —ETN\F —ETEF —ETREF —ETRHF
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(BE5) (B575) (B55) (BE5)
683,879 589,322 696,824 753,375 754,833 826,817 806,909
(48,365) (770,605) (331,879) (301,033) 4,962 (10,625) 10,519
(68,638) (773,987) (343,052) (258,155) 50,397 (12,216) (2,692)
= — — — (310,220) (93,159) (63,295)
(68,638) (773,987) (343,052) (258,155) (259,823) (105,375) (65,987)
36,009 42,020 68,877 102,485 140,831 127,007 141,219
— = = — — — 3,736
= — — — — — 1
389,671 398,011 1,087,198 1,379,561 1,496,910 1,769,377 1,838,164
297,223 391,474 1,169,484 1,490,925 1,751,565 1,975,617 2,062,000
101,023 96,719 99,341 91,656 105,510 118,836 128,539
635 732 766 766 838 768 1,151
(1) EEEO T - BAR R RBEL A o
) TR FERAY NEARRIZEREY Mo RAFER SR AF2EAAI EEMNENEBERAR ZERHEE -
©) AFEZHEC EERFR TR 2 SRt HCR S e % -
(4) AFEZTT\FZFECHEREE SFBCRSESY -
(5) Z%%ﬁ%ﬂ Rt EAREZ 2 BAR T ——F 2 RN EHEESRT 2 BURBEE
(6) BT ASERFERE B IERAZERETIHE -
I
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT &&=+

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE_T—NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHEETE)
2014 2013
—2-mE —EF=F
Note $'000 $'000
B 5T Ft Tt
Turnover =E 2 3 728,640 687,093
Cost of sales SHE A (416,883) (396,798)
Gross profit EZ ] 311,757 290,295
Other revenue EH A 4 39,536 42,654
Other net income H U %8R 58 4 15,822 396
Selling and distribution expenses SHER SRS (230,005) (212,303)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (85,217) (83,241)
Other operating expenses Hih & &R (10,258) (9,127)
Profit from operations wEBF 41,635 28,674
Finance costs W58 A 5(@a) (4,408) (6,391)
Profit before taxation BRI Z A 5 37,227 22,283
Income tax (charge)/credit iER (ZE) A 6 (233) 3,541
Profit for the year FEREF 36,994 25,824
Attributable to: FE{ETE -
Equity shareholders of the Company ¥iN/N Tﬁéﬁ{lh*ﬁ/\ 9 35,323 26,010
Non-controlling interests JEFE RS RE RS 1,671 (186)
Profit for the year FERF 36,994 25,824
Earnings per share EREF
Basic (cents) EA (L) 11() 9 7
Diluted (cents) a (L) 11(b) N/A FE A N/A & A

The notes on pages 70 to 134 form part of these financial statements. Details of  ZRE70 = 134 B 2 KB 3 57K ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁz—gﬁ
dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit {5 « REE AR REZEIEE A 2R 2 5B H 7AW
for the year are set out in note 24(b). FL24(0) °

—
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4 & 2 HEUNEF

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE—T—WE+-A=+—HILEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (CABHEETE)
2014 2013
—F-mE —F=f
Note $'000 $'000
iz F T
Profit for the year FERF 36,994 25,824
Other comprehensive income FEHMB2ERE (REEE)
for the year (after tax) 10
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to #5345k & &E x5 A 1B a5 HE B
profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of: PEH =5 :
— financial statements of subsidiaries — MEEINFB A BB R
outside Hong Kong FrEAZEH = 1,282 (11,505)
— monetary items that form part of the net — BB AR EE R E A A
investment in subsidiaries outside ZEHEMESEIEE FTEA
Hong Kong ZEHERR (1,230) 11,387
52 (118)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 0SS # T & FEZHH A 1Bz 6918 B
Actuarial gains and losses of defined TERER AR IRGT Bl 2 BE R
benefit retirement plan REE (1,517) 6,136
(1,465) 6,018
Total comprehensive income for the year F£EZHEKEAEE 35,529 31,842
Attributable to: BEfRaT :
Equity shareholders of the Company KARE=FEA 33,747 32,971
Non-controlling interests SRR A 1,782 (1,129)
Total comprehensive income for the year S£E2mEIKZHELE 35,529 31,842

The notes on pages 70 to 134 form part of these financial statements.

FIRB 705 134 B 2 &AM AR B2 — 8

,T/'\ °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %r& Bt #& AR 3=

At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=—A=1+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABREEE)

2014 2013
—E—-F —T—=%F
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Ft Tt
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEE&E 12(a)
— Property, plant and equipment — Y - MESRERE 452,050 461,316
— Investment properties — KRB 82,750 85,356
— Interests in leasehold land held for — EKEZHETEAMBEAR
own use under operating leases MR E RS 86,509 89,221
621,309 635,893
Intangible assets mAE 13 5,187 5,188
626,496 641,081
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 15 51,425 58,787
Trade and other receivables EUE 5 Kk H b BRIE 16 82,639 87,172
Amounts due from holding companies FEUWIZE AR A &)
and fellow subsidiaries PAEEA YN E3EE 17 11,490 8,702
Amount due from a related company FEUT RE:E A RIBRIE 17 665 —
Bank deposits RITER 18 27,054 20,168
Cash and cash equivalents RekERHEEER 18 108,574 112,746
281,847 287,575
current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R H Ath BRIE 19 (111,818) (138,446)
Loan from an intermediate holding company AR A Rl 2 B3R 20 (50,904) (12,723)
Amounts due to holding companies FE TR A ]
and fellow subsidiaries KRR B AR ERE 17 (5,414) (17,235)
Amounts due to related companies FENRAE A RIBRIE 17 (5,671) (5,139)
(173,807) (173,543)
Net current assets REBEERE 108,040 114,032
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

,.71./:.\ B AR R

At 31 December 2014

—=—NF+=-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M%Mﬁr:ﬁ)
2014 2013
= ki —T=F
Note $'000 $'000
Bt Tt T
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBEME 734,536 755,113
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Loan from an intermediate holding company R AT ZER 20 (139,985) (190,837)
Retirement benefit liabilities EW@%IJEE 22(a) (20,115) (17,660)
Deferred tax liabilities EERERE 23(a) (2,487) (2,938)
(162,587) (211,435)
NET ASSETS BEEZFE 571,949 543,678
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAR &
Share capital: nominal value R - E{E 24(c) — 186,785
Other statutory capital reserves HiEAEEANFEE — 65,739
Share capital and other statutory f& A R E fhETE
capital reserves BARGEE 252,524 252,524
Other reserves HAtbfHE 347,386 320,897
Total equity attributable to equity RATERZE AEGER
shareholders of the Company 599,910 573,421
Non-controlling interests Bl (27,961) (29,743)
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 571,949 543,678
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 February 2015. &HEFER _—_FT—AF A+ ERHEREET
gﬁe °

L

Ramon S. Ang
Director

BEEX
EF

The notes on pages 70 to 134 form part of these financial statements.

Ramon G. Torralba
Director

HEE
BF

FIMETOE 1M E 2 RBEMERR B IRK 2 — &

{/\ °
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BfF#& AR R 3%

At 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZT—NF+=A=+—H
(LA7SHERTE)

2014 2013
—E—-F —T—=%F
Note $'000 $'000
Bt Ft Tt
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEEE 12(b)
— Property, plant and equipment — Y - MESRERE 390,302 397,610
— Interests in leasehold land held for —EREHETEAMBEEN
own use under operating leases FHE T 56,690 58,435
446,992 456,045
Intangible assets EmREE 13 4,781 4,781
Investments in subsidiaries I8 A Rl RS 14 628,842 624,952
1,080,615 1,085,778
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 15 37,326 45,811
Trade and other receivables FEUNE 5 K A M ARIE 16 74,155 74,186
Amounts due from holding companies FEUWIZE AR A &)
and fellow subsidiaries PAEES =N S 17 7,759 8,697
Amount due from a related company FEU RE:E A RIBRIE 17 665 —
Bank deposits RITER 18 27,054 20,168
Cash and cash equivalents RekERHEEER 18 82,501 73,115
229,460 221,977
current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R H Ath BRIE 19 (56,049) (66,492)
Loan from an intermediate holding company FRNERR A Rl 2 B3R 20 (50,904) (12,723)
Amounts due to holding companies FES TR A ]
and fellow subsidiaries KRR B AR ERE 17 (1,807) (7,578)
Amounts due to related companies FENRAE A RIBRIE 17 (2,889) (1,780)
(111,649) (88,573)
Net current assets REBEERE 117,811 133,404
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BA#&AR R 3R

At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=—A=1+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2014 2013
—F-mE —EF=F
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Tt Tt
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABARS 1,198,426 1,219,182
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Loan from an intermediate holding AR AT ZER
company 20 (139,985) (190,837)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHT B A RBRIE 21 (558,013) (558,092)
Retirement benefit liabilities RARENEE 22(a) (20,115) (17,660)
(718,113) (766,589)
NET ASSETS EEBE 480,313 452,593
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRARR & 24(a)
Share capital: nominal value AR A — 186,785
Other statutory capital reserves HAtEE B A B — 65,739
Share capital and other statutory AR e b EE
capital reserves BARGEE 252,524 252,524
Other reserves HAtw 227,789 200,069
TOTAL EQUITY e 480,313 452,593

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 17 February 2015. &HESER T —AF AT A#EREET
B o

L

Ramon S. Ang BEY Ramon G. Torralba HHEE
Director ZF Director Ed
The notes on pages 70 to 134 form part of these financial statements. HRETOE1M B 2 S EMF AR EHRE 2 — B
1/\ °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY a8 EZ & B &R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_T—NF+-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RAREREEAELHG
Exchange Non-
Share Share Capital ~ fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
EXRD

Bx  ROHEE  EARG e UERG A FEREE  ERAR

(note 24(c) ~ (note 24()()  (note 24(d)il)  (note 24(cl(i)
(PHzE24(0))  (PEE24()) (s 240ci) (AifsE 24(chiin)
Note $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
i T T T T T A L T
Balance at 1 January 2013 R=%-=f
-A-R&8 186,785 65,739 112970 80,305 94,651 540,450 (28,614) 511,836
Changes in equity for 2013: “E-CEEREE:
Profit for the year ERRT = — — — 26,010 26,010 (186) 25,804
Other comprehensive income £t 2wl 10 — — — 825 6,136 6,961 (943) 6,018
Total comprehensive income FREANGER
for the year = = = 825 32,146 3297 (1,129) 31,842
Balance at 31 December 2013 ~ R=E-=f
and 1 January 2014 T=A=t-H
k=2-m%
-B—-R& 186,785 65,739 112,970 81,130 126,797 573,421 (29,743) 543,678
Changes in equity for 2014: “E-MERRET
Profit for the year EEEA - - - - 35,323 35,323 1,671 36,994
Other comprehensive income A 2EkE 10 - - - (59) (1517) (1,576) 11 (1.465)
Total comprehensive income FEEANGRE
for the year - - - (59) 33,806 33,747 1,782 35,529
Dividends approved in respect -UHERE
of the previous year pi 2) - - - - @736 (3736) - (3736)
Transition to no-par value RZE-IF
fegime on 3 March 2014 “F=R&%
ZEAEE 24(0) 65,739 (65,739) - - - - - -
Dividends declared in respect T BERER
of the current year B 24(0) - - - - (3,736) (3,736) - (3,736)
Unclaimed dividends forfeited AREL B - - - - 214 214 - 214
Balance at 31 December 2014 ~ R-E-M#E
TZR=T-H&& 252,524 - 112,970 81,071 153,345 599,910 (27,961) 571,949
The notes on pages 70 to 134 form part of these financial statements. HIRETOE1M B 2 SEMF AARMEHRE 2 —26
3o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT & RERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-_ZT—NF+-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHEETE)
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
Note $'000 $'000
Bt T T
Operating activities REXEK
Cash generated from operations EZETE 7 IS MA 18(h) 35,236 67,262
Income tax FriS %t
— Tax paid outside Hong Kong — BB W (62) (31
Net cash generated from BEEKEZEESRA
operating activities HBEE 35,174 67,231
Investing activities REEK
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets BABREEE (11,292) (5,009)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEBEEEMRSRIA 1,598 870
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets L EEEEMSHIA — 505
Increase in bank deposits SRITIFFRIE M (6,886) (20,168)
Interest received 2 U FI 8 1,518 688
Net cash used in investing activities REXB 2RSSR FE (15,062) (23,114)
Financing activities mMEEE
Repayment of loan from an intermediate EEPNMERARZER
holding company (12,726) —
Proceeds from loan from an intermediate Frigch MEAR AR 2 B
holding company — 203,623
Repayment of bank loans EEIRITER — (231,939)
Interest paid BAFLE (4,253) (4,394)
Dividends paid BERIRE (7,216) -
Net cash used in financing activities BMETH2REREFE (24,195) (32,710)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RekERRELER
and cash equivalents ZIFEE R (4,083) 11,407
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BZzEE
at 1 January FEFHRSEHEE 18(a) 112,746 100,904
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes Ex#E) /& (89) 435
Cash and cash equivalents R+-A=t+t—HZEE
at 31 December FEFBHRSEEEE 18(a) 108,574 112,746

The notes on pages 70 to 134 form part of these financial statements.

JIRE70E134 B
5 o

ZEEME AT BHEKZ — 8
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R = HizE

70

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies 1 FESHBK

(@) Statement of compliance (@) ®<rEH
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all R EHRER BB EE 2 BB EHRE
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”), which B ([BEPEMELER]]) MR- [FE
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial BRI | — B ER S ASE
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Mz A ERNERE S ERELER - &
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public BERTER ([HAGFTER]) kRE - 5%
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong NREFRBIREBANTHED ZRTE - BIE
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, FEBRNAED (F622F) Fo3F [1RA K
which for this financial year and the comparative period continue to be FBitl 2iBEERREZEEZ AT (HR&IE
those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in BIMIR 11 E 76 87 1&) » BN FUEFIAAR
accordance with transitional and saving arrangements of Part 9 of the new BAERF & N LL B R 4 48 AR RS A 5 HED)
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which (BRE) ZBE - ZEMBHRENETER
are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These BMERSHAER ARG FmHEE ([ LR
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions Bl ZEAEERT  AEEHEAZTIES
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange TR ENT -
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company is set out
below.
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first S et et EBnE T2 EK B2
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period EEPEREED TR AEBRAANT Y
of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides information on any A e HEE R ERS T HREER K - &
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these RPEA I S EANAER 2 F R ERIATS 5
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group and the REARAT BB B E
Company for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these ERAB SRR AR - BRI E RN T
financial statements. 1(c) »

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) #mBEBEHEK AR
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December HE_Z-—MNE+_A=1t—BLFEZ4%
2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as AUBHRREEBEARAREMB AR (5
the “Group”). BIAREH]) -
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial BTSSR R TY AR P AR B iR iR B -
statements is the historical cost basis.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS requires IR A BB RE LR MBI TEREENK
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect EREErNSVEBRERAREE &
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, g A BLFE X RO SRS SRR R HI T~ (HET M RER
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are HRE - et R BBRRIVBEBELR X
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed ZEREEEBEEL B ENEMERM
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form B EERMAYHEEMREL TEAS
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and AMEEHBERAEELNAANER - &
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results P4 Rl e B B2 EhET -
may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing Het AR ReFER - et bt
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in ITIEETR - BBRI R EZRE - Bligslg
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in BT AR BB Tv 23 E
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both HA MR TR ERRE) - BIFE(SET ROR PR EARIRERR o
current and future periods.
Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that ThER R 2 7 B T R A5 E RIS BT VE A B
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of ARERE T —FE 2 EHRRBEEKRH
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2. R e SRR EHIIRM 2
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EEENEERARAT —F-NFEFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1. EEEBER (@

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EHBXNEH
The HKICPA has issued the following amendment to HKFRSs that are first ST AS DB U TNEERT 2 BB
effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company: FEAMEMER - BRI AEE R ARFT

AR R EAR AR o
— Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for — EFeERFE 36 (1BE]) [FE2 A
non-financial assets BEMWEISE 15

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is REENW REAERR A EIE MR E
not yet effective for the current accounting period. The impacts of the MEVFTER SR R - IRANAERT BB I T H
adoption of the amended HKFRS is discussed below: R 2 R
Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures ERSTERE365E (B FeRmEE
for non-financial assets AR E S E
The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure requirements for BB G ERE 365 (1BET) BB RIER
impaired non-financial assets. Among them, the amendments expand the FEELRMEBEMBBEER - H » ZEETEKX
disclosures required for an impaired asset or cash-generating unit the BREEESRCEEEMERAABER
recoverable amount of which is based on fair value less costs of disposal. HERAZATKEISEBNIFERE
The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact on these ARAEERAF E R BEFE W EERK
financial statements because no impairment loss for non-financial assets BREemEE ZREERE  BERMNEFTR
has been recognised or reversed in the current or preceding years. BEAER 7B BEHRREBRTE -

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) MEBARRFERER

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

MIE AR RAKBATIES 2 HEE - EAKE
ER2EERZEBEMAEXZALY
2 (0% R 8 AL R R DA R B S BRRO L
71 AIARBEZGHIZER - B EARER
DEREENE  EZE (AREMEMT
FrisBey) BERER -

RHEB A B Z R & i E E R R G AL
BFBHMERA - EEESBRRIERILE - K&
BEARRZEzER  RHEATRE - A
RZSMES 2 EMAREREN - TIRRE
RAMBHREEBIEE - WEREER
AEBARRZHAZRGMEL Z REBRE
18 TAKREIRBFIER 2 A o

RN EEIFE RN EERERN AR
BV B A R MASREREZERRH
EEREMAMMNGE  HLEEBE LHZ
ERGELNAVBRBERNEEER
HNEBRMXAH  KEAEENQAEE
HARFENE R B A HREEFENAIGLL
DIMER IR R o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1  EEEBER @

(d) subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued) (d) MBARARFZRER (B
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement IR RS A MR R AR B 2
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to PR BN BB A EBREEE DR - 3F
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the TR AR EEEANER R EBEAR
results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income BWRERAD I BIFERER LA HFERA
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as NARFRERE A 2H - BIEERERSTE
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for ABEOERARHA S LB BREMN
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of 13 (m) REBENMEEME) RERE FFIR
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other MEE2VAFBAEGE -
contractual obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position in accordance
with notes 1(l) or (m) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss REBNHEB A REZR 2 BB R3] 1 H
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments HEEANRZ G BEFZNIBZHAE - RE
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests PHRERTE T PR NI IR s Ve HH T B A
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but KRR R EE) - (B TRERER

no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a IMRAREELEM BRG] ZEHE - ZIEX
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or SRIEREZMB AT 2R - 18R
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former R MERB= o HAARNEBEFRE 2RI H B
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and NRFAE R IR T RIEGER R EER
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial ZEBSRMEENBERAZ ALME AR
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment B NT LRI T PR IEERA
in an associate or joint venture. (wni@p) o

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a EARRBZHERARA - HB A REZEIA
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)). BARREEE (RHEE10)) 5IE -

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) W% HBERZME
The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost MR IEARANRERMEEE (RN
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)), with 10)) FIBRSON - AT EOMDEE - MBS M EREBIEK
the exception of construction in progress which is stated at cost less any B REHTE RREBESIR (RMFE10) °
impairment losses (see note 1())).

— land classified as being held under finance leases and buildings — DEAMEHRETN LM EME (R
thereon (see note 1(Q); MEE1(Q)

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land — ERERKEHE TR i FREH
classified as held under operating leases (see note 1(g)), and WE (RWE1Q) &

— other items of plant and equipment. — EAbies SRR o

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of SREEHEYE  KEREBEEE ZAE

property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between DHERSRIEFEUARERERREEZ

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are ER o WRMmEES L EBEIBRTER -

recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEBEE®
(e)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (e) W% HB/BRIE (H

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant WE TG - MR LR AR E G5

and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any, using the S%EBE (E) r EE T EsHr] B F

straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows: FBIABEAEETE MiMisy -

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is — HEARERE T LR KREMRE
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease. EHMEE -

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the — EHELH FNOMERREREE
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful B E AT el EAFH (CMHBARR T
lives, being no more than 50 years. F) MEPEOHETE -

— Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 4 t0 50 years — HEE - BB - MEERTF

EEE

— Motor vehicles 4107 years — E=X] PFEZE+4F

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until ERIRREESTKNMAIRAFERI TS5

such time when the assets are substantially completed and ready for use. IRITE -

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different BIEYE  BERREZSBHETRLN

useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis AIEAFE - WIE B B 2R A IRE IR

between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. BNl - MmEEHBIEREBIITE -

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed REBBGFERTEE Y A[ERAFER N E T

annually. fBE (A) -

()  Investment properties ) BEYWHE

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned or held BEMEABRRESWAR S AERIEE

under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/or for miERSAREHE#EZ (AKEE1E) IHEaH

capital appreciation. THIRBEE ©

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation B Y IR AR 25T E KOBEE BB

and impairment losses (see note 1()). Depreciation is calculated to write (RBIFE0) o FrE&E T E W H R AR E

off the cost of investment properties, less their estimated residual values, SHEME (E)  EREMEESRNE[ETA]

if any, using the straight-line method over the shorter of the unexpired FRAFH (THBA TF) ME P& AR
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 BRAFTEmMEE

years.

Both the useful lives of the investment properties and their residual WEYEMAERAFEHRERSER (10E)

values, if any, are reviewed annually. EIRFIEL R -

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described 12 & W)W 2 YA IR B 5 10000 At 75

in note 1(r)(i. NEHE -

(8) Leased assets (g) WHEEE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

i A SR B E B R B R E MR BB
N—FH—FINFEMERX B EEEX
ZHEEZEN AZZHE (B—R X5
—ZINZZHEK) REENBEEE - ZE
EDRB R AR EMEL - MERE
HRBEBRE AR
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1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEHEE®

(8) Leased assets (Continued) (g HEEE ®

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group () HEFFREZEENIE

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the HRASENHEERENEE  WEBHEE

Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as BHAEEEMNBARIS D ERMLDRER EAR

being held under finance leases. 58 FHAEFEGEHBAUARNEHERS -

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards WARSHEBEEEZ TERRMA =EE 2 H

of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the EEE  YRKERSE - ATBRIN

following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet — RERAMEEENKEHEMES
the definition of an investment property is classified as investment WO EYE - MER BRI
property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as EVE  ZHESUAMEREAR
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a finance )53
lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, where the — BIEEEHEEAaRAMBARN LTI
fair value cannot be measured separately from the fair value ERREBEEHEERBIFTREEMR
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is Bt FHNEEN AL BESHET
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the 2 2ERAEEREEEREAR
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these MIEBEBEEEMEARBLEERLOFE
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was A BI{ERIER - sttt E - AENF
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the previous IRREEAREB & RET LA - 5
lessee. WRTEMEAZEFE o

(i)  Operating lease charges iy K&EHE

— Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating — MAEBIRELEHEEFREE IR
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or R 2 BT R BRTP S E
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by EHEHATRE 2 SFTHIRISE - AT
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit B E SRR EARTER RS
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments FHENREN SO EBETE
made. R o

— The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is — AT E A T MU A A2 1R
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease HEEHENNEE - REBES
term. Impairment losses are recognised in accordance with the LRI 10) WS EHBUR R IER o
accounting policy set out in note 1()).

(h) Intangible assets (hy ®\EEEE

Intangible assets represent acquired trademarks and club debentures and PIE N @ P ERE 5 LA AR R B B 1R 1) BR

are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1()). (RHFEG)) ©

These intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are ZEBLEEVESRY  AAHAFEHAFH

assessed to be indefinite and are tested annually for impairment (see note WG AT EE RS FAERENR (R

1(1)). FE0) ©

The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite B EAEZAEAFHIRENERETTF

is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances BRI AT AR R BESIFZEEY T

continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. EFERFH T HER -

[ ]

74



EEENEERARAT —F-NFEFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEEE®
(i)  Impairment of assets (i) EERE

(i) Impairment of receivables (i) W IERRE

Receivables that are stated at amortised cost or at cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments,

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

— An impairment 10ss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets) for receivables carried at amortised
cost or discounted at the current market rate of return for similar
financial assets for receivables stated at cost, where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment 10ss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables included within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade receivables directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

REER AT R 2 RYIRTAN S A E R ETT
2R AEERDAEBERBRELIR
B o BENTERESEATAEERIN
—HESZRBRFANATBRIE

— EBRAERNTBEEEE

— BRAH  PlinERIEEHEENS
RS FIE

— ERAETHESEOCUBEERE
FIREHIR &

—  IERM - W5 RERERREN
BEAMRBHEBABTAEE -

WA REBRERRELIRE  ERERS
BT R AR

—  REEBRZEERIERGARE
REenB8REZERAE  BLEH
SREEZRENERME (AEL
BEGERE T E O EERA )&
TR (WARTEBEAN) - IA
BBHAANI Rz EMEERRR
BORRIEE (T rBHIRM1E
M) FORBRIBILEERE - TIRE
RERTE o MMFHAREZ 2 BEEN
ARBR 2 REIRIBEZEEERBRIE
HHEUNEENBERRLR -

R ERE RS RN ERABRD - M
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@O - MO NMSEREE ZREE
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B R RRPMEHE - ARSI ARBREE
FABMSEERED - HRERE A2
ERERDHRNEE  MSERERT &
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1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEREE®
(i)  Impairment of assets (Continued) (iy EERE @
(i)  Impairment of other assets (i) HEERE
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of REREEE AR RINEER - LA
each reporting period to identify indications that the following assets may ATHNEEREGD HIBENZAIEHERZ
be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists WEESEE M ELEIRD
or may have decreased:
— Property, plant and equipment; — YZE - HEER R
— Investment properties; — WEME
— Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating — ERESHETEAMBANHEE Ty
leases; W
— Intangible assets; and — mIVEE Rk
— Investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of — RAR BB AR R R BB B A )4
financial position. o
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. MEFEEMEBRTR - BlgHstEEN
In addition, for intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the el 458 o N B BT A E BTN
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any BILEEMS @ AEBS@TFEGsTERUE
indication of impairment. R MEEESAEMAENR -
— Calculation of recoverable amount — FTEAKRE S5
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value BEZAKO¢ESEEEFERE
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, RAEEMETZESHE - RAHHER
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present BER @@ B%RBATAIE =Gt
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market MAKRBSRERERE - %8R
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to KE R R THIS S I TRl G 2 BB
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely HEENZEE BERR - WEE
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount W AR BEAT K BUE L E A E B T BRER
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash Be&Re MBI HRIGRESREY
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). BNMERIEE (BVBREVR © 8 41) 3k
ETErE £ -
— Recognition of impairment losses — TR E R B
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying BEEE (NEMBNIRSELRS
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it i) MEEEEBAE W R < - A
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses SHEWBEFRERREEE - ptBEEE
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to SEBRAERNRERSE AR E
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group I (SkazHElR) EEMNRMERL
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an PloE - MEEREETERL 2R
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs REREH AR BERBESEKASRSE
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use. FREE (BgEEE) -
— Reversals of impairment losses — B eUR E 18
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable fis FA ARE BT AJ U Bl & B8 2 (T HH 3R AT
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable B B EREEE -
amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying e 2 R EBEERNMEATFEL
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss AERREBEMEF] 2 EEZRE
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses B - O 2 BERETRERER 2
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are FEFFAEBGEP -
recognised.
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1  EEEBER @

(i) Inventories h ==
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. GEERAS A SIFEME 2 REEG

&

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises A AINBE R AL E - WEIEMAR
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in B « IR R 8717 & 2 BUR I i Zh B
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. ARSLPTEE 4 2 B AR o
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of AR FEAREERS 2T EER AT
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs AR AR M AR E AN o
necessary to make the sale.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is REEFER  ZEFE2ERESRRE
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is U HAREIPER X - FEMURE ] 2IR%
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable B BEERMEFE BB MRS E R
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the RA%5IVER S o (Rl m] B 3R R (E 18 hn M B B B Y
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any A7 B R E & R EE ] 25 A B R P R
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of TH e
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

(k)  Receivables (k) FEWRE
Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at FERFIERE A BERER - HERNE
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for BRF AL E A AR B R IZERARES
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1()), except where the receivables BAME (RMFE10) - HwWE B R RIE
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed AETFHEEATBETECMAETEERENHR
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such BEF - sBEIREZENKE - B{ERI ©
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of EZEERT » EWERIERR AR REED
doubtful debts. BERESIER -

()  Interest-bearing borrowings () MEER
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less W EBREVIZR AR BERELR S ERE
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest- R o REERE - M EEFIREHEKAIE
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference B ERE R AN Z RSB FKRERE U
between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being BERAEEEBRERER o
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(m) Payables (m) FENFE
Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at FERZTESEVIRALBERER - HEE
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in SHRKANHIME - MEWRRIREZE T K » AliRA A
which case they are stated at cost. HIME ©

(n) cash and cash equivalents (n) HERZERBRLHER

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

RekFRREBERERTESF R &R
1T R EA I TSR 2 8 i SR A R d 1
BZIRE - MZBHRERER AT A E A
ReeRABEAEERR ITRABAR=
BARNRMZILERR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEHEE®

(0) Employee benefits (o) 1EEREF

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined (i) EHEEREMN R EREER
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined BRINFTEIZEHFREF S FRIEL - BEHFF
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are R~ EREFEWRGE 2 BRI AEEFTE
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by Y IEERTIEINAEB EEIZHEBDR
employees. B2 FEERR o

(ii)  Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (i) TEEEFERNREEIZEE
The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement AEFBGETHEEFNEARS2NFAERIE
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount 8 TR MB & B PR O RIS (5T H
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service BEER) R SRS B F AR EH
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine WREWIREMASIEEN AT EE - 6
the present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The STERAERNBEMUTE B ERAE
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit 17 BfEHEREAERET KA - BHER
credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, BERRMEA ATE S 8 & R R A
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits HRRIBAEANLENRIRE -
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
Service cost and net interest expense or income on the net defined EREN B ENEEFENRBEKATNFE
benefit liability or asset are recognised in profit or loss and allocated by TH BB FREEERRER - WikHER
function as part of “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses” BEATHEERA] [HE D HEAY]
or "administrative expenses”. Current service cost is measured as the [TTHEY ] B—%5 - BEREKANZSIHE
increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting AEREMREFEANEREENEENE
from employee service in the current period. When the benefits of a plan BIZHNZETE - BT2IM AN HIREFH
are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed EEFTMERE BEEBBATREREEEAN
benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on FE)I D kLRSS RIEES - @ TERT
curtailment, is recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier 2D ok MR B AR RS S SRR R SR AR AR AN ok
of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and when related FHRENE (WREEAE)  NEZRNER
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised. Net interest ABEH - BIRFI B HeE I A FEE 2B ER
expense or income for the period is determined by applying the discount LY ETREN AEMEANTE R E
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning AR EREEMNEaEEEFEMET  FTH
of the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The MITREERBEEHEASEMAEAE
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality HIR A NEE D EEHFNRE ARG
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the RETF o
Group’s obligations.

(iliy  Termination benefits (i) ARILEFEERN
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can KRILEBENAS ANEBREE LEN IR
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises HNETHERAEAMABIELFRIEHE
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits. B (AR E BAE) o

(p) Income tax (p) FRSH
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred REEZZERBERNAHBEREEREE
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax ENBEZEE « NEAKRIBENELEREBEE
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent RBEZEB$HEERZPER  EEFTER
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or HEmemlasEERERTERNIER -
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised Bl 5> RIFE Efth 2 E U 2 kb 2 R R ©
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the NERFI A TR IE AR EE R R A - SR
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the HEHEBMETERAMEIE 2R E 2 A
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous FENTIE YheFEE 2 ENHEBEELE
years. (OEEEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FESHEE @)
(p) Income tax (Continued) (p)  FrE® ()

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities and all
deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination) and temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

BEXERAEERBBENIDHREEERAE
BERFBIMEAZ EmENREREMESL
ZRAFR R ERT 2 E R =R o RIEHIAE
EE TR A R KRB 2 RIS R 1R S R R 2
B R FTESE

BETERZASMER  MBERLEHEARAR
FMORFETIAE E (AR EAR A se A EIH AR
KRIERTUEFE BR) 198 T IAMER - 8¢
A FER A R E R AL ZIREHIA
BEZARERDUEHN - BEEEDRARE
AMEREEMELE 2 AIMREREZR
MR 5 22 BRZR A [R] — B 95 B K A [P P AR A
EREH TRV EHEQAHRERE
B RATE O AR RIAREMEL 2
MRS < [F—HEARED - REEREE
RRE R ZEA A RERARBBHIAER
KBS PrEL 2 REHIAEER XA AR
R - AR E AR — B AR R R
AN BERAR  WRMAA N ARARER
e 2 XEHE (—RAZER) niEm - Alg
FUAEEA

MARERAEER BB DBHSMER
REPHEELETAMBRE - RRVHER
WEZERTRERTENZEERAB
(EXEEBEH 2 —#0) EEZERKE
AR MRNNBARZIRES M T
R PUERVEEM 5 245 B A 8
B - RRA ARSI R RS
PR - Skt AN Z R 5 BIZAA R BE R AR 2R
BEERR -

BEEMRIA ERERVREER BB ZRE
BEZEMERI NN - KAREEAM
FIERAR LRI E 2R EFH  BEHAE
ERBELAREARE -

BIERBEEZ ERENNEEEBETE
B - W5 3 RT B B 5 2 B BR A5 VI A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEsBEE®
(p) Income tax (Continued) (p) FrE® (@)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, R RBEEMGHARMEZEHER HHT
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax T~ WEATEE - REAFRLEMEHEE
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets REERN B ANEBR B EAFEITHEEARE
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally TS EEREAEHMEHEaE  YAKE
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities AT S AEERIB R T » A A A B 52
and the following additional conditions are met: HFIRE TSI ALE
— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the — AEFSHEEMNEE « KXAFIHA
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset SEFEIRFREELE - A
and settle the liability simultaneously; or R EEMEEZEaE &
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to — ELEFEHEEMEE  EHEEM
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either: BENERR—FSEBRATES
— B METIS T A A -
— the same taxable entity; or — [A— PRI < 3K
— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in — TEMERTIEE - ELE
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or BT EIETEHE KRBIRLEA
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to "HAaEREBEIRTRM
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax 150 & B AT LA Bl ) & 4R R
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously. REAR - IRFREEETRA
EIFTIS H& E B B4 HA BT
FWaE  KRRFEHRZE
EMBEZBE -
(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities () EBERIREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount IMRA DB AREB B B LR SRR
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation EESETER  AMEHeEREELE
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of MR ERING - A AEH AT S/ fEH 5T
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable B AARISAERFEemZEE s EER
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, EREEFRER MR EBRHEELR
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to BTt T E X BRI IREET 51 24 o
settle the obligation.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be MRS ELBE NI ERINT B A B &
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is K skeE AN A EEEER T SEMNEET
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of FERZEBRERIABE - BERINK
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence K A] BE MEAR IR BIBR AN - SN RAEBAEIEA
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or BIEEFTRZFTAREEE LS AT
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the REFE - TeHELRNBEE  BERI
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. ST HY AT RE AR R BRI
()  Revenue recognition (n WARER
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or U AR BA B WCER Bt AT R BN B9 A o (BEET
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow B o MESHLBENEMERAEERALRSE
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured C T A AR AN (AiE R ) RESAVE I AT 52
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows: FER BRRABZRUAT AN ERERA
R
(i) Sale of goods (i) HEWA
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’ HEWAEARWEEMS DR E R EEE
premises or picked up by customers for domestic sales and when goods BRSSPI IRE c EE OABEMS Y
are on board vessels for export sales which is taken to be the point in RERCEEN  BEEEIERLEER
time when the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks @& T AN « HEWATBIEIGER LS
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax and min o WEINBRFTAE ST &R[E -
consumption tax and is after deduction of any trade discounts and returns.
[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEEE®

()  Revenue recognition (Continued) (n WARR (&)

(i)  Interest income (i) FEWA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest FEUWA TR E R TR AE -
method.

(ili)  Rental income from operating leases (i) RLEHFEMERZHESKA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit RIEGELHEEMEI 2B A - JThAEEE
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term. RIBHFTRE 2 5T BIRRER - BREHEEH
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part EhFa e T E A PT N A R EE S H B 0 Ea Ay — 3
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. DIEEmPHER

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (s) IMEEHH]

(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) MEEEEREREE
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s AREFLEWEB AR 2 BREMBIEZIE
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic B DIRZWBARKSEMTE s EELER
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The B2EWE ([T 8 ]) 18 - REeBmEk
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, LAETE5 - METAKRAR IR W
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. j={-- 30

(ii) Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign (i) FRUINEHEIT 2R 5 - AR 5B 2N

exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in an operation outside
Hong Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified to equity on
consolidation.

[ERME o LAISNEEE 2 B EERALE -
AIABE R ZINEERIGE - EHIBm A
Az o

PASNEE IR e KA GHE R SEE B E R AE
35 B EINETE S EITINE -

BB LAINEIEH A TR R 5 A RE R4
ERERGE SEE - BIBHRRROIAR R
HEAMEXRE B - IEENERZE
RRE R (@R AR ) ARERR o

BHERBIINERE - B XA ME
RNEMKEREH R ES ZRE WS
HO| B EE o

ERHBELMINEELER (BAIBRE

BLASMRE R —aR ) EARR 2 IR &
DS E T ) JRI 1B s B ABCR AR o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEREE®
(t) Borrowing costs (t) BERK
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, EUEE - BEEEAREREE (AIMER
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a A—BERGFEAERERESHEEZE
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are E) MEEBEEEZEEXANGBIEZEEE
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are ZEMA AR o BB B R A TE E A Y HARS
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. FIIERY ©
(u) Related parties (uy BEAL
0} A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to 0} ERIAL @ KHERHBRKEHR
the Group if that person: REREEBEALT - WEZERIA
=+

©) has control or joint control over the Group; (1) il e HERERIARER

) has significant influence over the Group; or @) HAEEBEERFET : 3k

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the 3 ABAEBSRAEEF AT E
Group or the Group's parent. ZEBMABKEZ—©

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions (ii) *1I,\%ﬂuﬁ ERI B - Bl
applies: RESAEEBEAL

) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (M ZEENAEERR—5E
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow MKE (EE%RESHEER
subsidiary is related to the others). GIE ]‘J% NE RRARKB A

AIEREER) ©

) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other ) *1?5%%%%*?%%#@%5%
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a NEHEE (k— &= e
group of which the other entity is a member). ABE—5E IﬁJZ EReo): Rl

REBERE ME—EER
R—%BEZKE) -

3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (3) MEERBRAE=-FTNEE
(=

(4 One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other () —EAERBEE=—[EENE
entity is an associate of the third entity. BEh¥ mE—EEEAS

—EEENEE AR

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (5) ZEBNIERHTAEEK
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity BEAREFFBEATHER
related to the Group. HfE EBERRENET &l -

() The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person ©) ZEBXEXOAMEMNALT
identified in (). PRk R -

@) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence @) 32O AT R E R A L
over the entity or is a member of the key management ;Z = ﬁaﬁéﬁ ’E"jj DY=EA
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). B (HZEESQR)) T2

EIBABKEZ— -
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who BRATHEREEKE NIEZEBRKERE
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their MREZ ORI BT ENTBNKE -
dealings with the entity.
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (Continued 1 EEEEE®

(v) Segment reporting (v) DEEREHR
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported LEDBRAMBHREANE RS D HIEE
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information SHEETHRERFAERSESITHREEREAS
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for RERDE M EANEENES IR EERN
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, D58 2 IR B MR IBA BT B B
the Group's various geographical locations. BIH 2R o
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial R BEERME  BRIEDBEBELUNEE
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic BERTEERERBMEE - AETFME -
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products BFREASER - AESBE MR RS
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of B EREERENEE AL - TR
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide HEARE YIS EITEE o [HRIFEEK
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating B SEL  INRGA it KEEDIEXE - 8
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they AEITAE °
share a majority of these criteria.

2  Accounting judgements and estimates 2 gitHErRAE
Note 22 contains information about the assumptions and their risk factors B RNEEEERERREINAGBEZHBE
relating to the retirement benefit liabilities. Other key sources of estimation SN - LU= R TN R E A A T R A
uncertainty are as follows: &t :

(@) Impairment of fixed assets and intangible assets (a) BEEBEREFEEZRE
If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of these assets HAEBRBERZSEEERfELKRE - BE
may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered “impaired” and AR A [ORE]  WiliBE S5 4L|
an impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 F365% [ HEME] HAREEE - RIER
Impairment of assets. Under HKAS 36, these assets are tested for BEETERIE 36, ZEEERNEHXER
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that BN B 08k 2 BREE ] gE & A Y [O] B
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such ENZEEITRERAIS - REIRB@RIEN - R
a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable EEAERETRE S - AlkE$ 58 A F
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs HEBEFRAEBEMENRSE - REEF
of disposal and value in use. In determining the fair value less costs of HEER  EEEeXZHELENER
disposal, management refer to the observable market prices for similar THIHERE - NEBERE R AEL KT
assets. The Group uses all readily available information in determining an AIRECENASERE - Al BEETISE
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount. BOlRe B RIABE - WAl BT B EE
However, actual market prices may be different from assumptions which MEEEELREAHE BTEEREFE
may result in a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets ERNEEMEIEFED RIRME12%13
affected. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of fixed assets and R EE o
intangible assets are disclosed in notes 12 and 13 respectively.

(b) Depreciation or amortisation of fixed assets (b) RBEEEEZEREN

Fixed assets (see note 12) are depreciated or amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual values, if any. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives and the estimated residual values, if any, of the assets regularly in
order to determine the amount of depreciation or amortisation expense
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual
values are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation or amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if there
are significant changes from previous estimates.

BEEE (RHTF12) Ret REGERSBE
B (A) & - FEMGF A ERFRIZERE
E - AEBETHHEENGAATERFR
RAEFHRIEREE (0A) fEliiast - AEE
RS RAMALHNITESBHEFREX - 7]
ERFREFHKEEDRBAEELALE
EEEY BT AR B K 8 8 B B e TR HA B B 1 #F
e WEBEMFTEEANE - RKHEH
FERXATHE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
2  Accounting judgements and estimates Continued) 2 @At R3EF (@)
(c) Impairment loss for doubtful debts (c) ZRERRBEFSE
The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful debts for estimated losses AEEREBABREEELATAMRME
resulting from the inability of debtors to make required payments. The BB ER IR R ERABEES - A%
Group bases the estimates of future cash flows on the ageing of the trade BEiR BB AN 16 PRI E R &
receivable balance as disclosed in note 16, debtors’ credit-worthiness and 2R - B ANEEBEMRSRE AR
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of debtors were to IR MEIELEET o WEBANTBHAR
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated. = BERMEESEESRGEETET -
(d) Useful lives of intangible assets (d EBEREEZUEAFH
Intangible assets (see note 13) are not amortised as their useful lives B AE (RME13) ekl 52
are assessed to be indefinite. The conclusion that the useful life of an ARBEEE 2 IERAEHRER/TEE
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether HANUFRE  #8EEENERFHSRN
events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life SRR T ELIBE RN s Y
assessment. The Group may need to amortise intangible assets in future HEAEREAFHRATRE o (NRIARKE
periods or recognise impairment losses for intangible assets if events and BIRE XA EAFEEART - NEET A2
circumstances indicate that the useful life is no longer indefinite. SYHELEEFEL B ERREERE -
(e) Deferred tax assets (e) EEMEBEEE
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and BEERIEE E IS ARB A 2 IR EE R E R
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can only MAERER - ARZETEEHIEEENE
be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits RIER AR K E R B R 5 0] BEEK SR E)
will be available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised, Ama B RARWIES - 1R EANERK
management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of being FERT B 2 ee - BIEEBE AT (HE
able to generate future taxable profits. Management’'s assessment is H T HAEERD ¢ M AR IR FE SR B FI) 48 B UL (T
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised RERIBEEE - NERRAFEINELEHIEER
if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred E o RERBEEENMEE MREEF B
tax assets to be recovered. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of 23N -
deferred tax assets are disclosed in note 23.
3  Turnover and segment reporting 3 EXURSIEHER
(@ Turnover (@) ExH|
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and distribution REBzFBEFARIERDIHBE  BE
of bottled, canned and draught beers. ARSI o
Turnover represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of discounts, CEBIEMEEERZEZEENRITI
returns, value added tax and consumption tax. RME - SEE LA M
(b) Segment reporting (b) HWBERZHH
The Group manages its businesses by geography. In a manner consistent AEELMESIEEEK - SERNPEZHRE
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group's BEAEEGSETREBABUESEE
most senior executive management for the purposes of resource BEFERREER B AEBEE2HR 5
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the MEETE2HD I :
following two reportable segments:
— The Hong Kong operations mainly comprise the manufacture — BERAEBEEREETBEREIND
and distribution of own brewed beer products and distribution of A BEs s BiEE MY ED 28
imported beer products in Hong Kong and overseas. JHEM ©
— The Mainland China operations mainly comprise the manufacture — FEAMESEZRETHEARK
and distribution of own brewed beer products in the southern part ME (THE)) mBREINDEET
of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and overseas. RS 7 HER -
All of the Group's turnover is generated from the manufacture and AREBZEEBE2IMRARER D IHBE
distribution of bottled, canned and draught beers. TS K7 fR 2 185 o
[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
3 Turnover and segment reporting (Continued) 3 BEXEHRSBEEHER 9
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SDPBERZW E)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) DEELE BERAE

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and current
assets. Segment liabilities include trade creditors and accruals attributable
to the manufacture and distribution activities of the individual segments,
bank loan and retirement benefit liabilities managed directly by the
segment and other current liabilities with the exception of deferred tax
liabilities.

The measure used for reportable segment profit or loss is profit or 10ss
before taxation. Taxation is not allocated to reportable segments. Inter-
segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 1.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of resource

AFFED RTINS EER - NEEZ
meTE&EI@/\ETJ&MT% MEREAT
ERNHEEZFE  BERAE

DHEEBREMBELEE  BREELR
PHEE - DHAERESDMEER DT
iUJ'&'fEE’]JEHTéf%EEIE&EHE%ﬁH DEE
EREEMRITERIRREN A BN EAM

mBEE - ERERBR GRS -
SHEAT ii&%?ﬂﬁ%j“éﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁz%iﬁﬁ

RN EE - RSB BRDEEAT
2N o DA ZARIHE %Wﬁzﬁbﬂ B
PBIFERE °

EER 22 B BRRARE L B
% (RMIEE1ATL) —3 -

BE_Z-NER_T—=F+_HA=1—
Hib > AERETAEESREETHEEA

allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years ended =V EE%A?&&HE’MB%EEZ &R E T a0
31 December 2014 and 2013 is set out below: T:
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BB FE R By
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
b= S ES F-=F ~B-mE 5= —B-mE 5=
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
i T A Ti i i
Revenue from external customers — SNRZEIA 564,019 539,670 164,621 147 423 728,640 637,093
Inter-segment revenue DA 259 329 - — 259 329
Reportable segment revenue AT 2HABWA 564,278 539,999 164,621 147,423 728,899 687,422
Reportable segment profit/(loss) BT 2H7 HE&
from operations B3/ (58) 29,982 27,598 7,245 (5315) 37,227 22283
Interest income from bank deposits  R{T7ZZA SUA 1,352 632 170 133 1,522 765
Interest expense on loans E‘?ﬂ\J SHX (4,253) (5,494) - — (4,253) (5,494)
Depreciation and amortisation FERITEREH
for the year (23,404) (22,784) (2,175) (1,775) (25,579) (24.559)
(Provision for)/reversal of EEEEARNE SR
impairment losses recognised in IR (REESE
profit or oss in respect of B /REEEED
trade and other receivables (409) (1,049) 9 10 (400) (1,039
Reportable segment assets BFERIDEE 1,220,424 1,225,441 68,843 83,560 1,289,267 1,309,001
Additions to non-current segment  ERIEREHBEEZM
assets during the year 9,794 3884 1,497 1,056 11,291 4,940
Reportable segment liabilities ~ EF2HAHAE 275,170 300,710 439,661 461,675 714,831 762,385
I
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3 Turnover and segment reporting (Continued) BETRSBEEHER )
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) PHERZHH (&)
(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, BAFERIBUA - B - BEREEBZ
assets and liabilities ik
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
$'000 $'000
FT Tt
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue BT 2mRDIBYA 728,899 687,422
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 5B ZF‘WU\}%S(% (259) (329)
Consolidated turnover e ] 728,640 687,093
Profit |
Reportable segment profit from operations AT 2D EPEE BT 37,227 22,283
Elimination of inter-segment profits ’“IZZF'EW%‘HESI% — —
Reportable segment profit derived REIAZEZAT
from Group's external customers ’MVJ T K
and consolidated profit before taxation ABFATRF 37,227 22,283
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BT ERDHEE 1,289,267 1,309,001
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 80 2 [ FE UK BR TR AR B (380,924) (380,345)
Consolidated total assets RABEE 908,343 928,656
Liabilities a&
Reportable segment liabilities BTEHRHITEE 714,831 762,385
Elimination of inter-segment payables SES 7 B FET BRIE Y (380,924) (380,345)
333,907 382,040
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEAE 2,487 2,938
Consolidated total liabilities rEEAaE 336,394 384,978
[
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3 Turnover and segment reporting (Continued) 3 BEXEHRSBEEHER 9
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SDILER2ZIR (&)
(ili)  Geographic information (iii) HEER
The following table sets out information about the geographic location TEHEB () AEBEIINERZE KA (i) 4
of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s SBRETEENEREE ([FBEIERDE
fixed assets and intangible assets (“specified non-current assets”). El) ZHBUBEER - BEZHIBMEER
The geographic location of customers is based on the country of BERRPKIMEMERRME © 38FIE
establishment of each customer. The geographic location of the specified ROEEZWEVERRBEEEZERMNE
non current assets is based on the physical location of the assets, in the (HMBETEEE) NEEIBERBEE ZiE
case of fixed assets, and the location of the operation to which they are 2 (WEBEFEE) ME -
allocated, in the case of intangible assets.
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
HIRBEFBA EBERBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—mF ZE—=F —E—mEF ZE—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tt Tt
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &7 (Brse®) 448,483 aaa214 596,271 609,887
Mainland China NG Np:i 101,531 94,220 30,225 31,194
Philippines JEERE 163,236 136,233 — —
Others HEmBExR 15,390 12,426 — —
e ...........28057 242879 30225 31,194
728,640 687,093 626,496 641,081
(c)  Major customers (c) EEBEXF
In 2014, the revenue from the Group's largest customer which was RZZE—OF - REAEEEERFRHA
served both by the Hong Kong segment and the Mainland China R 2 & AKE P B A AE164,791,000
segment amounted to $164,791,000 or 23% of the Group's total revenue TR AEBBWRA2%( T —=ZF:
(2013: $137,605,000 or 20%). The revenue from the Group's five largest 137,605,000708420%) - RKEAEB H R K
customers amounted to 45% (2013: 43%) of the Group's total revenue. BEPMRAGEAEERNBRBAMNLS(ZF
— =4 1 43%) °
Details of concentration of credit risk arising from these customers are set REZEREP2FHAEERBEH LM
out in note 25(a). 25(a) °
4  Other revenue and other net income 4 HttkAREMGRPEHE
2014 2013
=F—mF T
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Other revenue Heg A
Interest income from bank deposits SRITFE 2 F B UL A 1,522 765
Rental income from investment properties HEYENES WA 8,409 6,206
Advertising and promotion subsidy (note 27(a)) BE RS HEEmE (H5E27() 26,564 32,382
Subsidy from local government in Mainland China A B ;s i J5 IR 2 #6584 — 3,005
Others Hih 3,041 296
39,536 42,654
Other net income HAth Wz F 58
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets HERBTEEEZEEA 1,415 697
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) & FRR, (E8) 106 (556)
Compensation income received AP 2 B EWA
from a former customer 14,301 —
Net gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEFEE TR — 255
15,822 396
[ ]
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5 Profit before taxation 5 KRRaOEMN
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREIBTBAC R (5T A) T5E
(crediting): B :
2014 2013
—E—mEF —E—=F
$'000 $'000
Fi T
(a) Finance costs (a) Bi%EH
Interest expense on bank loan ARAFAZEEE
wholly repayable within five years ZIRITERR B — 4,205
Interest expense on loan HARAFTRNEHER
from an intermediate holding Z AT R A A
company wholly repayable BRI EZ
within five years 4,253 1,289
Amortisation of transaction costs RITERR SRR 2 #H
for bank loan — 755
Bank charges RITE A 155 142
4,408 6,391
(b)  Staff costs (b) B8 TH
Retirement costs RIS AR
— Defined contribution retirement plans — ERHFRIRETE 6,639 6,362
— Defined benefit retirement plan — EREEARIARETE
(note 22(a)(v)) (FF7E22(@)(v)) 5,452 6,769
12,091 13,131
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMET 116,888 106,631
128,979 119,762
(c) Other items (c) Hihig g
Amortisation s
— Land lease premium (note 12(a)) — HAE T RIE (FieE120) 2,599 2,624
Depreciation (note 12(a)) #rE (FizE12(a)
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - MBS RERE 20,258 19,210
— Investment properties — WA 2,722 2,725
Cost of inventories (note 15) FEMKA (FIFE15) 414,586 394,540
Operating lease charges: KEHEER -
minimum lease payments HERERR
— Land and buildings — tHMREE 1,616 1,958
— Other assets — Hfb&E 208 254
Rental receivable wEME B2
from investment properties Mk E#ZE 4,210,000 7T
less direct outgoings of $4,210,000 (ZZ2—=%F : 2976,0007T)
(2013: $2,976,000) (4,199) (3,230)
Auditors’ remuneration ZE BN S
— Provision for the year — RNEEEE 3,364 3,353
— (Over)/under-provision in respect — FFERE (B8 /TR
of prior year (65) 140
Impairment losses for trade and FEUE 5 K B A BR 3K
other receivables (note 16(b)) ZRMEEE (FIFE16(0) 400 1,039
[
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6 Taxation in the consolidated income statement 6 RelBRZMBR
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) HZEWRERZABBIE:
represents:
2014 2013
—E-NmF —T—=
$'000 $'000
Ft Tt
Current tax — Outside Hong Kong REARITE — FABLUS
Provision for the year REERE (62) @31
Deferred tax (note 23(a)) EERE (KiEE23(a))
Origination and reversal of temporary differences =i =% 7 HIR L&D (171) 3,572
Income tax (charge)/credit g () Gt A (233) 3,541
The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company and other Hong Kong AARREMBEBNBARNEEMEA
subsidiaries was 16.5% (2013: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits 16.5% (—ZT—=4% : 16.5%) - AR A MEA
Tax has been made for the Company and other Hong Kong subsidiaries BB B R T A AR R IEE B BRE AR
either because the accumulated tax losses brought forward exceed the FEMAFTERNB ISR EHBFEE - R
estimated assessable profits for the year or the entities sustained losses HEBFETIEL R -
for taxation purposes.
The statutory tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established in the PRC AR BIAK S BB B A RIA A E R R A 25% (=
was 25% (2013: 25%). No provision for current taxation has been made T—=4F : 25%) - RABEIRKZHIME A R H
for the subsidiaries established in the PRC because the entities sustained REEEHBEE M ERAFERIBIEL
losses for taxation purposes. R o
Provision for current tax outside Hong Kong for 2014 and 2013 represented ZE-MFER T -=FEE BN
a withholding tax levied at 10% on interest income earned in the PRC by a ERBIE—FETFRCEERAOWBE AT
subsidiary which is a non-PRC resident according to the relevant rules and RIEH BIA R A AR AE N BTG
regulations of the PRC. BRI 2 ATEIRHY 10% FEIRFTISHSE ©
(b) Reconciliation between income tax charge/(credit) and (b) FrBHiXH (5t A) HEHBR 2

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

&

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
$'000 $'000
F7t Tt
Profit before taxation MR AT & T 37,227 22,283
Notional tax on profit before taxation BARIETAER 2 AR X
calculated at the rates applicable to PRI B AT E 2 (AT
the tax jurisdictions concerned 6,809 3,264
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TRIHBRHASY 2 FHRIETE 2,529 2,798
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue IERBBAZ BT E (207) (107)
Tax effect of contribution to retirement benefit plan RGBT 2R 2 BiTa s £ (146) (749)
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary differences — RAERIELESIE 2 FilHE 1B
not recognised for deferred tax purposes REREER 2 FRIARTE — 3,226
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and JE B 45 Bl AR RE R B A5 I 18
temporary differences previously unrecognised REREER 2 HIEGE (8,752) (11,973)
Actual tax charge/(credit) Rt (Gt A) 233 (3,541)
——
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7 Directors’ remuneration 7 EFie

RIEFHEE CRREDD (F622F) R 1
F781GR2ERER (RAIEH) (F3R2F)
F61ERBE2EEHHNT -

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of Schedule 11
to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference
to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
32), is as follows:

2014
—E-MmF
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e FEREH MERA BRSM CH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr Tr Tr T
Executive director HITEE
Ramon G. Torralba MR 2,832 — — 2,832
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang BB — — — —
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SR - - - -
Chan Wen Meg, May (Michelle) BREX - - - —
Teruyuki Daino RER=Z - — — -
Roberto N. Huang =ER — — — —
Takeshi Wada MEE - — — -
Takashi Hayashi HES (R=T—mE
(appointed on 25 April 2014) mA=T+RAEZ) - - - -
Shobu Nishitani AR (R=ZZ2—DmE
(resigned on 25 April 2014) MA-+HAFT) - - - -
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
David K.P Li FEE — — — —
WS.Ng R - - - -
Carmelo L. Santiago i ] — - - —
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno — - - —
Adrian M.K. Li TR — — — —
2,832 — — 2,832

WITEZCHEEAS - MEFRITEELR
BYIERTEFCHEEMEME -

The executive director has waived his entitlement to his director’s fees. All
of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
have waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.
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7 Directors’ remuneration (Continued) 7 EFEMe (®
2013
—E-=F
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses contributions Total
e b2 = [i]=peza RIKSHT A%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive director HITES
Ramon G. Torralba HEE (RZT—=F
(appointed on 15 January 2013) —R+RAEZA) = 2,375 = = 2,375
Peter K.Y, Tam Bk (R-T—=F
(resigned on 15 January 2013) —R+RBET) — 335 — 56 391
Non-executive directors *HTES
Ramon S. Ang BEY — — — — —
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SR — — — — —
Chan Wen Meg, May (Michelle) REX — — — — —
Teruyuki Daino RERE = = = = =
Shobu Nishitani BAHE — — — — —
Roberto N. Huang 2RR — = — _ _
Takeshi Wada MAE (RZ2—=F
(appointed on 19 April 2013) NA+HBREZE) — — - - -
Taro Matsunaga MAAR (RZF—=4F
(resigned on 19 April 2013) WA+ NBET) — — - - -
Independent non-executive BIUFHTES
directors
David K.P. Li FEE — — — — —
WS. Ng RUEZ = = = = =
Carmelo L. Santiago it = = = = =
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno — — — — —
Adrian M. K. Li TR — — — — —
— 2,710 — 56 2,766
The executive directors waived their entitlement to their director’s fees. Al WITESCHEEES - IAERTESK
of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors BYIFRTEECREEMABS -
waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.
[ ]
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8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 MegEZAR
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2013: one) is a e hBAEHR  —B(ZF—=F: —
director whose emoluments are included in note 7. The aggregate of the %) BEE (KB RME7HE) - Hif
emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2013: four) individuals are as W& (ZZ—=F : O%) egszABZ
follows: B @zEmT
2014 2013
—2-mE —F—=%
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Salaries and other emoluments e MoE8L 6,972 6,461
Retirement scheme contributions RIRSHIK 850 973
7,822 7,434
The emoluments of the four (2013: four) individuals with the highest g (ZZ2—=F : %) emaZABZ
emoluments are within the following bands: Mot -
2014 2013
—ET—-EF —E—=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AEHE ANEEE
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 2 2
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 7t 2 2,500,000 7T 2 2
9  Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the 9 #HATFHESREEAEERT
company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company RARERFTEABGEGRERANBERT
includes a profit of $36,495,000 (2013: $39,005,000) which has been dealt 36,495,000 7T ( —ZF — =4F : 39,005,0007T)
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 24(a)). BEARRAIF BT (5 24() °
[
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10 Other comprehensive income 10 HtiZEIE

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income

Hip 2 m WSS A 0 NRIAT &

2014 2013
—E-|mE —E-=F
Before-tax Tax Net-oftax Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount effect amount amount effect amount
BREAISE HEFE RUEALE KRUHEE HEYE BRKES
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr T T Fr Fr
(note 23(a)) (note 23(a))
(FffzE 23(a)) (FiE23(0))
Exchange differences on PSR -
translation of:
— financial statements of — RERINREAT
subsidiaries outside IBREEE
Hong Kong ZERESR 1,282 — 1,282 (11,505) — (11,505)
— monetary items that form — REEKEERHE AR
part of the net investment in ZREMEEEB FEE
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong ZERESR (1,230) - (1,230) 11,387 — 11,387
52 — 52 (118) — (118)
Actuarial gains and losses of ERRAIR IR E
defined benefit retirement plan JRERFIRER
(note 22(a)(v)) (FtzE22(a)(v)) (2,139) 622 (1,517) 9,051 (2,915) 6,136
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 ElES (2,087) 622 (1,465) 8,933 (2,915) 6,018
11 Earnings per share 11 SEEH
(@) Basic earnings per share (@ BRELXER

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $35,323,000 (2013:
$26,010,000) and on 373,570,560 (2013: 373,570,560) ordinary shares,
being the number of ordinary shares in issue throughout the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b)

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as the Company did not have
dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years presented.

BERERBFNDIBREARS
A JE {5 B F $£35,323,0007% ( = =
£ :26,010,0007T) K AN 4 F ﬁq B %
2 373,570,560 % & i A% (
373,570,560 I & Hx) "

BEREF

BE s BRAFLRTIH - BARBILR
BEEEEMEEEBREHE
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12 Fixed assets 12 BEERE
(@) The Group (a) ZF&£H
Property, plant and equipment Interests in
nE BERER leasehold land
Landand  Machinery, held for own
buildings  equipment, use under
held for  furniture Motor  Construction Investment  operating Total
own use and fixtures vehicles inprogress  Sub-total  properties leases fixed assets
ERERET
BRLE MR RE- BRAmEEN &zt
REE GHRER B4 ] ERIR &t RENE BEIHEER EEEE
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
i i T i T aw Al aw
Cost; B
At 1 January 2013 R=ZE-=%-f-H 1,011,603 1,683,600 13977 3N 2,709,551 121,666 122,572 2,953,789
Exchange adjustments B 13,858 23,251 269 12 37,390 — 1,601 38991
Additions NE 587 3,648 — 602 4,837 103 - 4,940
Transfer from construction in progress BERATETR 3% 535 75 (646) — — — —
Disposals HE @) (1,956) (3512 — (5472) — — (5,472)
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=5+-A=1+—H 1,026,080 1,709,078 10,809 339 2,746,306 121,769 124173 2,992,248
Accumulated amortisation, ZitEs  ERAERE
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2013 W=E—=%-HF—H 607,005 1,612,470 13,344 3N 2,233,690 33,688 31733 229111
Exchange adjustments B i A 13,858 23250 269 12 37,389 — 595 37,984
Charge for the year (note 5(c)) EnFEx (FzE5(0) 12,572 6,49 144 - 19210 2,125 2,624 24,559
Transfer from construction in progress BEAFETE — 44 — (44) — — — —
Written back on disposals HEHD ) (1,784) 351 - (5,299) - - (5,299
At 31 December 2013 WZE-=F+ZA=1-H 633,431 1,640,474 10,746 339 2,284,990 36,413 34,952 2,356,355
Net book value: SR RE -
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=5+-A=1+-H 392,649 68,604 63 = 461,316 85,356 89,221 635,893
Cost: B
At 1 January 2014 R=F-NF—A—H 1,026,080 1,709,078 10,809 339 2,746,306 121,769 124173 2,992,248
Exchange adjustments B 5 3R (1,525) (2,559) (45) (1) (4,130) - (176) (4,306)
Additions AE 3,217 6,855 - 1,103 11,175 116 — 11,291
Transfer from construction in progress ~ BAEERIRE 325 940 - (1,265) - - - -
Disposals e — (3,974) (4,362) - (8,336) - - (8,336)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-mE+=A=1-H 1,028,097 1,710,340 6,402 176 2,745,015 121,885 123997 2,990,897
Accumulated amortisation, DB FERWESSE:
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-mE-A—-A 633,431 1,640,474 10,746 339 2,284,990 36,413 34952 2,356,355
Exchange adjustments B (1,525) (2,559) (45) (1) (4,130) - (63) (4,193)
Charge for the year (note 5(c)) FREZ (M) 12,705 7,503 50 - 20,258 2,722 2,599 25,579
Transfer from construction in progress ~ EREERIR - 162 - (162) - - - -
Written back on disposals HERE - (3,791 (4,362) - (8,153) - - (8,153)
At 31 December 2014 W=F-mE+-A=1-H 644,611 1,641,789 6,389 176 2,292,965 39,135 37,488 2,369,588
Net book value: IR -
At 31 December 2014 RZB-ME+=A=1+-H 383,486 68,551 13 — 452,050 82,750 86,509 621,309
[ ]
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(BRA=BIETIN

IR )

12
(b)

Fixed assets (Continued)

12 BEERE (&)

The Company (b) ZEAF
) Interests in
Property, plant and equipment leasehold
N3 - BELRE land held
Landand  Machinery, for own
buildings  equipment, use under
heldfor  furniture Motor operating Total
own use and fixtures vehicles Sub-total leases fixed assets
ELERET
BRATH HE RE- BAMEEN
REE GHRER L] &5 BEIHER BHETEE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T 7 7
Cost: BA
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—F—H 496,696 948,002 4,552 1,449,250 74134 1,523 384
Additions N 385 3319 — 3,704 — 3,704
Disposals HE = (391) (1,508) (1,899) = (1,899
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=1—H 497,081 950,930 3,044 1,451,095 74,134 1,525,189
Accumulated amortisation, 2t HERRERE:
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2013 W-E—=%-A—H 157,659 876,987 4419 1,039,065 13,955 1,053,020
Charge for the year ERFEY 10,381 9,819 69 16,269 1,744 18,013
Written back on disposals LERE — (381) (1,508) (1,889) — (1,889)
At 31 December 2013 WZE—=%+-A=1—H 168,040 882,425 2,980 1,053,445 15,699 1,069,144
Net book value: BRERE
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=%+-A=1—-H 329,01 68,505 64 397,610 58,435 456,045
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 R=Z-—NE-F—AH 497,081 950,930 3,044 1,451,055 74134 1,525,189
Additions hE 3,130 6,461 - 9,591 - 9,591
Disposals L& — (3,108) - (3,108) - (3,108)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-NE+-A=1—-H 500,211 954,283 3,044 1,457,538 74,134 1,531,672
Accumulated amortisation, 2t HERRERE:
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A—-H 168,040 882,425 2980 1,053,445 15,699 1,069,144
Charge for the year ERAR 10,349 6,491 51 16,891 1,745 18,636
Written back on disposals LERE - (3,100) - (3,100) - (3,100)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-NFE+=A=1—H 178,389 885,816 3,031 1,067,236 17,444 1,084,680
Net book value: BREEE
At 31 December 2014 R=E-WE+-A=+—H 321,822 68,467 13 390,302 56,690 446,992
[ ]
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12 Fixed assets (Continued) 12 EBIESEE (&)
(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as () WIEREFEZIFWOT :
follows:
The Group The Company
TEE b NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
=F-mFE  —F-=F ZF-AF T =F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT Tt Tt Tt
Medium term leases REAEE
— in Hong Kong — BB 522,927 536,439 378,511 387,476
— outside Hong Kong — BB 29,818 30,787 — —
552,745 567,226 378,511 387,476
Representing: DM
Land and buildings held ERLHREE
for own use 383,486 392,649 321,821 329,041
Investment properties B 82,750 85,356 — —
Interests in leasehold land held ERLHEET~EAmMEES
for own use under RS iR
operating leases 86,509 89,221 56,690 58,435
552,745 567,226 378,511 387,476
(d) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (d) REHFETZBEETEE

The Group leases out investment properties which are located at Nos.
9-11 Shing Wan Road, Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with
an option to renew each lease upon expiry at which time all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are receivable as follows:

AEBRBLEMEBLNEED A AEK
BRI EMELE - BOFH—K
RIE=F EERIBMBRERED
[E B 1S BT R P R - BRI E
BRAES -

ANEERE N O] A T E U 2 R 2R
HEFEAT

2014 2013
—F-IF —T=%
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt

Investment properties BREWME
Within 1 year —FR 5,911 6,760
After 1 year but within 5 years —FERAFA 3,537 2,791
9,448 9,551
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
12 Fixed assets (Continued) 12 EBEEEE 5
(e) The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2014 is (@) ®EYWEN _—_E-—NWE+_-_A=+—8

$285,910,000 (2013: $278,570,000), which is based on a valuation using
the investment approach which considers the capitalisation of net rental
income receivable from existing tenancies and the reversionary value
of the property after tenancies expire by reference to market sales
transactions. The valuation was carried out by an independent firm of
surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who have among their
staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with valuation
experience in the location and category of the property being valued.

The fair value measurements are categorised as Level 3 valuations under
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for
which market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

The significant unobservable input in the fair value measurement is the
discount rate, which ranged from 2.9% t0 3.4% (2013: 2.7% t0 3.0%).

2 A5 1E 52859100007 (&8 — =4 ¢
278,570,0007T) + LA E R #EITHE - BIF
HEWAERABERNET A NEZEMERS
BRbE (2z2ams LRBARS) 2K
A e (HETYRIB R R0/ TFIBET R0 A
RARHETT EBEREESIEMESK
B¥es  EMHERENMERERNAES
HELERS -

RAEERBEEMBHRELERFE 135
[ARIEEE] FIER 2 =M AR BERE
EOBRE=-RHE SAAEBEAENER
ZERE2E M TMEETEMBEERZA
BRUEMBENRET

— FQMHE: EERE-ABABE
(IRFTERRBREESAENERE
M AREHERE) FFEZAAE

— F_REE: FREAE ABE
(BNREEERE— Pz A BRB AL
&) B R FAERT A ERE AR
B2 2 RARE - TABREARE

REMSEIE B ARE
— FE=AHE RAERTUBREE
HEZARE

AERAREMRAZERTABREE AT
BE BER/2IE34%(ZE—Z=F B
2.7%E3.0%) °
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13 Intangible assets 13 HLRE
The Group The Company
A£H NG|
Club Club
Trademarks  debentures Total Trademarks debentures Total
BE  efEER &5 BE  efEER &t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000
i i T T A 7
Cost: A
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—f—H 39,116 5,704 44,820 39,116 5031 44,147
Disposals HE — (250) (250) — (250) (250)
Exchange adjustments fE 5 B — 2 21 — — —
At 31 December 2013 WZE-—=%+-fA=1—-H 39,116 5475 44,59 39,116 4,731 43,897

Accumulated impairment losses: 2ithRERE:

At 1 January 2013 W-E—=%-A-H 39,116 278 39,394 39,116 = 39,116
Exchange adjustments [ 5 A% — 9 9 — — —
A RBZFI-AST R AL N o 0 S ZL o
Net book value: SREFE

At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=5+-A=1—H = 5,188 5,188 = 4,781 4,781
Cost: A :

At 1 January 2014 RZZ-mF-A—H 39,116 5475 44,591 39,116 4,781 43,897
Bxchange adjustments R AR - ) @ - - -

At 31 December 2014 RZZ-EE+=A=+—H 39,116 5473 44,589 39,116 4,781 43,897

Accumulated impairment losses: 2itRERE:

At 1 January 2014 RZZ—-mE—-A—H 39,116 287 39,403 39,116 - 39,116
Exchange adjustments A% - (1) (1) - - -
pullbesieanty RBREI-AZT A we 286 B2 B L
Net book value: BEERE

At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=+-H — 5,187 5,187 — 4,781 4,781
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14 Investments in subsidiaries 14 HEBLFRER
The Company
b NN
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Unlisted investments, at cost JEETRRD (FRAKAN) 603,249 603,249
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A BIBRIA 1,175,499 1,171,609
1,778,748 1,774,858
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (1,149,906) (1,149,906)
628,842 624,952
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no FEWM B ARIRIBH AEER 28 K8E
fixed repayment terms. The entire balance is expected to be recovered B EE N o TEEN 2 EPAE SRR — 1R UK
after more than one year. [@ o
The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the TREBFIAQGAEHBARTIEE :
Company:
Proportion of
Place of Issued share ownership
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by Principal
Name of company operation capital Company Subsidiary activity
Ealio A BBITRE FiERERS
AR BB AR it B & A NG MiE AR TEEK
Best Investments British Virgin 50,000 100% — Investment
International Inc. Islands ordinary shares holding
of US$1 each
EBELEHS 50,000 f% FE R
BiEE
1R E R
60,000,000 100% =
preference shares
of US$1 each
60,000,000 %
BREE
1RTT 2 BER
Hongkong Brewery Hong Kong 100 100% — Dormant
Limited (“"HKBL") ordinary shares
(note (1)) (B &E (i)
B 100 A% HmE
=Rl
Ravelin Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 100% — Property
ordinary shares holding
B 10,000,000 A% B
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14 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

14 RELATRESR (&)

Proportion of

Place of Issued share ownership
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by Principal
Name of company operation capital Company Subsidiary activity
B3l TBITRE FrEREBES
ACIEL AR i B & A NG MEAR FTEXEK
San Miguel (Guangdong) Hong Kong 18,000 92.989% — Investment
Limited class "A” shares holding
£ (ER) BRAR B 18,000 % B R
(A) I
1,000 100% =
class “B” shares
1,000 A%
(B) Ax
Guangzhou San Miguel PRC Registered capital: — 70% Distribution
Brewery Company US$36,507,000 of beer
Limited (“GSMB")
(note (ii))
BN ENEEFR AR H FMER SHE R
(TN A0 1) (RSEE (i) 36,507,000 7T
San Miguel Shunde Holdings Hong Kong 200,000 92% — Investment
Limited ordinary shares holding
B 200,000 A% TEZER
=Rl
San Miguel (Guangdong) PRC Registered capital: — 100% Manufacture
Brewery Company Limited US$39,933,000 and sale of
("SMGB") (note (iii)) beer
£ (BR) BBEERAR] A A FE el % $H 65 IR
(M= R ) (Bt & i) 39,933,000 %7
Notes: Mi3E -

0]

(iii)

100

HKBL has not traded since incorporation but it established a joint venture,
Global Brews Hong Kong Limited, in Hong Kong on 18 March 2011. HKBL
holds a 50% equity interest in this entity. As at the date of the approval
of these financial statements, the joint venture has not commenced
operations.

GSMB is an equity joint venture formed between the Company’s subsidiary,
San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited, and Guangzhou Brewery. According to the
joint venture agreement, GSMB has an operating period of 30 years expiring
on 29 November 2020.

SMGB is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise with an operating period of 50
years expiring on 4 August 2042.

(iii)

HKBL B B PAZK - —EDR A I TE
R BRZE——F=ZA T N\BREE
A3z 7 —F 4 A& Global Brews Hong Kong
Limited & & A7F] - HKBLIZEZ B8
DZATRIE - BERMBHRRLEZ
H - ZEE QAR ARBEER -

BN ENEBERAR AR A ZHBA
AlEN S (B AR A 7 SR B
Rz aAAERAR  REAAAER
% MARZEEMASE  RZBS
TE+—A=+hAER -

£ (BR) @BERARREINEESR
¥ BELEHATE  RZTW_F
NRMEBER
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14 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) 14 MEBLEES (&
The following table lists out the information relating to SMGB, the only TREBFNEEENERZER £ NERR
subsidiary of the Group which has material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). REFEE R E AELEREZROMH B A
The summarised financial information presented below represents the Tl o FHIRHEE B ERE T A FE
amounts before any inter-company elimination. MEEAT 2 & %58 -
2014 2013
—F-ImF —T=F
$'000 $'000
FT Tt
NCI percentage FEIERER B L 8% 8%
Current assets mENEE 29,024 36,949
Non-current assets SEMBNEE 32,155 33,164
Current liabilities mEAaE (61,137) (72,749)
Non-current liabilities Bl M=K (369,690) (369,611)
Net liabilities BEFE (369,648) (372,247)
Carrying amount of NCI IR e AR (B (29,572) (29,780)
Revenue WA 98,182 86,143
Profit for the year EERF 1,349 8,331
Total comprehensive income FEEAWEBETE 1,349 8,331
Profit allocated to NCI SR IR AR RE S B T 108 666
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities  &&# #2384 GRE) #BA (8,055) 11,188
Cash used in investing activities KWEEK 2B (1,268) (794)
Cash used in financing activities BB EE 2Rt (54) (53)
15 Inventories 15 &
The Group The Company
rEE b NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—-NEF —E—=F —E—-lmF —E—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T +T Tt +7T
Products in hand and in process IR A& G REES 32,589 37,228 24,331 29,900
Materials and supplies K e 18,836 21,559 12,995 15,911
51,425 58,787 37,326 45,811
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as EERARI2HFESEINOT -
follows:
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
— ik —T-=F
$'000 $'000
T T+t
Carrying amount of inventories sold (note 5(c)) HEFEREE (M:E5(C)) 414,586 394,540
[
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16 Trade and other receivables 16 BRESZRAMRER
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E—-mEF —E—=F
$'000 $'000
T T
Trade receivables FEWE S ERIH 73,100 81,947
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (note 16(b)) o RIBRREE (MHEE16(0)) (3,848) (11,227)
69,252 70,720
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments EEKER - e RIEf A 13,387 16,452
82,639 87,172
The Company
AT
2014 2013
—E—{F —E—=F
$'000 $'000
F T+
Trade receivables R E 5 HRIE 65,405 63,973
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (note 16(b)) B RERREE (KiFE16(0) (478) (925)
64,927 63,048
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments M EWER - e RIENFIE 9,228 11,138
74,155 74,186
The amount of the Group’s and the Company’s deposits and prepayments AEERARQFBFTZHR—FE AT 4B 5
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses after more than BRAXENERERENRBEES IR
one year is $1,143,000 (2013: $1,262,000) and $721,000 (2013: $814,000) 1,143,0007T (ZZF — =4 : 1,262,0007T) &
respectively. All of the other trade receivables, other debtors, deposits and 721,0007C (ZZ—=4 : 814,0007T) ° Fi A
prepayments are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses Hith e & ZR1B R A fEER - e kT8
within one year. FIBIEFHE—FRARESSEER -
The Group and the Company held collateral over trade receivables at the AEERARRARELEE BRERE 2 RIER
end of the reporting period with attributable values as set out below: BUATERR :
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—=E—mF —ET—=F —=E—mF ZE—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F TIT FT FT
Buildings L7 5,965 5,971 4,050 4,050
Cash deposits BEFER 2,483 4,725 1,642 1,655
Bank guarantees HRITER 500 500 500 500
Cash deposits disclosed above and in note 16(b) are included in the LA £ B 5E 16(0) 2R IR £ 17 5 51 AR S
Group’s and the Company's other creditors and accrued charges and are B AR EITER Z RN —F R R E MR
expected to be settled after more than one year, as disclosed in note 19. BRIBNMTEIREBRA - R 19HE -
The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the trade receivables AKBERRB LA RN T RN E 5 RIE
is mitigated by the collateral in the amounts indicated above. The value WEERRE - EFYWEBERKDER-Z
of the buildings collateral represents the estimated market value of the —mFE+=-—A=+—HHME-
buildings as at 31 December 2014.
——
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16 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 16 BRESEAMERER (@
(@) Ageing analysis (@) ERERDHT
The ageing of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) at the FEWE SEEE (K REERE) NE8Ra 2
end of the reporting period is as follows: BRERIAT
The Group The Company
rEH KAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—-mEF —E-=5F —E-mEF —E—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T T
Current AF|ER 53,930 52,104 53,709 51,703
Less than 1 month past due BEAR DK —EA 8,667 9,152 8,181 8,466
1to 3 months past due BB —E==EH 3,161 2,702 2,143 2,016
More than 3 months but less BEBA=EA
than 12 months past due E+={@A 1,689 2,940 894 863
More than 12 months past due  BEIR Z W+ —{& A 1,805 3,822 — —
69,252 70,720 64,927 63,048
According to the Group’s credit policy set out in note 25(a), the general ARIRBND R MY 5F 25(a) AREAEEHECR - —
credit period is payment by the end of the month following the month BIEERHEE AMNENAMOTEREIE -
in which sales take place. Therefore, all the current balances above are It - BHlFT A RE|BBA IR E A BB M
within two months from the invoice date. &8 A REIE -
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EWEZRBZRERSE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using EHEWE SRIENRERIB S BEHERT
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the 8% BRIEAEB MBI EEZRER -
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against AHBERAT  BEBSEEEETEKESE
trade receivables directly (see note 1()(). ER A (FTEE1030) ©
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as FARBRBENEHHT -
follows:
The Group The Company
TEE NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ImF —ZT—= —T-mF ZE—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
At 1 January R—H—H 11,227 10,525 925 526
Exchange adjustments HE AR (35) 313 — —
Impairment loss recognised BB EER 669 1,296 580 1,239
Impairment loss written back B ETE R ] (269) (257) (171) (190)
Uncollectible amounts written off s~ a] U [El & %8 (7,744) (650) (856) (650)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 3,848 11,227 478 925
——
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16 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 16 BERRSHBEAEMREER (9
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued) (b) EWESEE2REESE (®)
At 31 December 2014, the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables RZZE—NE+_A=+—H KEERKK
of $5,024,000 (2013: $16,134,000) and $605,000 (2013: $2,974,000) NG EWE SIREEF 5,024,000 (==
respectively were individually determined to be impaired. The individually — =4 :16,134,0007T) K 6050007 (=&
impaired receivables were balances in dispute with customers or related —=4F : 2,974,000 7T) & {E B #EERE - &
to customers that were in financial difficulties and management assessed REREERBREANZZ S -8 R E -
that only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. MEEEREIT(E  RAIHTIBEA AUE -
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of $3,848,000 (2013: WA EE AR TS BIVES,848,000 7T (=&
$11,227,000) and $478,000 (2013: $925,000) were recognised by the Group — =4 :11,227,00070) & 478,00070 (==
and the Company respectively. The Group and the Company hold collateral — =4 :9250007T) M REFBEREE - A&
over these balances with attributable values as set out below: B RARRIGA EEWRE R F RGN
™
The Group The Company
rEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—{F —T—=F —E—mEF —E—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T Tt Tt T
Buildings LYIE 1,915 1,921 — —
Cash deposits BEER 139 1,232 — 155
Bank guarantees RITHEIR 500 500 500 500
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) REFEREBFEZERESKRE
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor REVERERTE 2 EE ZRIEREIAT -
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:
The Group The Company
rEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-—mF —=—= —E—MmEF —E-=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T T T T T
Neither past due nor impaired — REIEA N T ER 53,627 51,131 53,618 51,113
Less than 1 month past due BEEH DR —EA 8,667 8,861 8,181 8,175
1to 3 months past due BEEA—Z==EA 3,161 2,397 2,143 1,71
More than 3 months but less BB A=A
than 12 months past due 2+ _{8A 1,653 2,077 858 —
More than 12 months past due  :@HIR 2Z R+ —{@A 968 1,347 — —
14,449 14,682 11,182 9,886
68,076 65,813 64,800 60,999
[
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16 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 16 BRESEAMERER (@
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (Continued) (c) REEREEEZEWEZESIRE (8

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group and the Company hold collateral over these
balances with attributable values as set out below:

REE R MERE 2 RKE SRR - BRI
WP B RE RN TS - AR -

BB NMEREZRRESREESZZAR
RS ENERN TP AR - BIAEER
HAREEYESANNE  EREHRES
ABLIE LR IAIE B - AR DRAIELE
RFRIAR 2 Ef i@ o REB R ARRBHA £
R RIS R A BEMERRNT

The Group The Company
rEH b NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mE  —T=F Z2-AF T =
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Tt T+t
Cash deposits HelER 123 197 123 197
[ ]
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17

18
(a)

106

Amounts due from/(to) holding companies,

fellow subsidiaries and related companies

Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and do not have fixed repayment
terms except for the following trade-related amounts which are repayable

under normal trade terms:

17 BERSEMERLF - ARHEEL

7 B BE L FARIA

BTOIE 5 RIBARE BIRRAII - YK
HEMIER AR - FRMERRKEERT
RIEDEE - RS NEEEEREN

The Group The Company
REHE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—-mF —F-=F —ZE-mF —F-=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T Tt
Amounts due from holding ey NG
companies and fellow ARG SPAGILE R
subsidiaries 11,478 5,868 7,746 5,851
Amounts due to holding FEHIEAR A T
companies and fellow KRIZH B AR BRE
subsidiaries (1,378) (7,119) (1,125) (6,967)
Amounts due to related FEfTRAE A RERIE
companies (2,977) (1,896) (2,889) (1,780)

The trade-related balances were not past due as at 31 December 2014
and 2013.

Related companies included a non-controlling shareholder and companies,
the ultimate holding company of which has significant influence over the

Group and the Company.

cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 18

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits comprise: (a)

RE SRR AR T MER-F =
F+oA=t—ALARES -

B A R A LR R R B R A A
HAEBRAAREEAFENAT -
GeRkFERAEAARRITHER
RERERAELERRBITEFREE

The Group The Company
rEH ¥ NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—-{F —T—=F —E—-mF —T—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F Tt Tt Tt
Bank deposits within FHEEEIERR
three months of B=EAA
maturity when placed HERITIER 68,277 66,474 56,469 54,801
Cash at bank and in hand RITEGFERRS 40,297 46,272 26,032 18,314
Cash and cash equivalents ERE BITFSARR R
in the consolidated statement  Ri&F&SBEEREFRT
of financial position and MIRE RERRELEE
consolidated cash flow
statement 108,574 112,746 82,501 73,115
Bank deposits with more than FHEEREE
three months to maturity RiBiE= (& A
when placed HER1TIE R 27,054 20,168 27,054 20,168

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits as at 31 December 2014
include $12,475,000 (2013: $26,778,000) placed with banks in Mainland
China, the remittance of which is subject to relevant rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

R-B—mWE+-_A=+—0 B2 RkEH
ReEE RRITHERBEFL R BRI IR
1712,475,0007C ( — & — = 4 : 26,778,000
J0) - HIEFZAS R BT EMAAERER A K&
SNEERRPTE B
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18 cCash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 18 HBeR¥ERESFHRBITER
(Continued) (5&)
(b)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) MBABFEKLEELZRSRAR
generated from operations: ik
2014 2013
—E—-F —E—=F
Note $'000 $'000
BIaE T Tt
Profit before taxation MR F AT 2 A 37,227 22,283
Adjustments for: B TRPIEIEEL FHEE
Amortisation of land lease premium FAE 1 FRIE 2 5 5(c) 2,599 2,624
Depreciation of property, plant M MERREZITE
and equipment 5(c) 20,258 19,210
Depreciation of investment properties & &2 2 e 5() 2,722 2,725
Interest expense AESH 5(@a) 4,253 5,494
Interest income FEUA 4 (1,522) (765)
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBETEEEFAF 4 (1,415) (697)
Net gain on disposal of HERTEEAE
intangible assets 2R B 4 — (255)
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends RRBEZ I EFESH (214) —
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) GNEE o ¥ e (R 31 (2,791)
Changes in working capital: BIEEARY ED
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFEZRL, (38n) 7,362 (2,725)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEUNE 5 K& E M ERIR
other receivables 2R, () 4,536 (4,368)
(Increase)/decrease in net amounts FEUIERR A B K&
due from holding companies and RZEMB A RERIE
fellow subsidiaries SFRAZ (38h0) R (14,609) 14,106
(Increase)/decrease in amount due e A& A B BRIE
from a related company 2z (&) E (665) 829
Decrease in amounts due to FERAE A RIERIE
related companies o 532 716
(Decrease)/increase in trade and EE S R EAMERIE
other payables 2R () (26,455) 18,699
Increase/(decrease) in retirement BRENEEZ
benefit liabilities #h1,7 CEid) 316 (7,823)
Cash generated from operations BEEF 2B MA 35,236 67,262
19 Trade and other payables 19 BEARIREMIER
The Group The Company
AEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—-NEF —E—=F —E—-{mF —E—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T FIT T Tt
Trade payables e B SR TR 47,448 52,914 33,843 32,845
Other creditors and accrued H A FERTERIA
charges 64,370 85,532 22,206 33,647
111,818 138,446 56,049 66,492
[ ]
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19 Trade and other payables (Continued 19 EFfEZIREMEER (&
The Group's and the Company’s other creditors and accrued charges AREBRARRMEME KRB NRTEIREF
include provision for advertising and promotion costs of $23,643,000 (2013: BIEEENEEEED RIA23,643,0007T (=
$33,237,000) and $11,971,000 (2013: $19,813,000) respectively. T — = 4 :33,237,0007T) X 11,971,0007C
(ZZ—=4% :19,813,0007T) °
The amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s other creditors and AREBEAANRERZN —FEINNE
accrued charges expected to be settled after more than one year fb E T BRTE R TBIR B A 5 Bl A 2,555,000 7T
are $2,555,000 (2013: $4,789,000) and $1,642,000 (2013: $1,655,000) —Z— =4 :4,789,0007T) K 1,642,0007C
respectively. Al of the other trade and other payables are expected to be (ZZ—=4 :1,6550007T) ° FrA H M ER
settled within one year. B o5 MEMRBEEE—FRNT -
The ageing of trade payables as at the end of the reporting period is as FENEBIZEBAEER ZERINT
follows:
The Group The Company
AEME AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—{NF —E—=F —E—-lmF —E—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Tt Tt
Current and less than REIHA KM ER B
1 month past due LR—EA 42,359 48,067 29,730 31,185
1to 3 months past due BHBEAE—Z==@A 4,616 3,163 4,003 1,449
3 to 6 months past due BERA==/EA 331 1,395 52 20
More than 6 months past due BEARZ N NEA 142 289 58 191
47,448 52,914 33,843 32,845
The Group's general payment terms are one to two months from the REEH—REAFEREREZEHE—=
invoice date. Therefore, the current and less than one month past due MEAREE - Bt - Bt R EIEA R BE A
balances above are mostly within two to three months from the invoice DR—EAMBERKLOIELEZRERE
date. =EARNEE -

20 Loan from an intermediate holding company 20 HAMERAFZER

At 31 December 2014, the loan from an intermediate holding company RZE—NF+ZA=+—8 FMERQ
was repayable as follows: R BEFER THIEREE

The Group and the Company

TEERELQT

2014 2013

—2-mE —F=F

$'000 $°000

FT Tt

Within 1 year or on demand —F R BRERFEE 50,904 12,723

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR 50,904 50,890

After 2 years but within 5 years MEZRBERAFER 89,081 139,947

139,985 190,837

190,889 203,560
Loan from an intermediate holding company is unsecured, repayable in FNERAFIZCERAEEREA IR =F
sixteen equal instalments from September 2014 and bears interest at one —OF AR TREEE - AENFIEX
year LIBOR plus 1.5% which ranged from 2.05% to 2.16% during the year R EHRBEBITRETEMN15% - HE
(2013: 2.08% t0 2.16%). B205%£2.16% (—Z T —=F N AE208% %

2.16%) °

—
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21 Amounts due to subsidiaries 21 BERBEATRKRE
Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and do not have EAHBAREEAEER  2ERTHR
fixed repayment terms but are not expected to be settled within one year. BETERY  BEFEER—FAIN -
22 Employee retirement benefits 22 {ERE#RIEF
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (@) EEEFBRKEE

(i)

The Group operates a defined benefit retirement plan which covers 14%
(2013: 16%) of the Group’s employees. The plan is administered by an
independent trustee, with the assets held separately from those of the
Group. The members’ benefits are determined based on the employees’
final remuneration and length of service. Contributions to the plan are
made in accordance with the recommendations of an independent
actuary who values the retirement plan at regular intervals.

For the purposes of preparing these financial statements, an independent
actuarial valuation was carried out at 31 December 2014 by the above
independent actuary following the methodology set out in HKAS 19,
Employee benefits.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as
follows:

KEBAEE 1A% (—T—=F : 16%) 2EBE
RETERIEKRE - 218 — 578
NEAAEE  TEAEEZEAES>HABL

B - KEBANREE Z&EH & RRE
FHIRTE - B2 EHRTRE—RBIBE
@Zgﬁgﬂ'aﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ£Wﬁ%¢
B -

BESN - RBEER BN EB GG EAFE19
SEERN] 2ER T —NFE+_H
=+ —HETS - UBEREMER
%o

RSN R IERZ T

The Group and the Company

AEEREDT
2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Present value of funded obligations BEYMEEMNRE 95,102 89,613
Fair value of plan assets HEBEEZARE (74,987) (71,953)
Retirement benefit liabilities BRIKEFEE 20,115 17,660

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after more than
one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount from the
amounts payable in the next twelve months, as the retirement benefit
payable to plan members and future contributions to plan assets will also
depend on staff turnover and future changes in actuarial assumptions.

Plan assets consist of the following:

(in

B B ERRHRERE—F RN - A
- ARERREFE BN E 2 BN RS
AHEIEEZ ARHPHAR T HBERR ZARK
2F - A NEERZEFEERL T @
R Z BN RIBD FIERRE

FHEIBERRE

The Group and the Company

FEBREAQT
2014 2013
—E-E —E—=F
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Mutual funds HEIES 73,787 62,671
Cash Re 1,200 9,282
74,987 71,953

At the end of each reporting period, an Asset-Liability matching study
was performed by the trustees to analyse the outcome of the strategic
investment policies. The investment portfolio targets a mix of 45% in equity
securities across a range of industries and 55% in government bonds.

NEEGEER  TAGETEAEARGBIR
e WO EBRRE &R - &R
AREA—ZRINTEZISDBEEHEAR
55% B F{E S ©

109



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R = HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 22 {EREHEEF (B
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) @ EBEEMERAKETE )
(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations: (iii) ERENEaEMNREZS
The Group and the Company
TEBRAQF
2014 2013
—E-E —E—=F
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January R—H—H 89,613 100,841
Remeasurements: N
— Actuarial gains arising from — AAREREESEELD
changes in demographic assumptions EEEE (1,110) —
— Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from — BB REHELEN
changes in financial assumptions BHEEE (&) 2,692 (3,557)
— Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from — BB FEERN
changes in experience BEER (BF) 897 (2,138)
2,479 (5,695)
Benefits paid by the plan A EIZ 2 @ F (4,008) (12,280)
Current service cost I8 B AR FS Ak R 5,194 6,159
Interest cost A fSNp N 1,824 588
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 95,102 89,613
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations is 6.8 EREMNBEZMETHFHR68F (ZF
years (2013: 7.8 years). —ZF 1 78%F)
(iv)  Movements in plan assets: (iv) EEIEEZEZE)
The Group and the Company
TEBRARAT
2014 2013
—T—\F —E—=F
$'000 $'000
Fi Tt
At 1 January R—H—H 71,953 66,307
Contributions paid to the plan by the employer B =X a2l 5,136 14,592
Benefits paid by the plan HEIS @A (4,008) (12,280)
Interest income FEUA 1,517 406
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income HEIEE Z @R (REiENEMA) 340 3,356
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets FEEEZITHHEX 49 (428)
At 31 December Rt+—HA=1+—8H 74,987 71,953
[
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22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 22 ERE#EERN B
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) @ EBEEMERAKETE (E)
V) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive  (v) REraemkaERER 2 M  :
income are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-mEF —ET—=F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Current service cost IR B AR5 Ak 2K 5,194 6,159
Net interest on net defined benefit liability FEEHNFA B e EE 307 182
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets HEBEEZITHEX (49) 428
Total amounts recognised in profit or loss KRB R 2 X 5,452 6,769
Actuarial losses/(gains) EEEE (BF) 2,479 (5,695)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income HEEE B (TEREMNEWA) (340) (3,356)
Total amounts recognised in other REMEEIERERZ
comprehensive income I, (WA) 2,139 (9,051)
Total defined benefit costs JEREAR MK A 4R RE 7,591 (2,282)
The current service cost and the net interest BRI RAGR AN 2 FEZEAE A
on net defined benefit liability are recognised FEEZFEFEIRN
in the following line items in the consolidated T aWzEEA
income statement: SIBE R
— Cost of sales — SHERA 36 678
— Selling and distribution expenses — HE RS HRAY 2,310 3,664
— Administrative expenses — 1TBAX 3,106 2,427
5,452 6,769
(Vi) Significant actuarial assumptions and a sensitivity analysis are as follows: (Vi) FEMRBERBIMBREDTTWT ¢

The Group and the Company

AEBRARQF
2014 2013
—ZT—F —T—=F
Discount rate Sl 1.70% 2.10%
Future salary increases RS 2180 5.00% 5.00%

The analysis set out below shows how the defined benefit obligation as at
31 December 2014 would have increased/(decreased) as a result of a 0.25%

ks

DT R R = BIFE R 0.25% 2 B ¥

‘%E%aaﬂﬁﬁﬁ_f mE+—-A=+—H

change in the significant actuarial assumptions: wgm/ Cid) aF
Increase Decrease
of 0.25% of 0.25%
¥1HN0.25% 2 0.25%
$'000 $'000
T T
Discount rate BHIR R (1,697) 1,746
Future salary increases RS 218N 1,794 (1,752)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes
in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore it does not take
into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions.

EREEE SR BEHE B

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ BlLET

1HRE - I BURED AT E BHEERR

R MRRIE -

—
111



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R = HizE

112

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
22 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 22 EREW#EERN B
(b) Defined contribution retirement plans (b) TEBEMFCRATE
0} Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong who are not members of the (i) RIEES CREIEATESEEIED) - K&
above defined benefit retirement plan are required to join the Group's EEESEBmMITEMA L FEEEFEK
mandatory provident fund plan under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident HEMEES ANAANEERGSEAES
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a defined T2l - s BlERESFE N —ERBELEE
contribution retirement plan administered by an independent corporate SZRAABENEREEFRIRGE - RIEEH
trustee. Under the plan, the Group and its employees are each required to E - AEBMEEE R BAMRGEELH
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, P HELAREEEWABNSY%  HEABM
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to ABH&E/KF A30,0007T (ZZF—MHFR
June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest immediately. A LART A&25,0007T) © 5T EI1E T B #5AD
R o
(i Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of pension (i) FREMEARIEE APREBNEENT IR
schemes operated by the PRC government. The Group is required to KREFTENKE - REFBAHFPRRKSE
contribute 19.00% to 31.35% (2013: 18.75% to 31.10%) of employees’ HEUMKIEEEBEINIEEES  HEA
remuneration to these pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only EEBES/19.00%E31.35% (T —=4F:
obligation for the Group with respect to these pension schemes is the 18.75% £ 31.10%) - AEBE B BT REKE
required contribution under the central pension scheme. Contributions to HEWM =B ABREP R RAKSEEIEE
these schemes vest immediately. A A B o HETBIEL M RKEGHES -
23 Deferred taxation in the statement of financial 23 BERREFRIIZELERE
position
(@) The Group (@ X&£H
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the RIEFEMBEARERBERZBEERBEERE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during B EKID RERNZ EBINT ¢
the year are as follows:
Depreciation  Impairment
allowances losses for
inexcess of  receivables  Retirement
the related and benefit
depreciation  inventories liabilities Tax losses Total
nERBE EWERE
BRAEENE kFE BAEF
ZEE  ZHEEE 28 BEER @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T FiT
Deferred tax arising from: BRERERY :
At 1 January 2013 R-F—=%—A—-H 52,702 (88) (5,698) (43,321) 3,595
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss A8z
(note 6(a) M/ GEA) (M 6@) 752 (66) (131) 4,127) (3572)
Charged to equity (note 10) PERPETA (FIFE10) = — 2915 — 2915
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-RA=1+—H
and 1January 2014 k=—Z—ME—HF—H 53,454 (154) (2,914) (47,448) 2,938
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss A8z
(note 6(a)) B/ GEA) (HiEE6(a) 1,063 74 217 (1,183) 171
Charged to equity (note 10) T (i 10) — — (622) — (622)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZT-WF+=-A=+—H 54,517 (80) (3,319) (48,631) 2,487
I
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(BRA=BIETIN

IR )

23

(a)

Deferred taxation in the statement of financial 23
position (Continued)
The Group (Continued) (a)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following
items, which pertain to the subsidiaries in the PRC and the Company:

MK RAIIZEERE (%)

AEE ()

AEBRPENNBARRARRL AL T
PS8 B A5 BUZ IRAE AU IR B E M FERR -

2014 2013
—F-OF —T—=F
$'000 $'000
T T
Tax losses HIaEE 543,636 604,955
Deductible temporary differences AR SR E R 360,369 410,017
904,005 1,014,972
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(p), deferred RIEF TR TE1(p) &5 - R KREE

tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as it is
not probable that the relevant entities will generate future taxable profits
against which the above items can be utilised.

The unrecognised tax losses relating to the PRC subsidiaries can be
carried forward up to five years from the year in which the loss originated
and will expire in the following years:

TEARRAP B A B AR R BE SIS RSB R TL R
MABINE R R - AR B AR WER _E5H
BPATSIZ B AEE »

ERTENBARRERNHABREESE

BERSFER - BREIMFEOIT

2014 2013

—E-mEF —T—=F

$'000 $'000

T Tt

2014 —E—N4 — 65,206
2015 —E—RF 135,636 138,438
2016 —E—RE 142,566 143,043
2017 —E 100,330 100,665
2018 —E—)\F 39,094 42,972
2019 —E—AF 45,198 —
462,824 490,324

The unrecognised tax losses relating to the Company were $80,812,000
(2013: $114,630,000) and do not expire under current tax legislation.

A E AR RFL I8 518 480,812,0007T (=
T — =4 : 114,630,00070) * W R IRITHG
HOIT TR E -
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IR E)

23

(b)

114

Deferred taxation in the statement of financial

position (Continued)
The Company

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the
statement of financial position and the movements during the year are as

23 MBRARMAINZEERE (%)

(b) AEAF

REATERRRER < BLEHIR (BE) RAE
ZHRED RERZ BB

follows:
Depreciation
allowances
inexcess of Impairment  Retirement
the related losses for benefit
depreciation  receivables liabilities Tax losses Total
FERHE
BOEENTE PR RINGER
ZEH ZREEE 28 BEER st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Deferred tax arising from: RERERY :
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—F—H 47,563 (88) (5,698) @1,777) —
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss ~ AMBzss K/ (Bt A) 884 (66) (131) (3,602) (2,915)
Charged to equity PERFETA — - 2915 — 2915
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%+-A=1+—H
and 1 January 2014 k=F—mE—F—H 48,447 (154) (2,914) (45,379) —
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss  FABzsH K/ (5t A) 1,197 74 217 (866) 622
Charged to equity PERPHIER — - (622) - (622)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MF+=A=+—H 49,644 (80) (3,319) (46,245) -
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24 Capital, reserves and dividends 24 BEF - FHERER
(@ Movements in components of equity (a) HERIIEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of KREEZIFAEZPTEEDFEY RFERH
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the NG A RDEIRAIE - KAFZ &M@
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Bl FIREREBFBNRUTI
Company'’s individual components of equity between the beginning and & -
the end of the year are set out below:
Share Share Retained
capital premium profits Total
% B aME Wi EE k]
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Balance at 1 January 2013 N=B-=%—F—H#&t 186,785 65,739 154,928 407,452
Changes in equity for 2013: SE-CHERRSE:
Actuarial gains and losses of TR ARG 2
defined benefit retirement plan, CRERFIRERE
net of tax (BREi12) — — 6,136 6,136
Profit for the year (note 9) FEEEAN (HE9) = — 39,005 39,005
Balance at 31 December 2013 R=ZF—=%+=-A=+—H
and 1 January 2014 E—E-—NE—A—H&t 186,785 65,739 200,069 452,593
Changes in equity for 2014: “E-NERREEH
Actuarial gains and losses of TERE AR 2
defined benefit retirement plan, ZIBERFIREE
net of tax (BFi%) — — (1,517) (1,517)
Profit for the year (note 9) FEBH (KEE9) — — 36,495 36,495
Dividends approved in respect of F—BBEEIE RS
the previous year (note 24(b)) (Bl =E 24(0)) — — (3,736) (3,736)
Transition to no-par value regime R-Z—NFE=A=HBEZE
on 3 March 2014 (note 24(c)) mmEESIE (MEE24(0) 65,739 (65,739) — —
Dividends declared in respect of REBREERR RS
the current year (note 24(b)) (BffaE24(0)) — — (3,736) (3,736)
Unclaimed dividends forfeited RRBREZ B EH - — 214 214
Balance at 31 December 2014 H=—Z-—NE+=-B=+—H&&% 252,524 — 227,789 480,313
(b) Dividends (by RE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to () RATRERFAEAZEERE
the year
2014 2013
—E-mEF —ET—=F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Interim dividend declared and paid of $0.01 R HARR BB AR T RAR0.01 7T
per ordinary share (2013: Nil per ordinary share) (Z=2—=F: FRZEERZT) 3,736 —
Final dividend proposed after the end of REEE BEER AR S
the reporting period of $0.01 per ordinary share B 0.01 7T
(2013: $0.01 per ordinary share) (ZZ—=F : BKE\BA%0.017T) 3,736 3,736
7,472 3,736
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has not REEHRRRZIRE  TERERASEEH
been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period. ZBIE-
[ ]
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24 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 24 BE - FHRERERE (&)
(b) Dividends (Continued) (b) KA (&
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to (i) RERBERZ N T ARAGIERFEAZR
the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year TFEERE
2014 2013
—F-ImF —T—=F
$'000 $'000
FT Tt
Final dividend in respect of A R EAE R S A+
the previous financial year, approved and 2B FERRE
paid during the year, of $0.01 per ordinary share BB 0.017T
(2013: Nil per ordinary share) (Z=—=F : GREBERZTT) 3,736 —
(c) Share capital (c) B=K
2014 2013
—E—mF —F—=
No. of No. of
shares shares
BHEE RHERE
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
Tt T
Authorised: (note 1) EERA ¢ (FiaE1)
Ordinary shares of $0.5 each FIREE0.50 T 2 Eilik
(note 2) (FrzE2) — — 400,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued TER BRT
and fully paid: R#RERA
At 1 January nR—HA—H 373,570 186,785 373,570 186,785
Transition to no-par value regime R-—ZE—NF=H=H
on 3 March 2014 EEEEEEE
(note 3) (PfFEE3) — 65,739 — —
At 31 December Rt+t—-—HA=+—H 373,570 252,524 373,570 186,785
Note 1: Under the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), which M BBERZZE—OFE=A=BARZHES
commenced operation on 3 March 2014, the concept of authorised share CREHEDY (F622F)  SEZERARZ S
capital no longer exists. TNHEFRE -
Note 2: In accordance with section 135 of the new Hong Kong Companies MizE2 : RIEBFHEE (RTUEHIY (F622%) £135
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Company’s shares no longer have a par or G B-T—NFE=ZA=HI ' AQAIK
nominal value with effect from 3 March 2014. There is no impact on DABAEZmMENAEE - EREERE Y
the number of shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any of the BEITRME B TR 2 iR =S
shareholders as a result of this transition. 5% N
Note 3: In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section 37 of MEE3 : RBEFHEE(ABNEN) (F622F) ik
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on MEIBRZBEBEY  RE—NE=
3 March 2014 any amount standing to the credit of the share premium A=R " BRh&ERZ EERSFEENK
account has become part of the Company’s share capital. BERNBRA 2 —EB5 o
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as LTERFEAGRUDTFERHORE - I
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at AIEARNBIARE FEEE—REROIE—2 -
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to HRAQRNRMNFEIGBEE  TEZERYEAR
the Company’s residual assets. R o
I
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24 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 24 BEx - FHREREE (&)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) HEHEERAZ

(i) Share premium (i) R RE
Prior to 3 March 2014, the application of the share premium account was RZZE—WNE=A=HF ' EAKRMDEER
governed by sections 488 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies TySFRIES (RFHERY (F32E) %488 (&
Ordinance (Cap. 32). In accordance with the transitional provisions set out FREEE o RIRS R ITES CATHEDI) (5 622
in section 37 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance F)MBRNMNFEIVENERZBEE R
(Cap. 622), on 3 March 2014 any amount standing to the credit of the share T—NFE=RA=H " RID&EERZ EMER
premium account has become part of the Company’s share capital (see SHEOKAEARNTRAZ —E5 (RHE24
note 24(c)). The use of share capital as from 3 March 2014 is governed by () - BZZE—MFE=F=H#  FHIRARK
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). ZETEE CRRMEGINE 622 F) FTEEE ©

(i)  capital reserve (i) EBEXREE
The capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the capitalisation BAREHIVE-—BTENB AT ZRERATF
of retained profits of PRC subsidiaries. B MEEZ 7 -

(iii)  Exchange fluctuation reserve (iiiy EXREFE
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange R RBRERERERBREREUIINZHBA
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of AU ERREECHBELZBNABES
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign exchange differences #IE R (ZRIZ M BRIMNEHEB AT 2RI
arising from translation of monetary items that in substance form part of B) ZIEHEE o ZFEBRIENE 1) FrElz
the net investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt eHBERMERE -
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s).

(e) Distributability of reserves (e) oikfEfE
At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves available for R-ZE—NFE+_A=+—8 BFH&E
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under BLRATER)Y (F622F) F6E 2 &
the provision of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance g nHESREETFARARERZEAEAZ
(Cap. 622), was $227,789,000 (2013: $200,069,000). After the end of the i 1 42 58 /227,789,000 ( —&F — =4 :
reporting period the directors proposed a final dividend of $0.01 per 200,069,0007T) - REE B - EEHEIRAK
ordinary share (2013: $0.01 per ordinary share), amounting to $3,736,000 RS SRERRI T (ZE—=F
(2013: $3,736,000) (note 24(b)). This dividend has not been recognised as a I I @A%0.017T) + RHEAAK B & 3,736,000 7T
liability at the end of the reporting period. ZE =14 :3,736,0007T) (HIsE24(b)) 7

EEHBERZKE  TEERABLERAZ
8f&-
(f)  capital management ) EBEXRERE

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of an adjusted net-debt to equity ratio. For this purpose the
Group defines adjusted net-debt as loan from an intermediate holding
company plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

AEBEREANTIRAREEREEEEE
MIFERE  WMEERRREROBRLR
H R & R IFEE ¢ ARBKF AR &
EMEE  UERBRRESSENRENRA

REBTEG KL E R EARBRA R LE
2 DERSRRE®RIEN T AR &
=EEKFER N E AR S RNEL
RIE 2 ARG - W REBERENE(L
HERNRBIELAE -

AEBUERNFEBL T RERETHEER
B EATTEMER - AREREH
B AEEERLARFRER/TNTERA
A2 B R RFH R BRSO IRTT R R IR
ERERREAR - KHABREABEMERE
SAERCER D B AR ET R BER AR S,
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24 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 24 BE - FHRERERE (&)
(f)  Capital management (Continued) f BEXEE )
During 2014, the Group's strategy was to maintain the adjusted net-debt MR- E—PUF » RNEE 7 H B2 H| &K %
to equity ratio at a reasonable level, not exceeding 100%. In order to BERFEBLERI00%EENRN - &7 4
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may issue new shares or sell assets s AREZLL R - REB ST - AR
to reduce debt. REIEBENHEEELURKEIE -
The net-debt to equity ratio at 31 December 2014 and 2013 was as R-E—NFEER_E—=F+-_A=+—H
follows: ZERFEELENAT
The Group The Company
AEE b NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—mEF —E-=F —E—MmEF —E—=
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B EE ¥ FIT Tt Tt
Loan from an intermediate IRITERKRARN
holding company less ZERARZER
bank deposits and WIRTTER RIS
cash and cash equivalents FERIREER 55,261 70,646 81,334 110,277
Add: Proposed dividends i BRRE 24(b) 3,736 3,736 3,736 3,736
Adjusted net debt KRB ETE 58,997 74,382 85,070 114,013
Equity w2 571,949 543,678 480,313 452,593
Less: Proposed dividends B ERRAE S 24(b) (3,736) (3,736) (3,736) (3,736)
Adjusted capital KA R 568,213 539,942 476,577 443,857
Adjusted net-debt to equity ratio  4XFEEE A
FB AL 10% 14% 18% 25%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally AR SAE ]I B A R X HINME B AT
imposed capital requirements. ke
25 Financial risk management and fair values 25 SHEREEERAAMEE
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the AEEE—MEBBETFLEEE  RFPE
normal course of the Group's business. The Group's exposure to these & - FREREIMNER - AEEEEZSE
risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by the REERANEEMEATEZSRAR 20
Group to manage these risks are described below. HERBRKRIES) - ST o
(@  Credit risk (@ FERE
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other AEENEERREERERKES MEM
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Management has a credit BEEAERERREIAA - ERER AR
policy in place and the exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ERR  MASRHEERZESEZERR -
ongoing basis.
Credit limits are offered to customers following a financial assessment EERBIPRETIH BTG E REREEY
and an established payment record. The general credit period is payment W RREMET - —REENIHE ANE
by the end of the month following the month in which sales take place. WA TEREE -  AREEeNRELRFE
Security in the form of mortgages, cash deposits or bank guarantees is BRI - RITHERSIRITRRIEAEKT - &
obtained from certain customers. Customers who are considered to have RAEBFPARSERER - BIRSHEITR
higher credit risk are required to trade on a cash basis. Credit control staff 5 EEEZEABSERERE HFERR
monitor trade receivables and follow up collections. WK o
[
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25 Financial risk management and fair values 25 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)

(@)  Credit risk (Continued) (@) £EEEE® @
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual AREFEZZERBIESENZPHNMEE
characteristics of each customer. At the end of the reporting period, 17% Lo PNEEH 7% (ZEE—=F 1 14%) &
(2013: 14%) and 49% (2013: 44%) of the total trade and other receivables 49% (ZZT—=4F : 44%) R E 5 K H At
was due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers RIEDRREAREESGARTFPRARES ©
respectively.
The Group and the Company do not provide any guarantees which would AR B Ko AN B) I 28 A VR EH AR YE R w
expose the Group and the Company to credit risk. ZERMRE -
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are placed with financial REBMR S RERRSEREZEGFHNER
institutions with sound credit ratings and the management considers the IR R AR S EIRE  Bt  BEERAN
Group’s exposure to credit risk is low. SEEHNEARRAE -
The Group’s exposure to the credit risk and its policies for managing such AEEASZNEERBIETERRE-Z
risk were unchanged from 2013. — =R -

(b)  Liquidity risk (b) FEBESREK

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own
cash management. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

EREEERAARBEAGNRSERRIZ
RAKERREHEREARBESHTE - U
EREESERZASREEBEREZMBHE
EwmrtEWESHE R REERARE
HzRBESHER -
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(b)

120

Financial risk management and fair values

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

(BSHIETI - DRAEE)
25 SREREERAAKRE

(b)

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to pay:

REBESER (8)

TERRAEERARANGEERUBAELZ
imER A K EIRAERE AT - WIARTHIARERIR
Reng (MEREITOERFEZMEX
H BT EER  REERERAZEE
AEZH S ) RAKEEARE RS
RZBFERBRELONEE -

The Group REHR
2014
“E-mE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
EHEREBNRSRE
More than More than
Within 1 year hut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—ER
RERK % mER
E) EmMER JEER: e REH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr Tr Tr T
Trade and other payables ENE S REMEE 111,818 — — 111,818 111,818
Loan from an intermediate RNMERDARZER
holding company 54,612 53,482 90,979 199,073 190,889
Amounts due to holding companies  FERHER A E
and fellow subsidiaries SEE NG 5,414 - — 5,414 5414
Amounts due to related companies  JEf & A RIBRIE 5,671 — — 5,671 5,671
177,515 53,482 90,979 321,976 313,792
2013
—E-=F%
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AN ERURMERRE
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FR
RERE —F%& RFR
gal) EMFA ERFA B AR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T T T T
Trade and other payables FEREB 5 R EMERIE 138,446 — — 138,446 138,446
Loan from an intermediate mMER ARz B
holding company 17,384 54,656 144,562 216,602 203,560
Amounts due to holding companies  FERHERL A ]
and fellow subsidiaries RRZMBARRE 17,235 — — 17,235 17,235
Amounts due to related companies  fEffE8E A a]BRIE 5,139 — — 5,139 5,139
178,204 54,656 144,562 377,422 364,380
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25 Financial risk management and fair values 25 eREREERAAMKE R
(Continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBELEB (&)
The Company AAT
2014
—E-{mF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ENLABBNEERE
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FR%
RERE —F% mE#R
E3): EmER BRER k) SRE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Trade and other payables JENE 5 REMERIE 56,049 — — 56,049 56,049
Loan from an intermediate RNERAEZER
holding company 54,612 53,482 90,979 199,073 190,889
Amounts due to holding companies  FERF#ERRA ]
and fellow subsidiaries LEZHBATEE 1,807 — — 1,807 1,807
Amounts due to related companies  fEfEEE A rlBRIE 2,889 — — 2,889 2,889
Amounts due to subsidiaries KB ARIRE — 558,013 — 558,013 558,013
115,357 611,495 90,979 817,831 809,647
2013
—E-=F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHEREENRSTE
More than More than
Within 1year but 2 years but
1year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FR
RERE —Ff& RE%
gl EREAN BERFR ks REzE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T TIT T
Tradle and other payables ERNE S REMERE 66,492 = = 66,492 66,492
Loan from an intermediate RNERARZER
holding company 17,384 54,656 144,562 216,602 203,560
Amounts due to holding companies  FERHZ2IL A E
and fellow subsidiaries RRZME A RERE 7,578 = = 7,578 7,578
Amounts due to related companies  JEftBEEARIERIE 1,780 = = 1,780 1,780
Amounts due to subsidiaries [EHIE A RIERE = 558,092 = 558,092 558,092
93,234 612,748 144,562 850,544 837,502
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25 Financial risk management and fair values 25 fREERRERRAAEE®
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk () F=EE
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing $%IZ7TUTJ—L S EERABERELE - K
borrowings. The Group monitors the level of its variable rate borrowings. e ZEBFRNERTKTE - AEEH
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out in & @J'-I B R R AERE T3 () ©
(i) below.
(i) Interest rate profile (i) R4S
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s loan from TREAEBENEER ZHENIER AR ZE
an intermediate holding company at the end of the reporting period: =R AR
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Amount rate Amount
% $'000 % $°000
BRAI=E k-0 ERRFIE ©FE
% Tt % FIT
Variable rate borrowings: FBNFIEER
— Loan from an intermediate ~ — F/ 4] “" ZE}JX
holding company 2.14 190,889 2.08 203,560
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SRMEDH
At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of RZF—MF+_A=+—H  fEFlE L
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, ﬂ{TE% BT EEMAEEHERRE
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after taxation and izE’JI /RT Z!Sf% SEARFRERRZANK
retained profits by approximately $1,909,000 (2013: $2,036,000). The tax /\j”f' #4580, DK 1,909,0007C (=%
effect was assumed to be nil as the entity which has drawn down these =% 2,036,0907\;) o Eiaﬁ"ﬂiééﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁi
loans had unrecognised tax losses for deferred tax purposes and it is eSS Et%}*%%R\E%'J%i&%ﬂ%ﬁ%}éﬁa g
not probable that it will generate future taxable profits against which tax BER AW R HER fRi‘%/Eﬁ?@ PR B2 IR RE 7
losses can be utilised. 15 BtRBUEREE
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the VA LGRS *ﬁ?@fa&&lmﬁfﬁéﬁ’ﬁ%
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits in respect of the exposure 2R B Z BISEL - DR AREREER
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate instruments held El FRF AR EMET A S| R AKE R
by the Group at the end of the reporting period. The impact on the Group’s BEmA = E P E EA f’i lﬁﬁﬁifé’?jﬂ
profit after taxation and retained profits is estimated as an annualised N ZFABNNZERIAZEN K ET S
impact on interest expense of such a change in interest rates. ERMFEZEEMG -
—
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25 Financial risk management and fair values 25 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (d) SERBE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales, purchases,
borrowings, expenses and recharges amongst group entities which
give rise to receivables, payables, loans and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars, Euros
and Australian dollars.

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars,
all sales and purchases are denominated in either Hong Kong dollars
or United States dollars, except for certain purchases from Europe or
Australia. Given that Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States
dollar, management do not expect that there will be any significant
currency risk associated with such United States dollar denominated
transactions. For transactions denominated in Euros, management
monitor the level of exposure closely and take actions such as an earlier
settlement considering movements in the exchange rate. For transactions
denominated in Australian dollars, since the volume of such transactions
is not significant, management consider the exposure to currency risk to
be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is Renminbi, except for
certain transactions amongst group entities that are denominated in either
Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars, most of other transactions are
denominated in Renminbi. For those transactions amongst group entities
denominated in United States dollars or Hong Kong dollars, management
consider the transaction amounts are not significant and the exposure to
currency risk is low.

The Group's exposure to currency risk and its policies for managing such
risk were unchanged from 2013.

AEETEREERS B3R KEZH
B8R N EEL SN (A% 50 E
WIRBER 2 EH) BB B
o BAERR - BRERSET  AmEY
SMERER o SIBOMNERBRZ BB TR BIEE
T BRERIRTT ©

HREBRABTHENEEENSEERE -
BRI fm BN SORMNETIRIBIN - TR
HERBEENETHETIERHER - @
RBTTERIETTEND - MANEEEMET, B
TEXRTEERBES) - TR ABENEZ
Ry BEETYEEEEHRLRKE
3 fE FE R B EYRRERIE B - AR AIAEIR - =
RIAVRTEFHE 2R S » ARNAZEEHFHE
MXHENS  MAKERRAELNERH
SNERER K

HNEBEAAARBEDREERNSEE
B RTHEEARSGRINVETHETIEE
i B R ZFRUAREIEEN - BRASKE
MAETHATIEEMNR S - ERERR
RBERTIEKR  AEEHNEBINERR T
N

AEBAZIMNERB R EEERRE—T
— =R -
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25 Financial risk management and fair values 25 SREBEERAAMRE D
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) sMERBE ()

(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) A 2 HNE R B

The following tables detail the Group’s and the Company'’s significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate. The exposure arising
from the borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of
the net investment in subsidiaries is excluded. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated
using the spot rates at the year end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong
into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

The Group

TRAAEE R AR BREE AW IFLAERE
EREEEHENCHREERBBEMA
2 ZONERBIELFANIT o TRTEES
B A S R mE R E R (R ERERS
ARCHHI B R R M FRE M — B D) MEL
B - TROSBDIREE R ZEXR iR
REEEZ5 2R - AELFBAINIB R
BZMBHRAAREENZI G MELD
ERYNEIRER

A

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

124

SRR (RBTEE)
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
United Hong United Hong
States Kong States Kong
dollars dollars Euros dollars dollars Euros
EYH BT BE i BT (B¢
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T F F T T T
Trade and other receivables EWE 5 & HABRIR 2,496 — 27 288 — 1,308
Amounts due from holding FEUERR A A)
companies and fellow ERZKBARRIE
subsidiaries 11,486 — — 8,683 — —
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBEEER 3,307 42 66 370 42 76
Trade and other payables FERE 5 R HAREE (2,061) — (759) (11,423) — (4,935)
Loan from an intermediate BRI A R 2 B3R
holding company (190,889) — —  (203,560) — —
Amounts due to holding FERHERR AR
companies and fellow X A 28 2 B8R IE
subsidiaries (4,968) — — (17,082) — —
Amounts due to related FERT A& A RIER IR
companies (2,715) — (6) (1,614) — (166)
Net exposure [E\ B AR F 5 (183,344) 42 (672)  (224,338) 42 (3,717)
[ ]
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25 Financial risk management and fair values 25 SRERTERARRE
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) SMERBS (&)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) A2 2 INERME (B)
The Company EAT

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INEREER (RBTEE)
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E—=F
United United
States States
dollars Euros dollars Euros
Ep & ey B 7
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 K& H A BRIR 2,496 27 288 1,308
Amounts due from holding FEUIZERR A &)
companies and fellow MRIZRKBARRE
subsidiaries 7,753 — 8,683 —
Cash and cash equivalents HekERBELIEE 3,199 66 262 76
Loan from an intermediate RMEIR AT ZER
holding company (190,889) — (203,560) —
Trade and other payables FENE S R EMBRIR (1,621) (759) (7,112) (4,935)
Amounts due to holding FESHER A A
companies and fellow KRR B AR BRIE
subsidiaries (1,560) — (7,578) —
Amounts due to related FETRAE N B BRIA
companies (2,715) (6) (1,614) (166)
Net exposure [B\f A H A (183,337) (672) (210,631) (3,717)
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25 Financial risk management and fair values 25 SHEREEERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) SPERBS (48)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BB
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's TRETAEBENGEE BRFEE @R 25
profit after taxation and retained profits that would have arisen if foreign MIERNE HSEEANER ZBHEBEF KL
exchange rates to which the group entities had significant exposure at the B IR E - BREE M E S S E
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other TN ogtmsE EREFBTEETLZEDN
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the BMEBERAKY EIARETHLEMEE 2 EE
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar BETRE - WA - BRKREET ARLEN
would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value EERWERHRBNAENGEER T8
of the United States dollar against other currencies. Also, the tax effect BAERRIEEBRZELERE - EIR
was assumed to be nil for the entities which had unrecognised tax losses RIEBGETLE -
for deferred tax purposes since it is not probable that they will generate
future taxable profits against which tax losses could be utilised.
2014 2013
—E-|E —E-=F
Increase/ Decrease/ Increase/  Decrease/
(decrease) (increase) Decrease/ (decrease)  (increase)  Decrease/
in foreign in profit (increase)  inforeign inprofit  (increase)
exchange after inretained  exchange after  inretained
rates  taxation profits rates taxation profits
HNEEE BREELERF  RHEF  NEEXR BREEEN  ZHAF
i "/ Hy/ =/ e B/
(T%) (%) (48m) (T%) (4 5m) (4m)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tt TT
United States dollars = 5% 1 1 5% 685 685
(5)% (1) (1) (5)% (685) (685)
Hong Kong dollars BT 5% () (2) 5% @) 2)
(5)% 2 2 (5)% 2 2
EUros Bz 5% 34 34 5% 186 186
(5)% (34) (34) (5)% (186) (186)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an LRI ZOMERIEAEESEERENU
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the group entities’ BRI B2 (REWMER  BREE
profit or loss measured in the respective functional currencies, translated AEREREET) 2 AT E B BIR
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the At -
reporting period for presentation purposes.
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange FRMEDMERBINEER 2 ZEEARE
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held Vit EAREEEYNEE B ASET
by the Group which expose the Group to currency risk at the end of the FRINER[G - SR T A - BIESEEMNALIE
reporting period, including inter-company payables and receivables within BANER 2 BB ES M 8 R R FE 1
the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the functional BRIE - W HRREEEBHEEZET —FELE
currency of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences EHMEXRJEEBHNAETE - O
that would result from the translation of the financial statements of BIEBEE NGB AR 2 I mERmEK
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency. REE 2 EEAEEZEZRE « ZBHN
The analysis has been performed on the same basis as for 2013. BT —=F iR EAEET o
[ ]
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(e)

(f)

Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

Fair value

Except for the loan from an intermediate holding company (note 20),
other non-trade balances with holding companies, fellow subsidiaries
and related companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
repayment terms. Given these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their
fair values.

All other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2014 and
2013.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Trade discounts payable included in trade and other payables and trade
receivables are offset in the consolidated statement of financial position
as the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and intends to settle on a net basis.

The Group holds cash deposits as collateral over certain trade receivables,
which are included in trade payables and not offset against trade
receivables as the Group does not have a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts.

The following tables set out the carrying amounts of recognised financial

25 SMEREERERARRE

>
A=

(e) 7

\EEL‘

B 5K
HHE - RN ERA T
ERZEIE %BZE%,H\

LEE

1:'?‘
fasl

RAE] FERMBARNEERRNIE
Iéﬁéﬁéﬂi%ﬂﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ%ﬂﬁi%
B (M7E20) Broh o

AAEZEETK -

MEEMEAEREERBENKEAEE
HEEAR-F—NER_-F
=T HENAAEBETEERER -
H EHEERSHEERKE
AR AEERHEESAEFRECERS

£ T

B WHHRFEEE
FEMKRBEZ EBNESITINEEWE 58R1E
RERE B FSARR R A B AR -

HEEE

*?*rl:lr—r

—=%+=A

AR E S

AEBFERSREERE TRIRESKRA

Z B

ZEREF ARNESRED

WEEEWE SRBEREE  RESAE

B ES

ERBIRIHZ S DRSS

TREIZ B ZHRS 2 CHEREBMTA

instruments that are subject to the above arrangements. Z BRMAE ©
The Group rEE
2014
—2-MF
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented the statement
instruments in offset in the inthe of financial
the statement statement of statement of  position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
ERISRIA EHERELHE REBRRR KEEE2FE—
a2 | IE2EE o | BRRSERR ekl
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i3 i i i i i
Financial assets LREE
Trade and other receivables JEUE S REMERE 16
— Trade receivables —EKBSRE 100,952 (31,700) 69,252 (2,483) 66,769
—Financial assets notinthe scope  — S BEAEMEHSE
of offsetting disclosures LBEEE 13,387 - 13,387 - 13,387
Financial liabilities LREE
Trade and other payables ERE S REMRE 19
— Trade payables —ENBHRE 79,148 (31,700) 47,448 - 47,448
— Financial liabilities not in the scope  — £ B & BRI
of offsetting disclosures LBEEE 64,370 - 64,370 - 64,370
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBEHE

25 Financial risk management and fair values 25 SHEREEERAAMEE ®
(Continued)

()  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ) =sHEERTREEEE @
(Continued)

The Group (Continued) TEE (&)

2013
“T-CF
Related
(Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented the statement
instruments in offset inthe inthe of financial
the statement statement of statement of position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
RE B E REBRRE REBRAREE
ERRSHIA REEELR ROBIWRE KA TE—
188 TEz%8 258 B S T8
Note $000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000
Mg i T T T i
Financial assets SREE
Trade and other receivables [EWE 5 RE A 16
— Trade receivables —EKBSERE 105,698 (34,978) 70,720 4,725) 65,995
—Financial assetsnot inthe scope ~ — £ B EET K
of offsetting disclosures L REHE 16,452 — 16,452 — 16,452
Financial liabilities SHEE
Trade and other payables ERESREMERE 19
—Trade payables — ENE SRR 87,892 (34,978) 52914 = 52914
— Financial liabilities not in the scope  — $BABTEHE
of offsetting disclosures LRBEE 85,532 — 85,532 — 85,532
The Company ¥ NN
2014
—E-MmF
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented the statement
instruments in offset in the in the of financial
the statement statement of statement of  position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
REBERRE REBRRE REBERRERE
ERRLBIA BHEREeHE REBRRR REEE2FE—
o2 IEEE ZRE KBRS EAR ik
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Mz T T i T T
Financial assets SREE
Trade and other receivables JEWE S REMERE 16
— Trade receivables — EWE5EE 96,627 (31,700) 64,927 (1,642) 63,285
—Financial assets notinthe scope ~ — @ BAETEEH
of offsetting disclosures ZHREEE 9,228 - 9,228 - 9,228
Financial liabilities tRER
Trade and other payables ENE S REMER 19
— Trade payables —ENBSRE 65,543 (31,700) 33,843 - 33,843
— Financial liabilities not in the scope — £ BB BT
of offsetting disclosures LBEEE 22,206 — 22,206 - 22,206
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
25 Financial risk management and fair values 25 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
()  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ) <sREERSREGEESE B
(Continued)
The Company (Continued) ARAT (&)
2013
—Z-=F
Related
(Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented the statement
instruments in offset in the inthe of financial
the statement statement of Statement of position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
RETERE REBHRE RETBRARRE
BEISHIA ikl RETERAE  BRABZE—
kx| TAZ4E 38 R SR 3
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Mz I I I I I
Financial assets SREE
Trade and other receivables JEUE S REMERE 16
— Trade receivables —EKEZERE 98,026 (34,978) 63,048 (1,655) 61,393
—Financial assets notinthe scope  — S BEEMEES
of offsetting disclosures LBEEE 11,138 — 11,138 - 11,138
Financial liabilities LREE
Trade and other payables ERESREMRE 19
— Trade payables —ERESEE 67,823 (34,978) 32845 — 32845
— Financial liabilities not in the scope  — £ B & BRI
of offsetting disclosures it ] 33,647 — 33,647 — 33647
The gross amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities and their ERABEEERVBERAKRFZ2I 22
net amounts as presented in the statement of financial position that are BEERCREBEZER  UERRFHARRE
disclosed in the above tables are measured in the statement of financial FREE R IR S AR IER o

position at amortised cost.

The amounts in the above tables that are offset in the statement of ERAVERMEAR AR 2 SRR
financial position are measured on the same basis. FEREETRR -
[ ]
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(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

26 Commitments 26 i
(@) capital commitments outstanding at 31 December (@ WN-E—WmE+=-A=+—H k&
2014 not provided for in the financial statements were B RPBE RN ERREFES
as follows: MmE
The Group The Company
rEE b /NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—NF —ET—=F —E—-mF —E—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°'000
T FIT T FIT
Contracted for EETAY — = — =
Authorised but not contracted for B #tE(E R ET4Y 7,496 2,421 7.496 2,389
7,496 2,421 7,496 2,389
(b) At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease (by R=T-—NF+=-A=+—0  RE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were FAHEKEREMENS ZRRKEE
payable as follows: HEXRBEWMT :
The Group The Company
£%EH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—g-mE T —F —®-mF ST —F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT FIT Tt Tt
Land and buildings THREE
Within 1 year —&FN 1,302 1,715 — —
After 1year but within 5years ~ —&F&ERER 2,409 3,689 — =
3,711 5,404 — _
The Group, as a lessee, leases a number of properties under operating AEBERABEABBLEEHEMEESIE
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to four years FE - ZSHE—RUFAH—ZWF @ I
with an option to renew each lease upon expiry when all terms are BREEEEEAMARES - ERAEHEX
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. HREHEE - SELEHET TEFEXA
s o
——
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(BRA=BIETIN

ESk gk i

27

(a)

Material related party transactions

In additi

ion to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these

financial statements, the Group entered into the following material related
party transactions:

Transactions with group companies

27 EXREALES

BAMBRRAEREZR S REHRI » K
SEERTATEABEALRS

(@ HERAZEFEXS

Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
x| W (1) EE&ER
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F —EB-NF —T-=F
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
b T T T T T
Purchases from fE= (0]
— intermediate holding company — FI/M AR A A 4,766 4,851 (847) (557)
— fellow subsidiaries = H%W% 24,368 22,447 (531) (6,562)
— related companies — BERTA 18,367 12,780 (2,977) (1,896)
Sales to =S (0]
— intermediate holding company — FRMERRA A 164,524 137,319 11,478 5,851
— fellow subsidiaries = H%Bﬁ% 268 286 — 17
Royalty payments to XNEFEER (ii)
— intermediate holding companies — 7 ¢ EE¥NG] 151 129 (187) (133)
— a related company — B 2,146 2,129 (2,694) (3,243)
Sales of raw materials to [RRHE TRIZME AR
fellow subsidiary — 289 — —
Interest expense payable to F B2 Hj
— a related company — BE R (iii) — 4,205 — —
— an intermediate holding — BA) ? “/‘
company (iv) 4,253 1,289 (352) (372)
Advertising and promotion subsidy Yz MR A B ELS
from an intermediate holding &miﬁ&?%ﬁﬁﬁ
company (V) 26,564 32,382 — =
Notes: MI3E

0]

Sales to and purchases from group companies were carried out at terms
mutually agreed by both parties. The terms of the outstanding balances are
set out in note 17.

Related companies are related to the Group as their ultimate holding
company has a significant influence over the Group.

Royalties are payable to intermediate holding companies and a minority
shareholder for the use of certain trademarks pursuant to relevant licensing
agreements.

During the year, an intermediate holding company waived royalties payable
by the Group amounting to $1,010,000 (2013: $1,003,000), which is not
included in the amounts disclosed above.

(i)

WEZFRET AR ZIGETET - B
i*ﬁ%z TEARIABHRE 17 MBI -

FiE N B AR E A BE A A &R
AHAEEEEAVE

k)

ENRERIERBAFTARMAE - BEM
R RN T MERR A B R IR
REE -

RAFE - P ERA R EEANEEY
BRI £1,010,0007C (ZT—=4:
1,003,0007T) * W& FEIWIREBIELEL £
B SRS -
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(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

27
(a)

(b)

132

Material related party transactions (Continued) 27 EXREALTES (@
Transactions with group companies (Continued) (@ KSEAZERERS (&)
Notes: (Continued) sk - (48)
(iii) Interest expense was paid for the bank loan obtained from a related party (iii) FEZHETBBEARMRITER - A%
over which the Group's ultimate holding company had significant influence. ERREIERARHZEERRBEAY
-
(iv) Interest expense was paid for the loan from an intermediate holding (iv) FESZHTIERN R ARNERK °
company.
(v) Advertising and promotion subsidy was received from an intermediate (v) R IR R B S I T 5 HE R R
holding company for promotion of certain brands in the PRC. BE O E T R E P BEAHEE -
These transactions also constitute connected transactions under the BIEFMHRE HERSZ (BEEEQARZ
Listing Rules, except for the purchases from related companies, which the R HBIN) EKEER S - BERBIERD -
directors do not consider to be connected transactions under the Listing KRR ERHRBABERARIRSITEES
Rules. FER S ©
Other transactions with group companies (b) HKEARHMBEERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
S5 B () FRER
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—mEF —T—=F —E—mEF —E—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tt Tt
Expenses paid by the Group AAEEREENF
on behalf of group companies K&
— intermediate holding — AN ERRA A
companies 746 650 — 290
— fellow subsidiaries — RARKB AR 26 412 12 2,544
— a related company — FE AT 3,716 3,534 665 —
Expenses paid by group HEEARRAEE
companies on the Group's KX &M
behalf
— ultimate holding company. — RARIERR AT — 106 — (106)
— intermediate holding — BN ERR A A
companies 4,724 3,626 (3,492) (9,501)
— fellow subsidiaries — RIRH B QA — = (5) (4)

The ultimate holding company up to 17 October 2013 was San Miguel
Corporation, which was acquired by Top Frontier Investment Holdings,
Inc., which has become the ultimate holding company since that date.

HEZ_ZT—=F+A+ttAH &&E
BRAB AL HDBRR ZRQAC ETp
Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. ¢ 8 - i
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. & B 3%
H HAERK AR AT A E] ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
27 Material related party transactions (Continued) 27 EXREALTES @
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) FEEBAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including KEBTBEEBAB S (BFEMF7 T
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and the BEAANTEEY N 2B R8T E
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: METHEaHEES N FHIE) 0T :
2014 2013
— ik —
$'000 $'000
T T
Short-term employee benefits 5 EEE & 16,772 15,484
Post-employment benefits BERR 1B A 1,395 1,645
18,167 17,129
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). BB A TBETEHM] R (RHFESD) °
28 Non-adjusting events after the reporting period 28 REHHEFRAEHR
After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a final REEHBRESRRRPAE - E—FFI1F
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 24(b). BAKTEE 24(0) o
29 Immediate and ultimate controlling party 29 EHERRHRERAT

At 31 December 2014, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Neptunia Corporation
Limited and Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. respectively. Neptunia
Corporation Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong while Top Frontier
Investment Holdings, Inc. is incorporated in the Republic of the Philippines.
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. produces financial statements
available for public use.

RZZE—NFF+=A=+—H EFRAENX
SENEES AT RGRIERAAD AR
37 3w F A BR A 7] & Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc. 37w & B BR 2~ A1 R & 78 51 it
X321 Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.
BIFAE/R B A B 71 it B 32 © Top Frontier
Investment Holdings, Inc. 4R EL81 #3hx T A
BB o
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(BRABHETIN

BEEEHE)

30

134

Possible impact of amendments, new standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a few amendments and a new standard which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 19, Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions

1 July 2014

Annual improvements to HKFRSS 2010-2012 cycle 1July 2014

Annual improvements to HKFRSS 2011-2013 cycle 1July 2014

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, "Accounts and Audit”, of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into operation
from the Company's first financial year commencing after 3 March 2014
(i.e. the Company’s financial year which will begin on 1 January 2015)
in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of the expected impact of the changes
in the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance on the consolidated
financial statements in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far
it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and will
primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements.

30

ERFERREBEE_S—HF+=
R=t+—HLEFEEHBERE
B MERERETRERNTE
BEAMBRETER  BEGHHLEE
BRSERHE_T-—MF+-A=+—8
LEF AR A R RIS £T B FURST AN -
02 B 5 SRR IR R 25 4 3T IR
B T EAREAH -

RT5 B8k
ZERIEZ
EETHBER

EBEHOERIE 199 —Eme
(ERT) [ EsEEFIaTE - +B—8
BB FREHN

EEHBRSRAFEYE  —F-NF
TE TR T4 +H—AH
)

EEHBRSRAFEYE  —F-NF
—FEoF=F +A—H
)

EAMBHESRASE5E B4
[EP&KKE | —FA—nR

BEIISIREERIE 95 —= N\
[2RIA e

AREBFFHAZEFEINSIT N & REREZ
FE FEARL  ARERRRAZFE

AT AREBGRAMBREBRERNTZE
BV RTREIE TR -

BEAN - RIRFTEE (R ARG (£ 622F) F
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B MRS

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of San Miguel
Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 62 to 134, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BIYRBETRE
BERENEERERATDRR
(REBEMA LA BR 2 A])

Az B (AT R [3(F1)) EEFHIENF 62
BEERFIUERBENRERERAR ([EA
A REMBAR (2BEATEEE]) NER
BYBHRE  WERAMBHRREER T —NF
TZA=1T—BNGEaMARPBRIE  BE
ZHLEFENGENRER  KAEEKRER -
ERDEHRMGEARERNERARETERTR
R K EAD P AR -

EEMESHMERRARIENRE

BRARMEFERAIREBTESTH LG RMA
(BEEMBHREEL) BB CRRHRD) fmEER
BPBHE WS BBRRIELEEMAANR
BRNCEBEER R RESE M RER S ZH AR
P AR SR T E RN GE SR E
BREAFRRAL -

e RE

M EERRERMANETHZEHEAMBER
KEHMBR - BINRIRIEE (R RHER) (5 622
B) MR FBOMKMMRTE - ERBBIRR®RS
BRILIASN - A mEE N BIEEMAE - ]
P TR ABEENANE  BEMEMBALTER
SAEGEEREE -

RMPEREBEEESHMOSEMN(EERTE
A EITEN - RFEANBREMETERR
£ WRBRMITES  NAEBELRAMBR
REB M ETMEABRBRML
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2014 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

17 February 2015
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GROUP PROPERTIES E£EY)%

Details of the major property of the Group are as follow: AEBZ EFEYEFBOT :

Existing use Term of lease

BE AR Y

Major property held for investment
BERENIEME

Portions of Dangerous Goods Store, Warehouse rental Medium-term
two Car Parking Spaces
on the Ground Floor,
the whole of Mezzanine Floor,
the whole of Second Floor,
the whole of third Floor,
a portion of Fourth and Fifth Floor,
the whole of Sixth Floor
and a portion of Roof Floor,
San Miguel Industrial Building
Nos. 9-11 Shing Wan Road,
Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong

BorekmeE - T MEAEEA - ERME T H
BERE —B2E ZB2E-
B KD B

NERE - REHKRE
EBYDAAEKER 9-115%
ENTEKRE
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY EEEHBE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABEEEE
The Group
T£EH
2014 2013 2012 20M 2010
—E-mE —E-=F —E——F —ET——%F —E-TF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr T T T
(restated)
GEL])
Results ¥
Turnover EEE 728,640 687,093 686,362 683,879 589,322
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRERIZF] (E18) 37,227 22,283 230,009 (69,027) (782,509)
Income tax (charge)/credit FTiS® () /FTA (233) 3,541 (3,033) 389 8,522
Profit/(loss) for the year FEAT/ (EB) 36,994 25,824 226,976 (68,638) (773,987)
Attributable to: FEMIATR
— Equity shareholders — RRARIREREFAA
of the Company 35,323 26,010 237,655 (53,464) (736,984)
— Non-controlling interests — e 1,671 (186) (10,679) (15,174) (37,003)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEAT/ (EE) 36,994 25,824 226,976 (68,638) (773,987)
Earnings/(loss) per share SFRET/ (FR)
— Basic (cents) — EK (i) 9 7 64 (14) (197)
Cash dividends per share (cents) SRS (1) 2 1 — — —
Assets and liabilities BEEHEE
Fixed assets BTE&E 621,309 635,893 654,678 389,671 398,011
Intangible assets BV AE 5,187 5,188 5,426 5,709 5,678
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/ (AR) FE 108,040 114,032 34,953 (73,729) 9,988
Total assets less current liabilities @A ERREEE 734,536 755,113 695,057 321,651 413,677
Retirement benefit liabilities BINEFBAE (20,115) (17,660) (34,534) (20,975) (18,143)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (2,487) (2,938) (3,595) (3,453) (4,060)
Bank loan RITEN — = (145,092) = =
Loan from an intermediate RAERARZER
holding company (139,985) (190,837) — — —
Net assets BEFE 571,949 543,678 511,836 297,223 391,474
Capital and reserves BRARF#E
Share capital: nominal value IR E{E — 186,785 186,785 186,785 186,785
Other statutory capital reserves HiEEEARER — 65,739 65,739 65,739 65,739
Share capital and other statutory MR & E At E
capital reserves BN 252,524 252,524 252,524 252,524 252,524
Other reserves Hivfite 347,386 320,897 287,926 62,627 139,746
Total equity attributable to equity AR FIREZEBEA
shareholders of the Company el e 599,910 573,421 540,450 315,151 392,270
Non-controlling interests FEF R (27,961) (29,743) (28,614) (17,928) (796)
Total equity EnE 571,949 543,678 511,836 297,223 391,474
Notes to the five year summary: AFREBMEME

BTHATEGERNE 9% B [EERA] - B =
T=F  AEENBEERRNBARGEZSFBOR -
UHEREE T —F+ A=+ BLEFERABER
BPUNER  ARESRARYBEFEFELTEXR
HUILBEF R A RE P HER

In order to comply with the revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits, in 2013, the Group changed
its accounting policy for its defined benefit retirement plan. This change has been applied
retrospectively for the year ended 31 December 2012 but not for the preceding years as the
directors consider that the effect is not material to those years.
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